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Name: Julia Willsie

Comment: | I am shocked and saddened by the poor communications of Sac City and SCUSD in
regards to our children’s after school care. The 4th R after school programs are being
replaced, but there is little information on exactly what this new program will be.

My children go to Leonardo da Vinci elementary and we love 4th R. I understand that
the current facility can’t even be used and it’s unknown how and where the new SCCSC
program may be.

4th R gave my family and other parents and children a sense of safety and security. To
have this option removed with an unknown program with so few details as a replacement
is unacceptable.

During these Covid times, our families have been on nonstop rollercoasters and we need
stability. Telling us that our beloved before and after school program is ending
WITHOUT explanation is not okay.

Please help to bring back 4th R!

Sincerely,

Julia Willsie, mother of Jakob and Eli

Speaking as: Parent/Guardian
Email
Tel:

Date/time Stamp:  4/6/2021 9:49:03 PM
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Name: Amy Strimling

Comment: | As an early childhood educator and parent, I ask the board to consider different
guidelines for EK and Kindergarten. Expecting young children to sit in desks and not
interact with peers is not developmentally appropriate. I understand this is not normal so
we can't presume to apply "normal" expectations. However, child care centers across the
country have successfully engaged preschool and kindergarten aged children in
developmentally appropriate ways for a year now (without vaccines), and we know this
can be done with low risk to the children and teachers when all are masked. This also
includes outdated guidance regarding the need to avoid sharing of toys and sanitizing
items between use.

Speaking as: Parent/Guardian
Email
Tel:

Date/time Stamp:  4/6/2021 10:46:00 PM
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Amy Yip

Comment:

the community needs to have a say about the closure of 4thR. it has been a staple in the
community as long as i can remember. they do great work and evaluable to the
community, not just to the development of children, but also ensuring the parents are
able to be part of the workforce. 1 have often thought that 4thR should be expanded and
that the providers who do such a great job should be paid more. closure would only hurt
the community and students. Sacramento schools are already terribly ranked, poverty is
growing, and our streets filled with homeless encampments. if the city is having budget
problems, maybe we should consider cutting programs that aren't doing anything (using
an evidence based process to exam programs and their outcomes). but please continue to
invest in programs that are valuable and continue to invest in our children and our
community. this needs to be a discussion about risks and benefits... and should not just
be based on "cost"

Speaking as: Parent/Guardian
Email
Tel:

Date/time Stamp:  4/7/2021 12:23:52 PM
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Name:

Bernie Evangelista

Comment:

Superintendent Aguilar, Board Members, Good Evening. Bernie Evangelista here,
providing you with our Montessori Minute update. With the most recent change in CDC
and public health guidelines from 6 feet to 3 feet social distancing in the classrooms, we
have began reviewing and preparing for changes we need to implement to make this
happen. Our California Montessori Project Governing Board will discuss this on this
month's board meeting scheduled on Monday, April 12. We could potentially have
students in the Hybrid Stable Group A and Hybrid Stable Group B come daily by the end
of the month. We will continue to have Distance Learning Classes for those who have
signed up to do Distance Learning through the end of the school year. Exciting times!
Thank you and have a good evening.

Speaking as: Charter School Administrator
Email
Tel:

Date/time Stamp:  4/7/2021 5:33:38 PM
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Name:

Ellen Yin-Wycoff

Comment:

Dear SCUSD Board of Education:

I am concerned about how SCUSD recently eliminated the 4thR childcare program at
Pony Express Elementary School and the other 4thR sites throughout the district. It is
my understanding that the district made this UNILATERAL decision with NO parental
input and no solid communication with the families as the school is reopening this
month. We know the district is contracting with the Center to provide a new program at
these sites. Although the Center is an excellent provider and has been providing various
services at school sites including Pony Express, 4thR has been an amazing childcare
program that provides before and afterschool services, childcare for Kindergarten
students, and childcare during the summer and holiday breaks (which the Center has
provided some, but not all the childcare services like 4thR). 4thR has a proven track
record in providing these services as my daughter has received these services for the past
several years. At Pony Express, we had both the Center's ASES program ALONG with
the 4thR program. I know the Center provides an excellent program and I believe it' is
NOT an either/or decision of one program over another, but an opportunity to provide
BOTH 4thR and the Center's program offered at the schools. At this critical time during
the pandemic, parents need more childcare options and by offering 4thR, the district can
ensure consistency and continuity of childcare for their students before/afterschool and
during the summer. Changing providers now is detrimental on a social and emotional
level for our children. It is challenging enough for our children to deal with the
pandemic. As they return to school, they need consistency and continuity as they
manage all the changes created by the pandemic. The children and families who have
benefitted from 4thR should not have to experience another major change right now.
Childcare options (including 4thR) are essential for all families at SCUSD as we reopen
the schools and parents are returning to the workplace. Please bring back 4thR as it is
successful childcare program even if it needs time to return by the summer and fall!
Thank you very much for your consideration.

Speaking as: Parent/Guardian
Email
Tel:

Date/time Stamp:  4/7/2021 8:25:22 PM
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Name:

Rose Lazuardi

Comment:

I am angry with the dismantling of 4th R. The replacement of a long established program
with no transparency or parent input and no notice is unacceptable. The audacity to sever
a 35+ year contract that parents have trusted further confirms toxic leadership and loses
any goodwill or trust in SCUSD administration.

Additionally the excuse given of not being ready, when the new program isn’t either, is
weak and shows the district is up to its own justification behind closed doors.

It is also not acceptable for the district to select a replacement program that is not on par
with the current program. It also prioritizes a specific population of students, and
therefore availability may leave working parents with no solution.

It is difficult to compare SCCSC to 4thR as a childcare provider. 4thR requires
programmers and developers to carry Child Development permits, their staff to have
ECE units, and they are licensed by the State of California. 4thR has a 14:1 ratio, is open
during the summer and school breaks, and before school. When contacting SCCSC, they
could not provide license number, did not know if program manager positions required
Child Development Permits, did not have an ECE requirement for site staff, were closed
for summers and all school breaks, were only open before school for select sites, and had
a 24:1 ratio.

Speaking as: Parent/Guardian
Email
Tel:

Date/time Stamp: ~ 4/8/2021 9:08:55 AM
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Name:

Amy Brown

Comment:

There are many things I can say but saying we all want 4thR back, is an understatement.
I may not be a parent of a child in this district, but as a provider and someone in this
field, I feel like I have always had the honor of being the part time parent of hundreds.
Hundreds of children who have who have walked through our doors expecting a friend
and a place to be a kid, but also getting an advocate and another parent. A door in which
parents/caregivers walk through and earn another partner in the village it takes to raise a
child. We have given them a safe haven, a home, and an extended family. 4thR was
never a just a service or company that simply provided childcare. For many, this was
never even a job. We showed up every day ready and happy to commit to our children,
their families, their schools, and the communities in which they resided. The number of
plays, school events, and life events we at 4thR have all attended, outside of work hours,
has instilled our commitment to each and every child. We have always reached more
than a student in a school, but also their families and their community. Each child, their
parents, grandparents, and/or caregiver was a person to us, with a name, whether we
enrolled 30 or 300. They did not hold a dollar sign and were never a token in a bigger
agenda, but a heart in which we delicately cared for until their caregivers could take back
over.

This swift decision has done a grave disservice to an entire district, its families, and a
partnered program that has always committed to doing more than just merely showing
up. One that has earned its reputation, for years, by simply being human and connecting
with its community. While you may try to replace us with a company that is scrambling
to replicate us, who we were to these families will not be easily replaced. We have
waited for more than a year, through a global pandemic, with excitement and a light at
the end of the tunnel, to return to your campuses with your district’s children. Please, re-
consider your decision in demolishing a program that has always been your district and
your schools’ family’s supporter and extended family.

Speaking as: Community Member
Email
Tel:

Date/time Stamp: ~ 4/7/2021 10:42:58 PM
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Name:

Kathi Windheim

Comment:

Superintendent Aguilar and SCUSD Board Members:

I join many others in expressing concern about the displacement of the 4th R program in
our community. For 38 years the program has been a trusted and valuable service to the
parents and children before and after school and during the summer. Also, 4th R has
been the source of personal enrichment and training for many Sacramento youths
employed by the program.

The Sacramento Chinese Community Service Center (SCCSC) has solid programs. My
remarks are not intended to diminish the quality of their services. However, 4th R has
long and storied support in the community for providing excellent service over an
extended period of years. There is strong desire in the community for that service to
continue. It therefore appears to be fair and appropriate that the School District make
every effort to work with 4th R to keep the program alive. Perhaps by allowing it to
participate in services that SCCSC is unable to provide or is willing to share. Further, by
inviting 4th R to participate in preparing MOUs for their services as they have done in
the past. This would offer more choices and options for parents.

My belief is that SCUSD working with the City through its' Department of Youth, Parks,
& Community Enrichment can find a way to help sustain the historic 4th R program for
the community's benefit now and in the future. Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely,

Kathi Windheim

Speaking as: Community Member
Email
Tel:

Date/time Stamp:  4/8/2021 7:29:26 AM
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Name:

Jaime Avelar

Comment:

April 8, 2021

Good afternoon SCUSD Board and Superintendent Aguilar,

As educators and parents of two SCUSD students, we are excited our children are
returning for in-person instruction. They attend Sutterville Elementary and are equally
thrilled to meet their teachers and see their friends after such a traumatic year. We have
always loved our Sutterville community! As the first and only school our children have
attended, we have always been impressed and extremely grateful for the families we
have met, the school’s climate and culture, their amazing teachers, and wonderful 4th R
program. However, our excitement was short-lived as we received news regarding the
closure of 4th R. One of the first questions they asked once they learned of schools
reopening was, “We get to go to 4th R again?” They were devastated to learn that they
would not see their 4th R staff anymore. This is not something that can be addressed by
simply adding a new program. In fact, this is not a “Return Together.” A significant part
of our Sutterville community is not returning. As a district that advertises a “Return
Together,” social emotional learning, support for all students, and accountability to the
local community, we are extremely disappointed and surprised that such a drastic
decision was made without any input from any stakeholders, especially the ones that are
directly impacted.

The program not only provided care before and after school, but also met their social
emotional needs. Throughout their time in the program, they have created many
memories and have met many wonderful people. Years later, they still asked if they
could go in early or stay later, a true testament of their wonderful staff. We don’t want
just daycare and somewhere to drop them off, but somewhere they can receive academic
support, flourish emotionally and feel safe. This takes time. Trust and relationships take
time. The relationships and bonds they have created have been torn away and can’t
simply be replaced.

All of our SCUSD children’s lives were completely transformed more than a year ago
and they have lived and experienced much more than they can understand. For many,
the pandemic further exacerbated already difficult circumstances. As educators with
many years of experience, including work in other fields working with children, we can
attest that the number one variable of an effective program that makes an everlasting
impact on the lives of our youth is positive relationships. We want 4th R back and we




are willing to wait until the fall. This pandemic has already caused enough trauma, some
of which we still don’t know the full impact. Why add to what our children have
experienced? Please consider reinstating the 4th R program so we can truly “Return
Together.”

Thank you for your time and consideration.

Speaking as: Parent/Guardian
Email
Tel:

Date/time Stamp:  4/8/2021 8:13:21 AM
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Name: Sara Bailey

Comment: | Good evening School Board Trustees and Superintendent Aguilar. My name is Sara
Bailey and I am writing to you as a member of SEIU and a classified employee of
SCUSD. I am saddened by the district's decision to declare an impasse with the Union.
The proposals made by SEIU are reasonable and fair and in line with what classified
employees are being offered in neighboring school districts. The following is a quote
from an email I received yesterday from Superintendent Aguilar "Whether you are a
parent or an SCUSD staff member, our students are looking at the example we will set as
we confront and handle adversity as a community. No matter your role, you are vital in
our efforts to meet our students’ needs." The example the district could set for its
students, families, and employees is to agree to the reasonable stipend proposals the
union has asked for. Classified employees have the lowest wages and have been the
most impacted by the pandemic. The way the district could show me that they see me as
vital is agreeing to the same childcare provisions they have offered teachers. This is an
opportunity for you to put equity into action. This is an opportunity to do right by your
employees and the families you serve.

Speaking as: Employee
Email
Tel:

Date/time Stamp: ~ 4/8/2021 8:55:09 AM
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Name:

Amanda Autsen

Comment:

The 4th "R" Program has been a staple in the community for years. The staff and families
have a bond that is not easily broken. The bonds that are created last for years past the
time that those children are in the program. In many cases as those children become
adults themselves they come back the programs they once attended to find jobs and
programs for their children. Can this be said about the programs that you will be bringing
in? As not only an employee with the program I also have my children in attendance of
the program. In your hasty need to provide a child care program you are dismantling a
licensed program that has had its employees anxiously waiting for the reopening of the
SCUSD school campuses. At a time when all we wanted to do was be on campus
providing care for the families that needed it you closed campuses and did not allow us
to operate. So those staff created programs that still supported your district with DL pods
for children that were the most at need. And how do you repay our efforts? By choosing
a program that is not yet licensed, that did not open on April 8 as promised and is now
saying they will not open until May? How does that benefit anyone? As a parent and an
employee I ask that you reconsider your decision and bring back The 4th "R" Program
and give the children the security and safety they are needing so much right now with an
ever changing world.

Speaking as: Parent/Guardian
Email
Tel:

Date/time Stamp:  4/8/2021 9:22:29 AM
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Name: Crystel Fudala

Comment: | Many of the children that have attended 4th"R" have come back to work for 4th"R" and
because of 4th"R" most of our recreation aids(staff) have gone on to be teachers,
administrators , and principals in the school district. Its about connection and building
those relationships over the years. We have had several kids who now bring their
children because they went to 4th"R" as a child and believe in the program.

Speaking as: Community Member
Email
Tel:

Date/time Stamp:  4/8/2021 9:32:45 AM
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Name: Jorge Martinez

Comment: | I am a father of 3 children in the district and I am upset to know that 2 Assistant
Superintendents who are BIPOC are being let go from the district. My family and [ have
received so much support and assistance from Dr. Mackey when no one else in the
district would answer the phone or help us. She has so much experience and moved from
NY to be here for our families and that was what he has done. She is a breath of fresh air
in this horrible district because FINALLY there is someone who knows what they are
doing. She is REAL and REALLY HERE for our KIDS and PARENTS!! She should be
the superintendent of this district instead of Aguilar since he has done nothing but talk
about where he comes from but not support our Latino community. He only listens and
acts for those people that put more money in his pockets. He is overpaid and under
qualified to lead. Four years in, and I've never seen him at any of our schools let alone at
a PTA meeting. But he will go to Phoebe Hearst and other rich schools where our kids
of color are NOT! We don't want you here robbing us and not giving our kids the
chances and education they need to succeed. Board, make Dr. Mackey the superintendent
and send Aguilar packing!!

Speaking as: Parent/Guardian
Email
Tel:

Date/time Stamp:  4/8/2021 9:42:02 AM
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Name:

Shannon Barnes

Comment:

I write this regarding proposed staffing cuts to Kit Carson International Academy. The
budget office proposes cuts to staffing by 3.8 teaching positions. You say there is a
structural deficit, however, the savings from 3.8 teaching positions at Kit Carson will
ultimately amount to approximately 1% of the 28 million dollar structural deficit. Surely
there is bureaucratic bloat that can be cut to save these teaching positions. While on
paper you are utilizing the so called base formula, which works for traditional 5-teaching
period high school programs, to make decisions, and you are keeping the IB program
intact at Kit Carson, you are asking 19 out of 21 teachers to teach well above the
contractual limit of 170 student contacts per day, many of us over 190 student contacts
per day. Per contract, it will cost the district $90 a day per teacher per day for every day
we teach over our 170 contacts--which amounts to approximately $1800 per day. Just
because you calculated it, based on our district and board approved 6 period day, and it is
possible doesn’t mean that it should be done. With the IB program we all happily agree
to the extra duties required to successfully support our students in their extended essays,
CAS projects, and personal projects--all projects that students do outside of the
classroom time, all projects which require teacher support and mentorship. I, myself,
have 6 extended essay students who will be seniors next year--an essay which is 4000
words that I read, give feedback, score, meet with. And I’'m happy to do it because I
believe so strongly in the program. However, the estimate is that myself and my other
colleagues will have approximately 190-202 students in our classes. For every essay that
gets assigned and graded, it takes at least 15 minutes (and that’s being very conservative)
to give effective feedback. 15 minutes x 202 students equal 3030 minutes in essay
grading alone, which equates to 50.5 hours of grading--obviously done outside of
contracted hours.All of our teachers assign essays in IB, and spend hours outside of
contract hours grading. Let us not pretend all of our planning and grading can be done
during our daily planning period. We will be exhausted and our students will not be
served as well as they deserve because the district needed to staff us at base formula--this
is not an equity-based decision. Equal is not the same as equity, the signs all over the
district say that--I saw them when I was getting vaccinated.

Speaking as: Employee
Email
Tel:

Date/time Stamp:  4/8/2021 9:53:11 AM
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Name:

Angela Davis

Comment:

Good Evening Board Members, [ am writing this comment as a concerned community
member to ask that you rescind your vote to release two BIPOC women who are
currently Instructional Assistant Superintendents. It is my understanding that these
women have been released without warning or any conversation with them because this
district has a pattern of silencing those that speak up against the racial inequities in the
district and challenge decisions that are made that negatively impact our BIPOC students
and leaders. Bottom line, you were not given accurate information when this decision
was put before you. Bottom line, the superintendent and CAO are threatened by Dr.
Mackey's experience, education and skill. Bottom line, Dr. Simms has always
championed work in our Latino communities and bilingual education. The CAO comes
here from Elk Grove and thinks that Sac City is the same as Elk Grove, another district
that also mistreats students of color and has been cited as disproportionately suspending
Black boys. And she wants to replicate that here??? Absolutely NOT! She is not
welcome here. She is not wanted here. She does not have the experience or education of
both Dr. Mackey and Dr. Simms. Dr. Mackey should have been the CAO but I guess this
district still subscribes to the "white is right" mentality. I am disgusted that this Board
allows the blatant discrimination persist unchecked. I am disgusted that this Board is not
actively interrupting these practices and putting a stop to this nonsense. You were
elected to do a job. You need to reinstate these women, get rid of the superintendent and
his CAO. This white rage and retaliation against our smart, qualified and experienced
BIPOC women leaders needs to end. Board, act now or the community will see to it that
you are no longer in your seats because you represent US. We want these changes NOW!

Speaking as: Community Member
Email
Tel:

Date/time Stamp: ~ 4/8/2021 10:02:33 AM
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Name: Shelly Carthen

Comment: | We've been serving your families for 35 years and have been supporting your families
throughout the whole pandemic. We'll even continue to provide care as we have
supporting families with distance learning. We do it for them because we truly love and
care about them. The families need and want quality care. The children need the
continuity they know and love. Please don't close 4th "R"!

Speaking as: Community Member
Email
Tel:

Date/time Stamp: ~ 4/8/2021 10:16:28 AM
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Name: Michael Violenta

Comment: | Why was SCUSD so quick to remove 4th R and replace them with Academy of
Scholars? With the current update from the Academy of Scholars coordinator, license
child care will not be given until summer. Wasn’t the point of them coming on was
because they made commitments for April 8th. 4th R was helping the children in need
during the pandemic but could have been ready to go by summer if whoever the decision
makers were just more transparent. It’s disheartening to see SCUSD take a new program
when these “all of a sudden” changes are being made as we speak which doesn’t align
with the original plan. 4th R is reputable and the career staff and staff would go the
lengths to be with their families after being ripped apart because of the pandemic.

Speaking as: City of Sacramento Employee
Email
Tel:

Date/time Stamp: ~ 4/8/2021 10:35:39 AM
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Name: Stacy Kawahara

Comment: | My name is Stacy and I was the Program Coordinator at Sutterville 4thR. I have worked
for the program since 1997 in various capacities. The decision to cut ties with the
program after 35 years is a travesty. The decisions that were made behind closed doors
without any public or city employee input is appalling. The SCUSD has not been
transparent through this whole process. You speak of the social and emotional well-being
of your students but strip them of a program that was safe, valued, and provided stability.
The program we’ve built over the years was more than a business... we were a family
that also had a strong relationship with our school and the community around us.

Please reconsider your decision and reinstate 4thR .

Speaking as: Employee
Email
Tel:

Date/time Stamp:  4/8/2021 10:38:43 AM
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Name:

Shannon Hobbs

Comment:

Dear Members of the Board,

The 4th R program has been a partner with the Sacramento City School district for over
35 years providing quality childcare. 4th R is more than just a childcare program. The
4th R program supports families in innumerable ways. It creates community at its sites.
The children develop long-lasting relationships, keep learning in the summer, is safe and
comforting, and provides relief to families in the middle of a pandemic. So much that the
former children of the program come back to work for it once they turn 18.

Some of you board members know how quality of a program this is because you send
your own children there. How are you ok with the decision you made to terminate this
program? This is a fee-based program that families pay for; it’s not costing the District
any money. So let parents be part of the decision-making on who and where care will be
provided. Don’t make a decision this core to our day-to-day life without engaging us and
with no notice.

The coordinators and programmers for the 4th R program stepped up in the school
district’s time of need to staff the learning hubs. They couldn’t wait to welcome the
families back once the schools reopened. This was taken away from them in a blink of an
eye. Please consider staffing the learning hubs with substitute teachers so the
coordinators and programmers can get back to their real job.

This new program isn’t even going to be ready until summer. We are willing to wait until
the summer for 4th R. We need continuity and consistency. Not chaos. Please cancel the
contract with the new program and reinstate the 4th R program. We want 4th R back.

Thank you, Shannon Hobbs

Speaking as: Parent/Guardian
Email
Tel:

Date/time Stamp:  4/8/2021 10:42:26 AM
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Name:

Jacquelyn Sanchez

Comment:

As a parent in Sac City, I am deeply troubled and concerned that this district has decided
to release Dr. Mackey and Dr. Simms. Our community needs Dr. Mackey. Our
community needs Dr. Simms. Dr. Mackey moved here from NYC and has been nothing
but a blessing to our schools and Principals. She has more experience than anyone in the
district and has supported our school when our Principal was out even while she still was
doing her own job in the district. Our teachers love her and talk about how supportive
she is and they look to her for guidance. When our school had Ms. Baeta as an Assistant
Superintendent we never saw her and she certainly did not support our teachers and
families. Dr. Mackey should have been the CAO but because of racially and politically
motivated things by the Superintendent, this Board approved the wrong person. Ms.
Baeta knows nothing about our kids and our families. From what I see, she favors the
predominantly white schools and white leaders. Another parent shared that she visited
their school, and of course, it was in East Sac. Yet, she talks about all of the kids being
"her babies". Stop with the fake "white savior" words. We see right through them. Ms.
Baeta thinks she can do here what she claims to have done in Elk Grove. Well, we are
not Elk Grove and her inexperience and lack of realness is felt by our community. As
school board members, you represent our communities. You need to look past the pretty
presentations and see that Aguilar and his "white princess" don't act on behalf of our
families and our teachers. You need to know the truth and act on it! The truth is that Ms.
Baeta has been given the authority to silence BIPOC women of color because of her
insecurities and Aguilar is getting rich on the backs of hard working parents in this
community. If he was really representing the Latino community they way he says he is,
then why are our kids still struggling after 4 years of his tenure? Why is he allowing his
CAO to make decisions that she is not qualified to make? Why is not standing up for Dr.
Mackey and Dr. Simms by not allowing these 2 BIPOC women to leave our district
when he knows there is no good reason to do so? Why? Because he doesn't care about
US but Dr. Mackey and Dr. Simms do! PLEASE! Board Members, do not allow this to
happen. Reinstate these 2 women NOW! Remove the Superintendent and Ms. Baeta.
There are the ones that should go!

Speaking as: Parent/Guardian
Email
Tel:

Date/time Stamp:  4/8/2021 11:11:30 AM
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Mary Chew

Comment:

This comment is to address the decision made by SCUSD to abruptly change childcare
providers from City of Sacramento 4th “R” to SCCSC, forcing 24 career employees and
numerous Recreation Aides out of our school-based locations within SCUSD. This
decision was made without input from the affected families or 4th “R” employees. This
decision is disrupting and eliminating the opportunity for employees and families to get
back to our sites in SCUSD (some of which have been there for 30+ years). We had no
opportunity to provide feedback and input regarding this plan, as it was sent out to us and
implemented within a 24-hour period. We had no chance to provide our suggestions as to
how we could prevent this from happening or to come up with a solution. We were left to
just pack up our sites and say goodbye after decades of providing exceptional services to
families within Sacramento communities. This comes as a huge surprise during a time
when things have started opening back up, and we had hope of seeing our kids and
families back on Sac City campuses. As one of many career employees who worked
through the pandemic and moved around to multiple unfamiliar programs, I was more
than ready to get back to my site and see my families, children and staff again. I am still
struggling to understand this decision, and I hope that there is still something that can be
done to fix it. Our families, employees and communities deserve better than this.

Speaking as: Employee
Email
Tel:

Date/time Stamp: ~ 4/8/2021 11:12:54 AM
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Name:

Victor Vasquez

Comment:

SCUSD should bring back 4th R for before and after school care and summer daycare.
SCUSD should cancel its contact with the Sacramento Chinese Community Center
because it was a hastily adopted contract that did not consider what is best for the
children and families affected.

My son had been in 4th R for three years before the COVID19 pandemic. I trust the
care that 4th R provided before and after school, and the 4th summer program keeps
children active and engaged. 4th R is a known and trusted program, and I always felt the
4th R staff had our children's best interest as their primary goal.

While the SCCC afterschool program may turn out to provide a good alternative
program, I am looking for continuity and stability for my child. Children have been
heavily affected by the pandemic socially and emotionally, and now that we are
attempting to return to school, 4th R should be there to provide continuity and stability
that our children knew.

I am highly disappointed at the lack of consideration for and communication with
families about SCUSD's decision to cancel 4th R on campuses. Sudden drastic
announcements seem to be SCUSD's mode of operation. After months of emails telling
parents about "Returning Together", we find out that families were not informed by
SCUSD about issues regarding 4th R's return.

My understanding is that SCUSD did not renew 4th R's contract because 4th R could not
guarantee that it could be operational by April 8 and that 4th R needed 6 weeks
advanced notice. SCUSD failed to communicate with 4th R about reopening needs, and
then SCUSD hastily cancelled 4th R and contracted with SCCC. After over a year of no
childcare available, I feel waiting another 6 weeks, or even through the summer, would
have been worth waiting if it meant the return of 4th R. While I understand there may be
families that need afterschool care now, other short-term solutions should have been
considered. Instead, SCUSD decided to scrap the well-run and known 4th R program
altogether.

SCUSD failed its families yet again by not renewing 4th R. 4th R is a beloved trusted
program that has been in operation at SCUSD campuses for over 30 years. SCUSD
needs to bring back 4th R for our children's sake.

Speaking as: Parent/Guardian
Email
Tel:

Date/time Stamp: ~ 4/8/2021 11:14:50 AM
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Name:

Fred Harris

Comment:

Board Members, 1 ask that you reinstate Dr. Mackey and Dr. Simms to the district as the
Assistant Superintendents. How can you blindly support their release when you know
nothing about what they do in our communities. It is suspect to me and everyone
watching, that the 2 BIPOC women are let go, during a pandemic, when they have been
instrumental in supporting our schools and families. You each were elected to stand up
for our communities. This decision has shown failure on each of you to do so. We see
how you treat our BIPOC school board members. Trust that the community will vote
differently in your next elections. Ask Jessie Ryan about that. The community has no
faith in this Superintendent nor his cronies who stand up and say that are making the best
decisions for "our children" and less than half of the students of color are returning to
school this year. That shows that OUR BIPOC community does not want to return to the
same bad education experience that they have endured for decades and worse in these
last 4 years of Aguilar. Even worse, is now we are at an impasse with the most critical
workforce in our district no doubt because of the discriminatory and disrespectful
treatment they continue to receive from Aguilar and his cronies. Most of SEIU are
BIPOC folks. Don't you see the pattern?? Get Aguilar out of here!! Community
Members -Sign the petition to remove him that was started by SEIU! We need real
change and real people who are really here for our folks. The community will not be
silent and stand by anymore. We will continue to advocate for the return of Dr. Mackey
and Dr. Simms and the ousting of Aguilar and Baeta! We want this Board to do the job
we put you all in place for. Start NOW and start TODAY'!

Speaking as: Community Member
Email
Tel:

Date/time Stamp:  4/8/2021 11:28:56 AM
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Name:

Lori Merritt

Comment:

I am beyond disappointed that the board is suggesting that Kit Carson International
Academy cut it's staffing! After attending a school site council meeting last night we
were informed that even though enrollment is projected to increase, the district plans to
cut staffing at KCIA. I heard board members support the IB programs and taking cuts
that would affect IB programs "off the table"...and yet last night there was a convoluted
analogy about parallel lines of that FRP decision and staffing calculations as "different
issues intersecting". The definition of parallel lines in that they never intersect and this
explanation also makes no sense! It is so short-sighted to cut teaching positions of highly
qualified teachers, whom the district has spent money on training. As a community, we
value our teachers! We can't afford to lose them. I predict in the fall, the district will
scramble to fill teaching vacancies and will then need to spend more money training new
teachers. Why is this disfunction allowed to continue? Why are you taking a successful
program with increasing enrollment and eviscerating it? Board Member Garcia, are you
aware that the reason Caleb Greenwood and Kit Carson became IB schools is that they
were both facing declining enrollment? A grassroots community effort to save these
schools chose the IB model and so much community work went into turning these
schools into the high achieving, desirable schools where there are now more families
wanting to enroll their students then there is space for. Without the teachers needed to
keep IB alive at KCIA families will leave the district and how much money will the
district lose as a result? How does it make any sense to take a program that is successful
and cut the things that makes the program successful-the dedicated and highly trained
professionals that make IB happen-the teachers!

Speaking as: Parent/Guardian
Email
Tel:

Date/time Stamp: ~ 4/8/2021 11:37:20 AM
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Name: Dan Okenfuss

Comment: | I am a father of two children in SCUSD. Closing 4thR was a really poor decision
because it forces working parents to secure safe, reliable and affordable after school care
for our children.

Speaking as: Parent/Guardian
Email
Tel:

Date/time Stamp: ~ 4/8/2021 11:37:40 AM
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Name:

Jaymi Alas

Comment:

Jorge A. Aguilar, our Superintendent, recently stated in an email communication, 'T have
confidence in our ability to stand together and do what is best for our students and each
other." I know this is a goal we can all agree on. The 4th R childcare program IS what's
best for our students, parents and community. Affordable, reliable and consistent
childcare is a resource and asset we must not lose, and 4th R provides this. Our children
have suffered academic and social setbacks in this pandemic, and they need a place to
THRIVE. It's great that schools opened up for in-person learning, but without before- or
after-school childcare available, some children can't join in-person learning, due to
working parents' schedule conflicts. 4th R gives parents the option to work and give back
to the community, and gives kids a place to connect, create and thrive. Please consider
the negative effects of taking away yet another source of security in kids' lives, when so
much has already adversely affected them. We trust you to do what is best for our kids,
and we stand together as parents and community members to bring back 4th R. Thank
you for your time and attention to this important matter.

Speaking as: Parent/Guardian
Email
Tel:

Date/time Stamp:  4/8/2021 11:48:46 AM
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Karla Faucett

Comment:

Mr. Aguilar and Board-

I am curious if you have seen SEIU proposals after each bargaining session?
Have you ever seen the Districts bargaining proposals after each session?
Have you ever seen SEIU counter proposals after each session?

Have you ever seen the Districts counter proposals?

I do not believe this has been the case, when in reality you absolutely should be seeing
those proposals and counters. You as a board should realize Aguilar works for you- it is
not and should not be any other way. This is the way the school board is designed.

It is my believe that you are being verbally told what is going back and forth and to add
further dysfunction to the process- you are not being told the truth.

Your hired consultant never knows what she is proposing until she is given a piece of
paper to read. Your bargaining team is never consistent with its people at the table.
Sometimes there are 2 other times up to 6. The way bargaining works- is teamwork.
District puts thoughts forward and SEIU accepts or counters. With this district, everyone
must go back to Aguilar.

That is not bargaining Bargaining is designed that the parties at the table have full power
to make decisions. With SCUSD bargaining there is one District person really
bargaining and that is Aguilar.

Aguilar has never sat at the bargaining table, instead he chooses to hide in his office
where consultant comes back with untruths and no paperwork.

Now that leads to the question- how did you vote to impasse without ever seeing any
exchanged documents from either side?

This is not acceptable. This is a set up for a self-centered Aguilar to want things his way
or the highway. Perhaps if he came to the table he could learn a thing or two. Perhaps he
could do what is best for working classified and students — put safety and health first.
Instead Aguilar is an ostrich with his head in the sand.

Speaking as: SEIU Union Chapter President
Email
Tel:

Date/time Stamp:  4/8/2021 11:50:20 AM
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Marcella Fernandez-Ruiz

Comment:

I write this comment to address the issue of Dr. Simms and Dr. Mackey being released
from the district. As a parent and community member, [ am angry that this Board has
allowed this to happen to 2 women of color and the ONLY Latinas in the district at that
level. Not only that but these women are more educated and qualified than anyone at
that level including Jorge Aguilar the Superintendent. It pains me as a Latina to say that
Aguilar does not represent our Latino community despite what he says. He does not
represent me and my family because he has done nothing to support our English Learner
children and families. Just because he can speak Spanish and translate the comments of
some parents, does not make him our advocate. Mr. Vasquez speaks at EVERY board
meeting telling you all about the challenges at Hiram Johnson and still NOTHING!! Dr.
Simms however, has continuously worked against this issue and challenged the status
quo. Yet SHE is being let go?? Dr. Mackey is new to our district and yet has done more
for our BIPOC community then anyone who has been here in the same position. I don't
even know the other Assistant Superintendents who have been here for years and that is
evidence enough for me of what they are not doing for our kids. Dr. Simms is in our
schools, in our communities and is the fabric of Latinos in Sacramento. I have seen and
heard that Dr. Mackey is in community meetings with parents and other organizations
supporting the work of equity and racism and special education. From what I do know of
her, she is highly experienced and unafraid to speak truth to power and her experiences
and expertise are what we need to make real change in this district. This is why I am
deeply angry by the decision but I know that it has to be racially motivated because these
women call out what is wrong in our district. I ask this school board to reconsider the
vote to release them. I ask this school board to stop allowing this Superintendent to
make decisions that negatively effect our community. I ask this school board to rescind
your vote to release these women. Instead, consider replacing this Superintendent by
checking his record on what he has done for our kids. Check his record on how he has
improved outcomes for our English Learners and special education students. You will
see that he does not measure up and you have paid him for a job NOT well done. But
yet, you want to let go of two women of color who are doing the job despite being
mistreated, disrespected and dehumanized by this man Aguilar and Christine Baeta? 1
think not. You board members know what is right. Do it Please!! Si se puede

Speaking as: Parent/Guardian
Email
Tel:

Date/time Stamp:  4/8/2021 11:51:39 AM
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Soledad Gutierrez

Comment:

To the Sacramento City Unified School Board,

I am writing in support of Dr. Olga Arellano-Simms as her sister and previous coworker.
Dr. Arellano-Simms has all the qualities of a successful leader. Many of you know that
she started as a student assistant working for the Migrant Education Program at the
Newcomer Center in the SCUSD. From there, she continued as a teacher for many years
(dual immersion) and soon moved to becoming an assistant principal, and then a
principal. During her years in all those positions, she not only led in her community, she
established relationships at all levels. As she continued in her current assignment, Dr.
Arellano-Simms continued with the same passion for the work the supports ALL
students, families, and school communities. You may wonder, how do I know that? Well,
I still live in the community where she works. I still come across parents and employees
who know Dr. Arellano-Simms and get to hear about the positive impact she has on the
families. I would encourage you to listen closer to your community and find out for
yourselves. She was Instructional Assistant Superintendent before the SIG grant and her
position should not be affected by the ending of such grant. Please reconsider your
decision to end her her current assignment. The work that she does is the current
definition of EQUITY by the love and passion that she exudes.

Soledad Gutiérrez

Speaking as: Community Member
Email
Tel:

Date/time Stamp:  4/8/2021 11:57:16 AM




From: Julia Willsie 3
Sent: Tuesday, April 6, 2021 9:46 PM
To: SCUSD Public Comment
Subject: Please bring back 4th R!

Warning! This message originates from OUTSIDE the District’s email system. Please verify the sender and contents
before opening attachments or clicking any links. Contact the Technology Services Help Desk at 916-643-9445 with any
guestions.

I am shocked and saddened by the poor communications of Sac City and SCUSD in regards to our after school care. The
4th R after school programs are being replaced, but there is little information on exactly what this new program will be.

My children go to Leonardo da Vinci elementary and we love 4th R. | understand that the current facility can’t even be
used and it’s unknown how and where the new SCCSC program may be.

4th R gave my family and other parents and children a sense of safety and security. To have this option removed with an
unknown program with so few details as a replacement is unacceptable.

During these Covid times, our families have been on nonstop rollercoasters and we need stability. Telling us that our
beloved before and after school program is ending WITHOUT explanation is not okay.

This is my first time ever writing a public comment to the SCUSD. Please help to bring back 4th R!

Sincerely,
Julia Willsie, mother of Jakob and Eli
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From: melissa martinez

Sent: Wednesday, April 7, 2021 10:24 AM

To: SCUSD Public Comment

Subject: Keeping 4thR program in our schools

Warning! This message originates from OUTSIDE the District's email system. Please
verify the sender and contents before opening attachments or clicking any links. Contact
the Technology Services Help Desk at 916-643-9445 with any questions.

To whom it may concemn,

I am writing this letter in regards to bringing back the 4th R program to Sacramento City Schools. My family
was really sad to hear that the school district had decided to not being back the 4th R program and contracted
another program that unfortunately we had not heard anything about it until an email was sent out about a week
ago. We are very upset that the school district would make such a big decision like this without asking for any
of the parents, families, and or childrens opinions in the matter. Our children have already been through alot this
past year and we thought they were going to get some kind of normalcy with at least their before/after school
program when they returned to school. Then we find out it was all changed without any of our input was really
maddening and heart breaking.

My son has been going to the Genevieve Didion 4thR program since he was in Kindergarten and now he is
finishing up 4th grade, and he has loved every year of it. He has made tons of friends there not only with the
children from his school but the director's and all the counselors. And we as parents felt so comfortable with
having my son there and cared for by all the staff that it made being a working parent much easier. And also the
price bracket for childcare was perfect for most families since childcare is so expensive nowadays.

Please reconsider and bring back The 4th R program to ALL Sacramento City Schools not only for our children
but for us parents who depended on this wonderful program to be able to work and provide for our families.

Thank you,
Melissa Martinez

Sent from my MetroPCS 4G LTE Android Device
Get Qutlook for Android
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From: AL PM.- _ L
Sent: Wednesday, April 7, 2021 1:28 PM
To: SCUSD Public Comment

Subject: 4thr

Warning! This message originates from OUTSIDE the District's email system. Please
verify the sender and contents before opening attachments or clicking any links. Contact
the Technology Services Help Desk at 916-643-9445 with any questions.

I am appalled by the decision to dump 4thr in lieu of an unproven program. The reasoning was that they
weren't ready. 4thr is staffing community center school hubs.

The city owns the buildings on the campuses. Do you have permission to reassign them, or do you have plans
for housing kids in classes that have to be cleaned even later by custodial staff?

Why is the program that was hired in lieu of 4thr not ready to go tomorrow when schools are in person?

How are parents supposed to MANAGE around the districts poor planning, constant bad decision making, and
lack of structure? Why is it like this?

Unbelievable.

-Amy Peterson, Parent, Alice Birney and CKM
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From: Staci Stermer < .
Sent: Wednesday, April 7, 2021 2:12 PM
To: SCUSD Public Comment
Cc: Phillip Stermer
Subject: 4/8/21 public comment: retain 4th R in SCUSD

Warning! This message originates from OUTSIDE the District's email system. Please
verify the sender and contents before opening attachments or clicking any links. Contact
the Technology Services Help Desk at 916-643-9445 with any questions.
Hello. We are asking that you walk back the decision to replace 4th R in SCUSD. We had no issue 4th R and feel the program was
enriching our daughters life. We understand the 4th R program would need time to re-staff and organize in order to get up and

running. We are willing to wait until the summer and/or next school year to retain the program. We were expecting to wait anyway.
Please help us retain 4th R and do not force this change. Thank you for your time.

With kindness,

Staci Stermer and Phillip Stermer
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From: Shannon Cooper <« s
Sent: Wednesday, April 7, 2021 2:14 PM
To: SCUSD Public Comment
Subject: Save 4th"R"

Warning! This message originates from OUTSIDE the District's email system. Please
verify the sender and contents before opening attachments or clicking any links. Contact
the Technology Services Help Desk at 916-643-9445 with any questions.

I am writing to voice my concern of the elimination of 4th "R." This program was a vital part of my upbringing as I attended when I
was 6 year old in 1989. 1 later worked as a part time staff for 6 years at the site | attended. 1 created lifetime friendship with my
fellow co-workers and the developer and coordinate that ran the site. To this day, I still speak to them.

Last year when the pandemic shut everything down, the 4th R staff came to the rescue and provided essential childcare at the
community centers throughout Sacramento. The program was put together by the 4th "R" staff over a weekend. They stepped up and
put the community, its children, and their essential parents first. Because that what this staff cares about most: the children and their
families. They put and risked their health first to provide a quality program to children they were unfamiliar with. Because that is
what matters, the children.

After the "Essential Childcare" was over, the 4th "R" staff was again shifted to another program unfamiliar to them. They ran the
summer camp programs at parks throughout the community. Even when the Mayor said that the program was only open in affluent
neighborhood, they stepped up and opened 2 more locations in more undeserved areas of Sacramento. Because that is what this staff
does. They step up and adapt to the circumstances.

Creating the SacClass and providing additional help to those children who lost our on learning, who stepped up again, the 4th "R"
staff. Because that's what they do.

The community center staff has said they would take over the SacClass staff so that the 4th R staff can return to their Sac City
locations. Why was that not an option?

Even after re-opening the Natomas site, the staff was shifted again and working at location unfamiliar to them, because they do what is
asked of them. They always step up.

As a team, 4th "R" would have given up staff from Natomas to reopen Sac City sites. Career people would have steeped up and
subbed over there until full hires started. Because that what they do. THAT'S WHAT WE DO!!

As the Program Coordinator at Witter Ranch Elementary 4th "R" in Natomas, I am willing to send staff over to help re-open our Sac
City locations.

The new program will not even open tomorrow and have said they will not start this school year. Wasnt that the whole point of
eliminating 4th "R?" That Sac City would have childcare once they went back to in person learning.

4™ R is vital to our children’s social and emotional health and is a trusted partner for our children’s care and education.

4™ R at most sites is wait listed. Instead of shutting down a treasured community-owned asset and giving it to a nonprofit, expand all
our options and offer both and all schools and more. We need more childcare, not less!

This is a fee-based program that families pay for; it’s not costing the District any money. So let parents be part of the decision-making
on who and where care will be provided. Don’t make a decision this core to our day-to-day life without engaging us and with no
notice.

1



With all the relief money coming from the feds and state, we should be adding childcare options, not shutting them down.

This is a women’s and children’s rights issue. For women to return to work in any numbers, we must have safe, reliable, trusted, and
quality childcare. 4™ R was exactly that. Bring it back.

4™ R supports families and children in innumerable ways — from affirming gender pronouns to sparking creativity. Our City needs 4t
R to build our next generation.

Offer some limited care options for families that need it but wait for 4™ R to ramp up.

4" R creates community at its sites. Children develop long-lasting relationships, keeps children learning in the summer, is safe and
comforting, and provides relief to families in the middle of a pandemic. We need continuity and consistency. Not chaos.

The new program isn’t close to being ready anyway. Let’s wait for 4" R.

Thank you,

Shannon Carter
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From: Paula Cook [ — .
Sent: Wednesday, April 7, 2021 6:57 PM
To: SCUSD Public Comment
Subject: Save 4th R

Warning! This message originates from OUTSIDE the District's email system. Please
verify the sender and contents before opening attachments or clicking any links. Contact
the Technology Services Help Desk at 916-643-9445 with any questions.

Dear SCUSD Board Members,

My name is Paula Cook and | was a Program Developer at Caleb Greenwood 4™ R for the past 7 years.

Every day | woke up and looked forward to going to work and seeing all the kids that attended our program. We
service on average 100 plus kids a day. Most importantly we serviced over 40 kindergarteners per day. The most
vulnerable and excited kids on the campus. In September, the first day of school they learned that not only was school
fun but being afterschool was fun and safe too. They played. learned, made friends from other classes, and learned to
make safe and good decisions. They learned to take turns and share with others and most important they learned that
no matter what gender, race, ethnicity they were we were all treated equal.

Our primary students learned that homework time could be fun and exciting. Everyone doing homework at the
same time made it cool to be part of the group. If you needed help all you had to do was raise your hand and help was
there. Art projects, outdoor games, puzzles, and team building, hanging out with friends and staff was what made it
cool to be a 4" R cool.

Intermediate students grade 4-6 often think there to old to be in daycare. But the kids who attended our
program were always given the opportunity to be mentors to our younger students. So it was cool to be there with there
peers and sibling all at the same time.

Every parent was greeted at drop off and at pick up because we were more than just childcare providers, we
were a part of their family and their everyday life.

The day the schools closed we closed. Without a chance to say goodbye to our families and reassure them that
if we all just followed COVID protocols we would all be OK. Well, were not all OK. One year many of us have lost friend
and family members to this terrible pandemic. The past year we have not been able to high five our kids or provide a
hug after a rough day at school. We have missed their laughter and smiles and everything that makes each one of them
so special. But there was HOPE. Someday soon the pandemic would be over, and we could all return to school and 4t
R.

Then my world changed again when | was told the job | LOVE was no more. That without talking to us the
worker or the families we serve you took it upon yourself to toss us aside after over 30 years of faithful service. We
understand that the parents were asking for childcare as the schoo! were reopening but they were NOT asking for a new
childcare provider. We also know that the city said we could not be ready to provide care by the first day of school but
neither can the Center.

They DON’T know our kids or our families at a time that our children need what is safe and familiar.

Please reconsider putting 4™ R back on it’s SCUSD campuses as that’s where were meant to be with our kids and
families.

Sincerely,
Paula Cook
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From: Rich Johnson - }

Sent: Wednesday, April 7, 2021 8:35 PM

To: SCUSD Public Comment

Cc: saccityparentsandcaregivers@gmail.com
Subject: Save 4th R Program

Warning! This message originates from QUTSIDE the District's email system. Please
verify the sender and contents before opening attachments or clicking any links. Contact
the Technology Services Help Desk at 916-643-9445 with any questions.

| am extremely disappointed by the decision to switch before and afterschool childcare services at 12 Sac City Unified
locations. 4™ R has been a valued partner for 35 years, and this decision was made abruptly with no knowledge or input
from Sac City families. 4" R’s qualified staff have been embraced by the families and children in our communities, and
have been requested by other Sac City Unified schools to bring these 4'" R services to their campuses.

| was under the impression that the services were switched because the incoming provider could provide services on the
first day of in-person learning. It is now known that this provider is unable to keep that commitment to our families, and
will not be operational for the next several months. How can the School District now justify and defend this decision? |
feel there may be additional motives behind this decision that have not been publicly disclosed.

| request that this decision be rescinded, allowing 4" R to return to Sac City Unified campuses this summer. | have been
informed that this was 4t R’s original proposal that was denied previously. Now that it is known that the new provider
will not be able to perform as promised, there is no justification or defense for this decision.

Thank you.

Rich Johnson
Parent
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From: Not interested Please STOP -

Sent: Wednesday, April 7, 2021 8:53 PM

To: SCUSD Public Comment

Warning! This message originates from OUTSIDE the District’s email system. Please
verify the sender and contents before opening attachments or clicking any links. Contact
the Technology Services Help Desk at 916-643-9445 with any questions.

Hello, I am at a lose for words and I am truly perplexed to the logical reasoning that went into the decision to no
long contract with the 4th R program. For some reason school starts well after most of us have to be at work and
ends well before the majority of us get off, creating the need for before and after-school childcare. Now, that's
there will be no 4th R to fulfill that need, what do you propose as a solution to this new conundrum? Without
childcare we are left with three options:

1. Ask our employer for a change in hours - possibly losing pay (if they oblige).

2. Take a lunch break at 8:30 in the morning so that we can rush home to pick up our student and take them to
school (we can eat after we get off)

3. Quit our job.
None of the above are personally desirable. Without the help the 4th R program provided me, I would not be
able to go to work. If I cannot work I cannot house, clothe, or feed my family; forcing me to apply for welfare.

Taking 4th R from us perpetuates poverty. I imagine no one wants to be responsible for that.

4th R alleviated a huge barrier to being able to work. Not only that, 4th R staff are trust-worthy. When I drop
my student off, I am confident he is being taken care of and protected. The program being on campus added a
layer of peace for me. I could go to work and know my son is all right.

Bring back 4th R. It's the right thing to do. Thank you for your time.

Sincerely,
Ms. T



From: Amy Brown -

Sent: Wednesday, April 7, 2021 10:37 PM
To: SCUSD Public Comment

Subject: Public Comment RE: Save 4thR

Warning! This message originates from OUTSIDE the District's email system. Please

verify the sender and contents before opening attachments or clicking any links. Contact

the Technology Services Help Desk at 916-643-8445 with any questions.
There are many things | can say but saying we all want 4thR back, is an understatement. | may not be a parent of a child
in this district, but as a provider and someone in this field, | feel like | have always had the honor of being the part time
parent of hundreds. Hundreds of children who have who have walked through our doors expecting a friend and a place
to be a kid, but also getting an advocate and another parent. A door in which parents/caregivers walk through and earn
another partner in the village it takes to raise a child. We have given them a safe haven, a home, and an extended
family. 4thR was never a just a service or company that simply provided childcare. For many, this was never even a job.
We showed up every day ready and happy to commit to our children, their families, their schools, and the communities
in which they resided. The number of plays, school events, and life events we at 4thR have all attended, outside of work
hours, has instilled our commitment to each and every child. We have always reached more than a student in a school,
but also their families and their community. Each child, their parents, grandparents, and/or caregiver was a person to us,
with a name, whether we enrolled 30 or 300. They did not hold a dollar sign and were never a token in a bigger agenda,
but a heart in which we delicately cared for until their caregivers could take back over.

This swift decision has done a grave disservice to an entire district, its families, and a partnered program that has always
committed to doing more than just merely showing up. One that has earned its reputation, for years, by simply being
human and connecting with its community. While you may try to replace us with a company that is scrambling to
replicate us, who we were to these families will not be easily replaced. We have waited for more than a year, through a
global pandemic, with excitement and a light at the end of the tunnel, to return to your campuses with your district’s
children. Please, re-consider your decision in demolishing a program that has always been your district and your schools’
family’s supporter and extended family.

Thank you
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April 8, 2021
Good afternoon SCUSD Board and Superintendent Aguilar,

As educators and parents of two SCUSD students, we are excited our children are returning for
in-person instruction. They attend Sutterville Elementary and are equally thrilled to meet their
teachers and see their friends after such a traumatic year. We have always loved our Sutterville
community! As the first and only school our children have attended, we have always been
impressed and extremely grateful for the families we have met, the school’s climate and culture,
their amazing teachers, and wonderful 4th R program. However, our excitement was short-lived
as we received news regarding the closure of 4th R. One of the first questions they asked once
they learned of schools reopening was, “We get to go to 4th R again?” They were devastated to
learn that they would not see their 4th R staff anymore. This is not something that can be
addressed by simply adding a new program. In fact, this is not a “Return Together.” A
significant part of our Sutterville community is not returning. As a district that advertises a
“Return Together,” social emotional learning, support for all students, and accountability to the
local community, we are extremely disappointed and surprised that such a drastic decision was
made without any input from any stakeholders, especially the ones that are directly impacted.
The program not only provided care before and after school, but also met their social emotional
needs. Throughout their time in the program, they have created many memories and have met
many wonderful people. Years later, they still asked if they could go in early or stay later, a true
testament of their wonderful staff. We don’t want just daycare and somewhere to drop them off,
but somewhere they can receive academic support, flourish emotionally and feel safe. This takes
time. Trust and relationships take time. The relationships and bonds they have created have
been torn away and can’t simply be replaced.

All of our SCUSD children’s lives were completely transformed more than a year ago and they
have lived and experienced much more than they can understand. For many, the pandemic
further exacerbated already difficult circumstances. As educators with many years of
experience, including work in other fields working with children, we can attest that the number
one variable of an effective program that makes an everlasting impact on the lives of our youth is
positive relationships. We want 4th R back and we are willing to wait until the fall. This
pandemic has already caused enough trauma, some of which we still don’t know the full impact.
Why add to what our children have experienced? Please consider reinstating the 4th R program
so we can truly “Return Together.”

Thank you for your time and consideration,

-Jaime and Veronica



From: Rose Lazuardi -

Sent: Thursday, April 8, 2021 9:12 AM

To: SCUSD Public Comment

Subject: April 8, 2021 Board meeting- Public comment - Parent

Warning! This message originates from OUTSIDE the District’s email system. Please verify the sender and contents
before opening attachments or clicking any links. Contact the Technology Services Help Desk at 916-643-9445 with any
questions.

| am angry with the dismantling of 4th R. The replacement of a long established program with no transparency or parent
input and no notice is unacceptable. The audacity to sever a 35+ year contract that parents have trusted further
confirms toxic leadership and loses any goodwill or trust in SCUSD administration.

Additionally the excuse given of not being ready, when the new program isn’t either, is weak and shows the district is up
to its own justification behind closed doors.

It is also not acceptable for the district to select a replacement program that is not on par with the current program. It
also prioritizes a specific population of students, and therefore availability may leave working parents with no solution.

It is difficult to compare SCCSC to 4thR as a childcare provider. 4thR requires programmers and developers to carry
Child Development permits, their staff to have ECE units, and they are licensed by the State of California. 4thR has a 14:1
ratio, is open during the summer and school breaks, and before school. When contacting SCCSC, they could not provide
license number, did not know if program manager positions required Child Development Permits, did not have an ECE
requirement for site staff, were closed for summers and all school breaks, were only open before school for select sites,
and had a 24:1 ratio.



From: Lindsay Stephens <

Sent: Thursday, April 8, 2021 9:40 AM
To: SCUSD Public Comment
Subject: Save 4th "R".

Warning! This message originates from OUTSIDE the District's email system. Please
verify the sender and contents before opening attachments or clicking any links. Contact
the Technology Services Help Desk at 916-643-9445 with any questions.

Please listen to my story. | have invested 34 years of my working life to 4th "R". | am a site coordinator at Alice
Birney 4th "R". | want you to understand what you have given up. You have given up experience and a
dedicated staff. Nothing can replace experience and the relationships we have formed with our children and
families for years and how important it is to have stability in these covid times. We stated our ability and
reasons why we could not offer childcare to SCUSD on April 8th and our decision to continue to serve our
current families is an honorable one. We could have offered care in the summer | am sure of it! The Center
snatched away our program based on promises they could not keep and they have not kept. That fact alone
should sway your decision. We are an honorable, hard working caring dedicated group. For the childrens
sake keep us in place. Please reverse your desicion based on the facts: The Center attained your confidence
based on misinformation. We knew they could not possibly open a quality program in time. We know what it
takes to staff and run a quality safe program. Open your hearts to the stong voice of the families YOU
service. Keep 4th "R". Lindsay Stephens



From: Latika Jain -

Sent: Thursday, April 8, 2021 9:59 AM
To: SCUSD Public Comment

Cc: saccityparentsandcaregivers
Subject: Sav 4th "R"

Warning! This message originates from OUTSIDE the District's email system. Please
verify the sender and contents before opening attachments or clicking any links. Contact
the Technology Services Help Desk at 916-643-9445 with any questions.

Dear SCUSD Board Members,

Kindly stop the loss that children and families of this district have experienced. Reinstate 4th "R" childcare to
restore our children's normalcy, their history of care in a program that has been around for over three
decades. Our children and families come first. Let them come back to a 4th "R" program where they feel safe
in and that supports their social emotional growth and learning. What is good and great care needs to be
preserved not replaced!!! Children need a structured predictable environment in this ever changing and
shifting times.

Thank you for your consideration in this very important issue of quality childcare for all our children and
families in this district.

Sincerely,
Latika Jain
Program Coordinator
Golden Empire 4th "R
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From: Stacy Kawahara - .

Sent: Thursday, April 8, 2021 9:59 AM
To: saccityparentsandcaregivers:
Cc: SCUSD Public Comment
Subject: Public Comment 9.0

Warning! This message originates from OUTSIDE the District’s email system. Please verify the sender and contents
before opening attachments or clicking any links. Contact the Technology Services Help Desk at 916-643-9445 with any
questions.

Hi,

My name is Stacy and | was the Program Coordinator at Sutterville 4thR. | have worked for the program since 1997 in
various capacities. The decision to cut ties with the program after 35 years is a travesty. The decisions that were made
behind closed doors without any public or city employee input is appalling. The SCUSD has not been transparent
through this whole process. You speak of the social and emotional well-being of your students but strip them of a
program that was safe, valued, and provided stability. The program we’ve built over the years was more than a
business... we were a family that also had a strong relationship with our school and the community around us.

Please reconsider your decision and reinstate 4thR.

Sent from my iPhone
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From: Adam Link « ~

Sent: Thursday, April 8, 2021 10:28 AM

To: SCUSD Public Comment

Subject: Public Comment - SCUSD April 8 Board Meeting - Termination of 4thR Program

Warning! This message originates from OUTSIDE the District's email system. Please
verify the sender and contents before opening attachments or clicking any links. Contact
the Technology Services Help Desk at 916-643-9445 with any questions.

SCUSD Board and Staff,

I appreciate the Opportunity to provide comment to the Board. I am a parent of a 4 year old son who is currently
registered to attend the Crocker Riverside Kindergarten program for the 2021-22 school year. Part of our
decision to send our son to Crocker, in addition to the hi gh regard many have for the school itself, was the
wonderful things we heard about the 4th R program that would supplement his primary education.

I was recently informed that SCUSD had terminated the 4thR program at Crocker with little notice, public
comment, or justification. My understanding is that 4% R ig incredibly popular, is waitlisted at most sites, and is
a fee-based program that families pay for and does not have any cost or financial impact to the District.

It is not clear why the District would suddenly terminate a popular program that has been operating for several
years and does not financially impact the City, over the objections of many parents and students. It is also not
clear why the District would cancel and replace 4thR with a different program that may or may not be as
effective, or even be up and running by the time the school year begins in the Fall. To the extent that the
decision is related to short term needs for care in the Spring and summer, it seems imprudent and short-sighted
to make a long-term decision to eliminate a successful program for Fall 2021 and beyond in the hopes of
providing short term solutions until that time.

I would like the Board to adequately address what the impetus for this decision was, what alternatives were

considered, whether any public outreach was conducted prior to making this decision, and what steps are

Thank you very much and I look forward to your response.

- Adam Link
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From: Paola Lopez - - -
Sent: Thursday, April 8, 2021 8:32 AM
To: SCUSD Public Comment
Subject: Return to onsite work

Warning! This message originates from OUTSIDE the District's email system. Please
verify the sender and contents before opening attachments or clicking any links. Contact
the Technology Services Help Desk at 916-643-9445 with any questions.

Hello everyone,

I have been working successfully from home since March 2020. Now I am being told to return to onsite work
starting April 12. This is a serious problem for me and many of my coworkers.

For one thing I am not comfortable changing my working conditions having an agreement between my union
and the district. For another thing, I have been searching for affordable childcare and I have not found anything.
I’ve even asked family and friends but they are unable to help at this time. What am I supposed to do starting
next week? I can’t put my kids in school because it is only for three hours two days a week, so I have no way of
getting them to school and back while I am working. I can’t leave my young children home alone. So what are
parents like me supposed to do?

I don’t understand why the district can’t allow parents like me to continue working remotely since it has worked
well for the last year. My union made that proposal and it was rejected without a reason. To me it seems like the
district doesn’t care if I have to lose my job to take care of my kids. Please change your minds and agree with
my union.

Thank you,
Paola Lopez

Accounting department
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From: Toby Reyes - : ) .

Sent: Thursday, April 8, 2021 10:22 AM
To: SCUSD Public Comment
Subject: public comment

Warning! This message originates from OUTSIDE the District's email system. Please
verify the sender and contents before opening attachments or clicking any links. Contact
the Technology Services Help Desk at 916-643-9445 with any questions.

Good evening SCUSD Board Members and to all who are reading this comment,

I am writing this is support of SEIU and it members who represent SCUSD.

Throughout this Pandemic, these difficult times have made for difficult decisions to made by SEIU and their members.
Safety vs. Pay

Why not both?

After all, with $300 million in reserve, why not afford these front line workers the safety and pay they deserve?

More often than not, these are the first people to great families at schools.

These are the people who feed our families day in an day out

These are the people who assist in the classrooms

These are the people who help keep playgrounds, hallways, etc. safe so that our children can attend and enjoy school

These are people who have families, who have financial responsibilities, who have lives and by not addressing their Safety or their
Pay you directly affect what these wonderful people are able to do for our community.

What would a school look like without
An Office Manager?

A food service manager?

Custodial staff

Recess or Hall monitors?

The idea of not having these front line workers at our sites is unthinkable due to the simple fact that they are so vital to the day to day
operations of all of our schools

Thank you
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From: Rosalinda Arellano « _
Sent: Thursday, April 8, 2021 9:02 AM
To: SCUSD Public Comment
Subject: Written Public Comment in Support of Dr. Simms and Dr. Mackey

Warning! This message originates from OUTSIDE the District's email system. Please
verify the sender and contents before opening attachments or clicking any links. Contact
the Technology Services Help Desk at 916-643-9445 with any questions.

To the Sacramento City Unified School Board,
I am writing this public comment in support of Dr. Simms and Dr. Mackey.

First and foremost, I believe it is important that you know that it is a mistake that two Latina women have been
released from their positions of Instructional Assistant Superintendents. Not only are these leaders highly qualified
to be in these positions and qualified to be in positions at a higher level than this classification, the fact that the
Hispanic or Latino population represents 40 percent of the entire district population, it is imperative that students see
representation in their leadership.

Dr. Simms and Dr. Mackey have been a pillars in the community, advocating from day one of their public service
for disadvantaged students and their families. Not only was Dr. Simms raised in the community, her entire public
service has been spent giving the Sacramento City Unified School District tireless efforts to help students. As a
teacher, principal and now Assistant Superintendent, Dr. Simms knows the challenges students and their families
face. Dr. Mackey moved from the East coast and relocated her family to serve our community. She has represented
our community in various stakeholder groups and her name is widely known since her arrival to SCUSD.

On a personal note, Dr. Simms has served as my role model. Growing up, I only knew that higher education was the
only option after finishing high school. There was no other option in our household, because Dr. Simms set the tone
for what was needed to succeed and contribute to our community. I know this because she is my sister. Because of
Dr. Simms, the rest of her siblings followed her footsteps, all achieving higher education degrees and now all
contributing to our communities as public servants. We too came from a disadvantaged background. I highlight this
personal anecdote because I want to drive home how important it is for Dr. Simms to remain in her role and continue
to advocate for students and their families. It’s important for children to see what they can become one day and it is
important to have Dr. Simms at the table to ensure the needs of students are met. It would be a disservice to these
students and their families to remove Dr. Simms and her 20 plus years of experience. Especially now when students
have fallen so behind because of the pandemic.

[ urge you to consider reinstating Dr. Simms and Dr. Mackey to their positions and do what’s best for your students,
especially those who need role models and representation at the table.

Respectfully,

Rosalinda Arellano
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From: Raquel e
Sent: Thursday, April 8, 2021 11:14 AM
To: SCUSD Public Comment
Subject: 4ThR Sacramento City School District SAVE OUR 4ThR!!

Warning! This message originates from OUTSIDE the District’s email system. Please verify the sender and contents
before opening attachments or clicking any links. Contact the Technology Services Help Desk at 916-643-9445 with any
questions.

SAVE OUR PROGRAM! 1!

Why are they eliminating a program that has been so successful and loved especially our location at Hollywood Park
Elementary. This is ridiculous that you are replacing it with the exact same program , our children love the staff at this
location and they are family, they have been caring for most of our children since Kindergarten. PLEASE KEEP OUR
4thRINT We trust the staff with our children, it’s no additional cost for the district to keep this location open to our
students who are in need of safe, reliable and established childcare program . With so much change in the school and

Sacramento City student parent

Sent from my iPhone



7 0

From: Michael Violenta -«

Sent: Thursday, April 8, 2021 10:36 AM
To: SCUSD Public Comment
Subject: Question/Comment

Warning! This message originates from OUTSIDE the District's email system. Please
verify the sender and contents before opening attachments or clicking any links. Contact
the Technology Services Help Desk at 916-643-9445 with any questions.

Why was SCUSD so quick to remove 4th R and replace them with Academy of Scholars? With the current
update from the Academy of Scholars coordinator, license child care will not be given until summer. Wasn’t the
point of them coming on was because they made commitments for April 8th. 4th R was helping the children in
need during the pandemic but could have been ready to go by summer if whoever the decision makers were just
more transparent. It’s disheartening to see SCUSD take a new program when these “all of a sudden” changes
are being made as we speak which doesn’t align with the original plan. 4th R is reputable and the career staff
and staff would go the lengths to be with their families after being ripped apart because of the pandemic.
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From: Wendy Murray PR

Sent: Thursday, April 8, 2021 11:26 AM

To: SCUSD Public Comment

Subject: 4th R

Warning! This message originates from OUTSIDE the District's email system. Please
verify the sender and contents before opening attachments or clicking any links. Contact
the Technology Services Help Desk at 916-643-9445 with any questions.

4th R has been an incredible program for my child. The casual social atmosphere is so valuable in this age
where recess is at a minimum. The option for connecting with peers from many grades and the adults on staff,
be it with outside play, crafts or stories, has had a major impact on my child. Please do not take this wonderful
program away from our children at this time where these kids are so desperate for all that it provides.

Wendy Murray
4th R Hollywood Park mom
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From: Jake Fernandez -

Sent: Thursday, April 8, 2021 11:57 AM

To: SCUSD Public Comment

Subject: Save 4th "R"

Warning! This message originates from OUTSIDE the District's email system. Please
verify the sender and contents before opening attachments or clicking any links. Contact
the Technology Services Help Desk at 916-643-9445 with any questions.

The 4th "R" Program is such an important asset to the SCUSD school community, which the 4th R team
members have provided dedicated service to for many years. We are made up of very committed, educated,
compassionate people, who if given the opportunity, could have been ready to meet each of our 4th "R"
family's needs at the reopening of in-person school. We have already been tested as the pandemic first hit
last year when we were asked to open programs at the community centers in less than a week's notice, and
we did so successfully. And as we continued to push through, we were then faced with the task of offering
programs in public park settings. We rose to the occasion while receiving local neighborhood children, daily,
providing STEAM activities, and recreational fun. The 2020/2021 school year came around and we were then
challenged to take on the Sac CLASS programs, located within four of the local community centers; Oak Park,
Sam Pannell, George Simm, and Hagginwood. The children are met with open arms each day, as we have
taken on the task of assisting children who have been recommended by their school principals to attend our
distance learning programs. As the course of the year turned to winter, the City of Sacramento also asked that
we volunteer at warming centers, to assist with taking in homeless individuals, and offer blankets, and warm
beverages during the extreme freezing cold of the season.

Through each task the city has placed before us, we have assisted, as the dedicated and loyal employees we
are, and to the city we reside.

It's quite disturbing how our dedication and accomplishments to serve our SCUSD schools and families were
overlooked when the decision to replace our program, as though we made no difference to our communities.
And now...as we set..."The Centers" are unable to provide service upon the return of "In-Person" instruction
to our beloved 4th R families, as SCUSD has promised to the families we once served for so many years.

Respectfully,
Jake Fernandez, Program Coordinator
Lori Weber, Program Developer
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From: Jacquenette Reyes -
Sent: Thursday, April 8, 2021 11:55 AM
To: SCUSD Public Comment
Cc: saccityparentsandcaregivers’
Subject: Public comment

Warning! This message originates from OUTSIDE the District's email system. Please
verify the sender and contents before opening attachments or clicking any links. Contact
the Technology Services Help Desk at 916-643-9445 with any questions.

Hello,
[ am submitting a public comment related to the decision to close the 4th R programs.

I was extremely surprised and displeased when I was informed of the closure of the 4th R programs. To be
clear, I am not in favor of closing the 4th R programs. In addition to sharing my thoughts I would like to know
more about how this decision was made without any input from the families that have been participating and
paying for this program. I am a mother of 2 children who are currently enrolled in SCUSD. My oldest has been
enrolled and attended 4th R since he started kindergarten. My family relies on consistent, safe, high quality
child care so that my husband and I can work. It is for the following reasons that I am in favor of keeping the
4th R program open and running:

-Professionalism demonstrated by the staff

-Quick responses to questions/concerns

-Follow through on any questions or concerns

-All of the staff know my child and our family

-Good communication from 4th R to the families

-Most importantly, my child enjoys the 4th R program and is familiar with the program staff

I understand that there was a decision to bring in a new program that would replace 4th R. I am concerned
about potentially introducing another (possibly unnecessary) change for our children during one of the most
challenging years of their lives.

Thank you for your consideration.

-Jacquenette Michael
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From:
Sent:
To:

Subject:

Hello,

Manuela Murillo

Thursday, April 8, 2021 11:26 AM
SCUSD Public Comment
concerns

My name is Manuela Murillo I'm a clerk at woodbine elementary. I'm writing this email to let you now that I'm not
happy with how the district is treating classified workers. | as a mom have 4 kids under 7 years old and | don’t have no
one to take care of them after 12:30 every day. We deserve the same options as the teachers. Please help the classified
employees we have been working since everything started. We need help just like the teachers. | need help with child
care or the option to work from home 4 hours

Manuela Muridlo de Peria

Office Clerk Il

Wovodbine Elementory Sciool

A
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From: Kim Taylor
Sent: Thursday, April 8, 2021 11:03 AM
To: SCUSD Public Comment
Subject: seiu members are essential workers

Warning! This message originates from OUTSIDE the District’s email system. Please
verify the sender and contents before opening attachments or clicking any links. Contact
the Technology Services Help Desk at 916-643-9445 with any questions.

Good morning. I am disheartened to learn our district is not willing to provide classified members with the same
health and safety assurances as the MOU agreed upon by the certified group. They are essential workers and
should be treated as such. Really it boils down to the safety of the children and their families as well. You
agreed upon these safety and health measures. Stay true to your word and agreement by honoring the MOU
parameters for the SEIU group.

They are the heart and soul of our district. They are heroes! They deserve your support and safeguards.

Kim Taylor, Diana Otterson
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From: Krishana Carlton
Sent: Thursday, April 8, 2021 11:31 AM
To: SCUSD Public Comment
Subject: Treat Classified as you would want to be treated

Good afternoon all, I wanted to reach out to whomever this concerns. | am a Classified worker (Instructional Aide) and a
parent. | have been active in this District for over 15 years as a parent and 5 as an employee. | do feel like Classified
workers have been seen as the "bottom of the totem pole", and we are actually the glue that holds EVERYONE together.
It's bad enough that most Classified workers are underpaid. Yes we can go find other jobs such as McDonalds or
Walmart and get paid more, but working at those places is not our true desire. | love my job and enjoy working with
children, that is why | have been in this field for the past 23 years. | am not asking for a million dollars, | am asking to be
treated and valued like you are. We are not asking for much, just the bare minimal. It hurts to know that a company that
| have invested so much in doesn't invest in myself and other classified workers.

Best Regards,
Krishana Carlton

Bowling Green McCoy



From: Carol Lee

Sent: Thursday, April 8, 2021 11:33 AM
To: SCUSD Public Comment
Subject: SEIU proposal

Dear Board Members - and again I'm surprised by the inequities within SCUSD. I shouldn't be, as they have been
glaringly obvious the entire time I have been employed by this District, but I am. The current email from SEIU regarding
bargaining has shown that classified staff is regarded at a much lower level then certificated staff regardless of the fact
that without classified staff at school sites teachers would be unable to provide services to students. It should not have
to be pointed out to management and board members that it takes a variety of people to make this district

function. Teachers teach, office staff ensures that students are properly enrolled, materials are available for teachers to
do their jobs, technology is working, etc., etc., plant managers and custodians ensure that the facilities are clean and safe
for students and staff and principals are responsible for the overall functioning of the site and staff. In other words this is
a team that deserves the benefits and considerations regardless of their classification. The stipends asked for by SEIU for
their members are not outrageous, they're an acknowledgement that we are as valuable and committed to our jobs as
certificated staff. In all honesty I was not expecting SEIU to be negotiating a stipend for those of us who have working
since August in our offices at school sites (my clerk and I included) to be able to continue to take care of the needs of our
teachers, students and parents. I would have been delighted by an acknowledgment from District and upper level
management. I would have been happy to be included in decisions being made on how things would work once we
reopen. Neither of these have happened.

Please give some consideration to the bargaining proposal brought before you on behalf of classified staff. In the grand
scheme of things that have happened during this past year and the dedication that employees have shown to this District,
these are nominal requests. To reject this out of hand is unconscionable, you all are better than this.

Carol Lee
Office Manager
Pony Express Elementary
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From: Amanda Kossow

Sent: Thursday, April 8, 2021 11:35 AM

To: SCUSD Public Comment

Subject: Let Negotiations continue and finalize
Hello,

I must say I am personally feeling devalued and unappreciated by the District. I have been
working nearly non-stop during this pandemic and have completed every task asked of me
regardless of whether I thought it was appropriate to my job description. I will not be doing
that in the future when the District isn't willing to work with our representatives to come to an
agreement over the safety and well being of us all. We are not asking for more considerations
than was easily agreed to with the teacher's union. Why would or should we expect to be
treated with such disregard and unwillingness to take the time to finalize an agreement when it
appears we were actually fairly close to doing so. It seems like the District chickened out at the
last minute when we had almost closed the gap between the proposals and decides to declare a
unilateral impasse. I'm sorry; That's unacceptable and is not in good faith at all. We are a large
group of employees who deserve to feel valued, appreciated, and heard. Let's get this done.

Sincerely,
Amanda Kossow
Matsuyama Office Manager

Friendly Reminders:
o Distance Learning Visit https://learn.scusd.edu/ for additional information and resources.
e Please visit the District’s websites below for enrollment and COVID-19 information.
o at: https://www.scusd.edu/covid-19-enrollment-reqistration-forms
o For general FAQs on COVID-19, please visit our website at: https.//www.scusd.edu/covid-19

We welcome you to view our current job postings as well:
https://www.edjoin.org/Home/Jobs ?state| D=24&countylD=34&districtiD=583
Questions about your Edjoin application, call 888-900-8945
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From: Michele Koehler
Sent: Thursday, April 8, 2021 11:55 AM
To: SCUSD Public Comment
Subject: SEIU workers.

Warning! This message originates from OUTSIDE the District's email system. Please
verify the sender and contents before opening attachments or clicking any links. Contact
the Technology Services Help Desk at 916-643-9445 with any questions.

It is absolutely shameful that the district is not investing in all its employees equitably. Every employee
deserves to come back to school in a safe and non fear based manner. The government has provided millions of
dollars to see this takes place yet the classified workers are being treated with a different set of guidelines.
Shame on you for even letting it get this far. Invest in your staff, every person equally. Walk your talk.
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From: Yamilet Jorlen
Sent: Thursday, April 8, 2021 11:56 AM
To: SCUSD Public Comment
Subject: Bargaining for Classified workers

Good afternoon,

So | would like to understand how my needs as a classified staff differs from a teachers or certificated staff needs? We
are all people! We all are facing challenging and unsure times! | never thought in a million years after everything | have
done for my site and for the children at my site, | would be treated in such a manner. | have always gone above and
beyond my job description and to not be treated adequately is a slap in the face. | have worked for the district for over
ten years now and should not be treated like chopped liver! We too need childcare! We too need to be protected from
the Coronavirus! The classified staff are typically your support staff and | highly doubt that any site can run properly!



From: Tina Favela

Sent: Thursday, April 8, 2021 11:57 AM
To: SCUSD Public Comment

Cc: Karla Faucett; _
Subject: Do the right thing

To the SCSUD School Board,

Myself and other classified workers have been dedicated to supporting our students this past year because to work in the
field of education and with students is a labor of love. We love and care about the safety and wellbeing of our students at
the risk of our own health and safety and the safety of our families that we go home to. We admire great leaders of the
past- People like Martin Luther King Jr and Cesar Chavez. They fought for equality. They fought to keep people safe and
here we are in systems of education, teaching and encouraging our students to do the right thing and speak up against
systems that would put people at risk and we find ourselves in the same position.

How disheartening to see the actions of this board! It is n0f unreasonable to want to be safe at our work sites. It is not
unreasonable to compensate workers who have been consistently supporting our students and school communities. At a
time when the pandemic has taken the lives and livelihood of so many, for the district to withhold COVID Relief funds and
deny the requests of the classified unions, 7t is unreasonable to ask the workers who keep the great SCUSD machine
running to survive on so little. We ask for compensation, we ask for safety, we ask for the same opportunities for
childcare that you have given teachers. We ask that you think of the words and actions of Martin Luther King Jr and Cesar
Chavez, to act with kindness and empathy toward the human struggle and to do the right thing! "The time is always right
to do what is right." -MLK Jr.

Yours in community strength,

Florentina Favela

Parent Advisor

John D. Sloat Elementary
\

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This email message, including attachments, is for the sole use of the
intended recipient(s) and may contain confidential and privileged information. Any unauthorized review,
use, disclosure and/or distribution is prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the
sender by reply re-email and destroy all copies of the original message.



From:
Sent:
To:

Cc:
Subject:

Debra Durazo

Thursday, April 8, 2021 11:59 AM
SCUSD Public Comment

'Karla Faucett'

Public comment

Good evening Mr. Aguilar and Board Members,
As you know this past year has been very challenging. It has changed the way we work, the way we celebrate events,
and the way we function in our everyday lives. | am asking that instead of bringing in costly lawyers and months of
litigation that you support the Classified workers of SCUSD. Did you forget that employees are parents of students in
the district? Do you understand the impact on how employees feel that are not being allowed to bring their children to
work when a co-worker can? The districts MOTTO is FAMILIES FIRST, and yet district employee’s families are not
important if parents cannot provide child care for their children. Wake up and pay attention to your most vulnerable
employees that don’t have child care or options for child care. They are feeling the stress and anxiety of returning to
work or stay home UNPAID to be able to care for their children.

Someone recently shared a comment with me | would like to add, this school board has always been quick to jump

over a dollar to save a nickel!!!
Thank you-

Debra Durazo
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From: Anne Jirasritumrong
Sent: Thursday, April 8, 2021 11:59 AM
To: SCUSD Public Comment
Subject: COVID funding

Where is the 300 million dollars going? How are you making schools safe for students, teachers and staff? With
that much money we need to hire more people in the field. So much technology out there with not enough techs
to support it. We are overworked and understaffed.

Get Outlook for i0S
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From: Martha Ortega

Sent: Thursday, April 8, 2021 11:59 AM

To: SCUSD Public Comment

Subject: Message to SCUSD BOARD AND SUPERINTENDENT AGUILAR

My message to this board is that myself and brothers and sisters of SEIU 1021 have been used to run this district and
school sites without acknowledging our hard work that we all do and although we continue in these jobs, we do it for
our students, their families and all who see our work, we do this on a continued basis for the well-being of our

students, kid, and our own families! As far as “Superintendent Aguilar” who seems to think he deserves another 35%
raise is a joke in itself not to mention, embarrassing! We who have been here in this school district for a lot longer than
our current Superintendent deserve to be heard!! We also stand with the Teachers of Sacramento City Unified School
District to say, “Enough is Enough”

Pay us what we deserve and for our hard work even before COVID19 started!! Many of us have worked through this
COVID AND WE DESERVE TO BE COMPENSATED FOR IT.

Martha Ortega
Attendance Tech / Registrar
Xit Carson International Academy

-

-~ -
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From: Sally Uhlig

Sent: Thursday, April 8, 2021 12:01 PM

To: SCUSD Public Comment

Subject: Layoffs for 2021-22 -ESSR funds available

| am the Registrar at American Legion HS, the only continuation HS in this District. | am on the layoff list with two co-
workers for next school year with no justification to take away support for our most High Risk Students and that |

understand that the district received funds call ESSER.
The Funds allow:
The law allows districts to spend their money on a broad range of things, from laptops and internet hotspots to cleaning

supplies, face masks, teacher training, and even staff salaries. Districts can use the money to cover the costs from last
spring or to make purchases for the new school year .



From:

Sent:
To:

Subject:

Susan Ann Lee

Thursday, April 8, 2021 12:03 PM
SCUSD Public Comment

Justify this to me.....cc.coeen. can you???

Per my SEIU President I understand that there are some pretty common-sense-lacking items not
being fairly addressed by SCUSD. The items I list below are direct info from my union and they are
not unreasonable. There should be equity for return parameters between the SEIU workers and the
SCTA workers....their safety, interests and needs need to ‘mirror’ each other.....not contrast each
other, i.e.;

distance agreements 3’ or 6’ ....not distances for the different unions — makes no sense....
Barriers at places that bring concern of close contact that are difficult to avoid — plexi-glass is
too expensive?.... no it isn’t... isn’t this where we use CARES funding for safe return?....

Why can SCTA bring their children to work and not SEIU?....this isn’t mirroring anything, it’s
differentiating! --- NO excuse!

$300 MILLION in COVID dollars....this should have a TRANSPARENT & READILY
VIEWABLE TO ALL report showing what SCUSD & the Board are planning to do with this
money....you can’t tell me it’s completely ear marked for everything BUT what our union is
needing...???! “Show me/us the money”!

Over this last year the expression has been, “We're all in this TOGETHER...”.... aren’t we?.....
my/Webster’s definition of ‘together’ — see below, certainly isn’t looking very much like what
we are hearing/seeing come from our district to the SEIU & SCTA members. Wait, are you
saying this whole last year has been a farce?......apparently don’t match what is currently
happening... did Common Sense really die according to Google?......

https://www.merriam-webster.com/dictionary/together

to-geth-er | \ ta-'ge-thar \
Definition of fogether
(Entry 1 of 2)

1a: in or into one place, mass, collection, or groupthe men get together every Thursday
for poker

b: in a body : as a groupstudents and faculty together presented the petition

2a: in or into contact, connection, collision, or unionmix these ingredients together

b: in or into association or relationshipcolors that go well fogether

3a: at one time : SIMULTANEOUSLYevents that happened together

b: in successionwas depressed for days fogether

4a: by combined action : JOINTLYfogether we forced the door

b: in or into agreement or harmonythe soloist and the orchestra weren't quite together

1



c: in or into a unified or coherent structure or an integrated wholecan't even put a simple
sentence fogether

5a: with each other —used as an intensive after certain verbsjoin fogetheradd together
b: as a unit : in the aggregatethese arguments taken together make a convincing case
c: considered as a whole : counted or summed upall together, there were 21 entries

together

adjective
Definition of together (Entry 2 of 2)

1: appropriately prepared, organized, or balanced
2: composed in mind or manner : SELF-POSSESSED

e [apparently don’t match what is currently happening... did Common Sense really die
according to Google?......

Here are some of the issues we are having that are saying that SEIU has to make decisions that put the
health and safety of our students and staff at risk.

« Common good:

e Classified workers have gone above and beyond throughout this pandemic to serve
our students and our communities

» We want to return to work safely so we can provide for students and our
communities, but the district is refusing to reach a fair agreement

o The district is violating the law by pressuring workers to return to work without an
agreement on how to do so safely.

« Aguilar has focused his time and energy on trying to divide workers rather than
bring us all together to find solutions. This is shameful. We are calling on the
district to get this deal done so we can go back to safely supporting students and
their families.

o Safety

o Workers are at very close range with students

« We have proposed ng5 masks for a small number of workers including fit testing
the masks. Without fit tests the masks don’t work right.

« We have asked for plexiglass barriers, especially in places where close contact is
difficult to avoid.

« The district agreed before that six feet distance was acceptable at first but now
want to backtrack on that to three feet

« These are simple, common-sense precautions but Superintendent Aguilar has
thrown up roadblocks at every turn.

o Childcare

« They are allowing teachers to bring their children to school for childcare but are
denying that right to classified workers

« SEIU gave them a cost-neutral proposal and they turned it down

« Compensation

« The district has more than $300 million in COVID dollars but they are refusing to

invest it in a safe reopening that will benefit students, families, and workers



Susan {Inn logg
FACE Technician, SCUSD
Student Support & Health Services

=

** “Happiness is excitement that has found a settling down place, but there is always a little corner that
keeps flapping around.” ~ E.L. Kongisburg **
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From: Nancy Woodbury

Sent: Thursday, April 8, 2021 12:04 PM
To: SCUSD Public Comment
Subject: Safety for all

Dear Board,

We have a responsibility to respect each individual. Show, care lovingly for each and everyone in the community. Safety
for oneself encourages us think better and to enjoy our students/families to the fullness. If we are not safe to take care
of ourselves. How are we to take care of students and families. The SCUSD has received a large amount of funding to
achieve student/ family safety. Let's do this together and assist for the better good of all. This is our responsibility for
our future and students.

Nancy Woodbury



Comments from David Fisher, President of the Sactamento City Teachers Association to the
Sacramento City Unified School District, April 8, 2021.

Agenda Item #9.0 Public Comment

On March 25, 2021, the District’s agenda for tonight’s meeting included the 2019-20 Audited
Financial Statement. Normally the Audited Financial statement is presented to the boatd in
December, approximately 5 months after fiscal year ends on June 30.

Inexplicably, the in the revised agenda this item is removed.

Is that because the Supetintendent, Chief Business Officer and SCOE are embarrassed by its
findings?

In it, the independent auditor confirms that while the District projected a $20,895,631 deficit for
2019-20, it actually ended the year with a $21,819,224 surplus. That’s a turnaround of $43 million in
one year. How can the district’s so-called experts continue to be so wrong for so long?

The independent audit also confirms that the District has a reserve fund of $93,048,611 the highest
in its history.

The District and SCOE repeat over and over again that it has “structural deficit.” In order to have a
structural deficit, a district must first have a deficit to begin with. Here again the eighth time in the
last nine years, the District has ended the year with a surplus. That explains how the District reserve
fund has grown for $12.7 million in 2012-13 to its present $93 million.

We applaud the majority of the board who rejected the misleading “negative” budget
recommendation from the Superintendent, Chief Business Officer and SCOE. As a result, we are a
mere twelve weeks away from the end of SCOE’s abysmal financial oversight of the District. this
will result in hundreds of thousands in savings since SCUSD will no longer be footing the bill for
SCOE’s “services.” As a reminder, it was with SCOE’s “ovetsight” that the District forgot to count
five schools in 2019, a $24 million “mistake,” that SCUSD and SCOE then kept secret from the

public.

We look forward to a new era of fiscal accountability and transparency.
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Sgcramgnto SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
City Unified BOARD OF EDUCATION
”‘School District

e Agenda ltem# 7.3

Meeting Date: April 8, 2021

Subject: Independent Audit Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020,
Submitted by Crowe LLP

Information Item Only

Approval on Consent Agenda

Conference (for discussion only)

Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: )
Conference/Action

Action

Public Hearing

D ¢

Division: Business Services

Recommendation: Receive the Independent Audit Report for the Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 2020, submitted by Crowe LLP.

Background/Rationale: Education Code Section 41020 requires school districts to
conduct an annual audit of all funds under the jurisdiction of the Governing Board. The
Sacramento City Unified School District is currently under contract with Crowe LLP to
conduct this annual audit of district records.

Crowe LLP has completed the audit for the 2019-20 fiscal year. State law requires that
the Board of Education review the annual audit report. These reports are filed with the
County Superintendent, State Department of Education and the State Controller’s
Office.

Financial Considerations: Contract for audit services - $135,000.00

LCAP Goal(s): Family and Community Empowerment; Operational Excellence

Documents Attached:

1. Executive Summary

2. Independent Audit Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020, Submitted by Crowe
LLP

Estimated Time: 10 Minutes
Submitted by: Rose Ramos, Chief Business Officer
Approved by: Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent

Page 1 of 1



Board of Education Executive Summary |
Business Services Sacramento

Independent Audit Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 City Unified
Submitted by Crowe LLP School District
April 8, 2021

I. OVERVIEW/HISTORY:

Per Education Code section 41020, each year districts are required to conduct an annual audit of funds
under the jurisdiction of the Governing Board by January 31. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the State
of California extended the deadline for the 2019-20 audit report due date until March 31, 2021.

The firm of Crowe LLP audited the financial statements of the district for the year ended June 30, 2020.
The audit is conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. These standards require that the audit is planned and
performed to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. The audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation and internal controls.

Findings and recommendations are reviewed by district staff with corrective action responses provided
in the audit report. In addition, the prior year findings and recommendations section of the audit report
reflects the status of previously identified corrective actions.

Staff and Crowe LLP will present the 2019-20 audit report at tonight’s April 8th Board Meeting.

Il. DRIVING GOVERNANCE:

e Education Code section 41020 outlines the requirements for the annual audit; scope of
examination; licensing requirements and other limitations; contents of auditor’s report;
corrections; certification.

e Education Code section 41020.3 states that by January 31 of each year, the governing body of
each local education agency shall review, at a public meeting, the annual audit of the local
education agency for the prior year, any audit exceptions identified in that audit, the
recommendations or findings of any management letter issued by the auditor and any
description of correction or plans to correct any exceptions or management letter issue.

Business Services 1
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Board of Education Executive Summary -
Business Services Sacramento

Independent Audit Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 City Unified
Submitted by Crowe LLP School District
April 8, 2021

Il. BUDGET:

The cost of the annual audit for the year ending June 30, 2020 was $135,000. This is a General Fund
expenditure.

IV. GOALS, OBJECTIVES AND MEASURES:

Meet required timeline for annual audit report review by the Board.

V. MAJOR INITIATIVES:

Use findings and recommendations as a guide to ensure continuous improvement.
Vi. RESULTS:

Work towards the preparation of the annual audit will continue throughout the year. The initial audit
starts in the spring of each year.

VII. LESSONS LEARNED/NEXT STEPS:

e Continue working with external auditors to review processes and procedures.
e Ensure recommendations and corrective actions are implemented.

Business Services



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2020



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
WITH SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

CONTENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ....ciiiiirii it cinissss s ssss s s s b saas s s s s nans 1
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS ...t b s s 4
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION ..ot s siras s sssessassss s st sssssisss s sans s 16
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES ... ieiicieiiiciirrssiiiisssssass s b esssasssesssshassssss esenssar s sa s e s s b s b s esseas 17
FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS.........omrenee e i 18
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET - TO THE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION .....ooiiiiiiciiicis it ssiae st st i s s sasbaseas sovaes 19

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE IN FUND
BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS ...ttt et 20

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - TO THE

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES ...t s s e 21
STATEMENT OF FUND NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUND - SELF-INSURANCE

[N OO TP UU VS RU ST UPO ORISR 23
STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET POSITION -

PROPRIETARY FUND - SELF-INSURANCE FUND .....cccociiiimimminines i 24
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUND - SELF-INSURANCE FUND.............. 25
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION - TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS.........cccceonevvev. 26
STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION - TRUST FUND ......coeeiiiiiiininean 27
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ..ottt 28

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:
GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE ..o 62
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS.........cccvviriiicenen 63
SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S CONTRIBUTIONS - OPEB........ccocniiiirene 64
SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF
THE NET PENSION LIABILITY . .eeieieieeienietceiasisssssiasenssssns s sases s ss s s sa s s sns s s ss basssssssssnes 65

SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S CONTRIBUTIONS ........cciciiiiiiiiiiniiinnissesisissn s 67



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
WITH SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

CONTENTS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: (CONTINUED)
NOTE TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION ..o s 69
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - ALL NON-MAJOR FUNDS ..o 71
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE IN
FUND BALANCES - ALL NON-MAJOR FUNDS. . ceeneeresneeneransrnnenenens (2

ORGANIZATION ...eereeemeeirreareinsissiestsssiaes i sasassssaesse s s sasassssrasassssssssarssass smsssasass sasessst ssbs s s e e e b e srs 73

SCHEDULE OF AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE ..o e 74

SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL TIME ...c..ooiiiiiiiinieiiiniis ittt st ssiaa s sens s sneess 75

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURE OF FEDERAL AWARDS..........cccocmmmnieiiniiiiinniiisssss s 76

RECONCILIATION OF UNAUDITED ACTUAL FINANCIAL REPORT WITH AUDITED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. ...t i siss s sssessan e e sha s sba s s aa s s e en s e na s n e ses seasns 79

SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL TRENDS AND ANALYSIS - UNAUDITED........ccoveiiiiiiniiiiiiinns 80

SCHEDULE OF CHARTER SCHOOLS ... .ccctiiiiiiciiiiiiiaiesnesses e e snesssssssisn s snssssa s ssnsssisanass 81

SCHEDULE OF FIRST 5 REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES........ccoiimiiimiiiinnies s 82

NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION ......ocoirimiiiiieicie it siissnan s sns e s ns 83
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH STATE LAWS AND

REGULATIONS ..o ceiciiiicsiiaiansisists ssessrassanasanasssssonsss sabss sosssobe sniseamsassassnanssassasssse e s sssanssresssaersassnses 85
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN

AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS ..........cccovviiiiiinissinent s st 88
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE FIRST 5

SACRAMENTO COUNTY PROGRAM. ......oiociiiiii it iiretsnes e s st sms s s s 90

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE .............. i)

FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS. ... 93

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS



Crowe LLP

independent Member Crowe Global

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Education
Sacramento City Unified School District
Sacramento, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of Sacramento City Unified School District, as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
Sacramento City Unified School District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

Opinions

in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the Sacramento City Unified School District, as of June 30, 2020, and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

(Continued)



Emphasis of Matter - Management'’s Plan

As discussed in Note 14 of the financial statements, the District has suffered from declining student
enrollment and attendance percentages, cost pressures related to escalating pension and healthcare costs
and costs associated with Special Education program and facilities requirements and significant deficit
spending in the General Fund. Management's plan in regard to these matters is described in Note 14. Our
opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's
Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 to 15 and the Required Supplementary Information, such as the
General Fund Budgetary Comparison Schedule, the Schedule of Changes in Net Other Postemployment
Benefits (OPEB) Liability and Related Ratios, the Schedule of the District's Contributions — OPEB, the
Schedule of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability, and Schedule of the District's
Contributions on pages 62 to 68 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by Governmental Accounting
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods
of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses
to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide
any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Sacramento City Unified School District's basic financial statements. The accompanying
schedule of expenditure of federal awards as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR)
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards, and the other supplementary information listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes
of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The schedule of expenditure of federal awards and other supplementary information as listed in the table
of contents are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information, except for
the Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis, has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the schedule of expenditure of federal awards and other supplementary information as listed in the table of
contents, except for the Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis, are fairly stated, in all material respects,
in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on it.

(Continued)



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 24, 2021
on our consideration of Sacramento City Unified School District's internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on the effectiveness of Sacramento City Unified School District's internal control over financial reporting or
on compliance. That reportis an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering Sacramento City Unified School District's internal control over financial reporting
and compliance.

Cveue P

Crowe LLP

Sacramento, California
March 24, 2021




Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) Section of the audit report is District management'’s overall
view of the District’s financial condition and provides an opportunity to discuss important fiscal issues with the
Board and the public. The MD&A is an element of the reporting model adopted by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) in their Statement No. 34. Certain comparative information is required to be presented
in this document.

District Overview

Sacramento City Unified School District (the “District’), located in Sacramento County, is the thirteenth largest
school district in California regarding student enrollment. The District provides educational services to the
residents in and around Sacramento, the state capital. The District operates under the jurisdiction of the
Sacramento County Office of Education, although the District has attained “fiscal accountability” status under
California Education Code.

For fiscal year 2019-20, the District operated 42 elementary schools (grades K-6), seven elementary/middle
schools (grades K-8), six middie schools (grades 7-8), two middle/high schools (grades 7-12), seven high
schools (grades 9-12), three alternative schools, two special education centers, two adult education centers, 16
charter schools (including five district operated charter schools) and 42 children’s centers/preschools serving
infants through age 12.

The graph below shows the District's enrollment trend, net of charter school enrollment. The District's enroliment
and average daily attendance (ADA) continue to decline year over year. The District is funded based on its ADA,
which is tracked daily with staff following up on areas of concern. The District averages approximately 95% ADA
to enroliment.

Enrollment Compared to Average Daily Attendance
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COVID-19 Impacts

On March 13, 2020, California Governor Gavin Newsom issued Executive Order N-26-20, proclaiming a State
of Emergency to exist in California as a result of the threat of the COVID-19 virus, and providing that if any
California school districts, county offices of education, and charter schools (each a “Local Educational Agency”
or "LEA") closes its schools to address COVID-19, the LEA will continue to receive state funding during the
period of closure. The Governor also signed Senate Bill 117 (“SB 117”) as urgency legislation effective
immediately. For purposes of school district funding for fiscal year 2019-20, SB 117 limits the average daily
attendance reported to the California Department of Education to include the full school months from July 1,
2019, to February 29, 2020. This condensed ADA period applies to school districts that comply with Executive
Order N-26-20. SB 117 further states the intent of the State Legislature that a school district's employees and
contractors be paid during the period of a school closure due to COVID-19. SB 117 also waived instructional
time penalties that would otherwise accrue, as long as the school district superintendent, county superintendent
or charter school administrator certify that the closure due to COVID-19 caused the school district to fall below
applicable instructional time requirements. While SB 117 provided some immediate relief to school districts, the
short-term and long-term impacts of the COVID-19 outbreak are unknown as the situation continues to evolve.

Governance
The District is governed by a Board of Education consisting of seven members and one non-voting student
member. The regular members are elected to staggered four-year terms every two years. As a result of the

passage of two ballot measures at the November 7, 2006 election, beginning in 2008, Board member elections
are no longer held district-wide but instead are held among voters who reside in each of seven trustee areas.

Strategic Plan and Guiding Principle

The District's Strategic Plan 2016-2021 makes a commitment to provide every student with access to
opportunities for success. It functions like a blueprint, outlining a vision for our schools in the future and providing
the steps necessary to attain the vision. The Strategic Plan also guides the District's Local Control and
Accountability Plan, pairing actions with resources.

The District's Mission:

Students graduate as globally competitive lifelong learners, prepared to succeed in a career and higher
education institution of their choice to secure gainful employment and contribute to society.

The District's Vision:
Every student is a responsible, productive citizen in a diverse and competitive world.
The District's Core Values:

e Equity: Commitment to reducing the academic achievement gap by ensuring that all students have
equal access to the opportunities, supports and the tools they need to be successful.

e Achievement: Students will be provided with a relevant, rigorous and well-rounded curriculum, with the
expectation that all will be well prepared for a career and post-secondary education.

e Integrity: Communication and interaction among and between students, parents, staff, labor and
community partners is defined by mutual respect, trust and support.



e Accountability: Commitment to transparency and ongoing review of data will create a culture focused
on results and continuous improvement in a fiscally sustainable manner.

The District's Goals:

e College, Career and Life Ready Graduates: Challenge and support all students to actively engage in
rigorous and relevant curriculum that prepares them for college, career, and a fulfilling life, regardless of
zip code, race/ethnicity, ability, language proficiency, and life circumstance.

e Safe, Emotionally Healthy and Engaged Students: Provide supports and opportunities to ensure that
every student succeeds, with safe school environments that foster student engagement, promote daily
attendance, and remove barriers to learning.

e Family and Community Empowerment: Commit to a welcoming school environment for our community;
recognize and align district partnerships; and provide tools and family empowerment opportunities that
are linked to supporting student academic achievement and social emotional competencies in order for
families to be equal and active partners in their child's educational success.



Strategic Plan and Guiding Principle (Continued)

e Operational Excellence: Be a service-focused organization. Consistently serve students, families, staff
and community with efficient and effective programs, practices, policies and procedures at every point of
contact across the district.

In addition to the Strategic Plan, the District's Equity, Access, and Social Justice Guiding Principle — All students
are given an equal opportunity to graduate with the greatest number of postsecondary choices from the widest
array of options — guides decision making and resource allocation.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This annual report consists of five parts: (1) management's discussion and analysis (this section); (2) the financial
statements; (3) required supplementary information; (4) supplementary information and (5) findings and
recommendations.

The remainder of the MD&A highlights the structure and contents of each of the statements.

The financial statements include two kinds of statements that present different views of the District: district-wide
financial statements and fund financial statements. The financial statements also include notes that explain some
of the information in the statements and provide more detail.

The first two statements are district-wide financial statements that provide both short-term and long-term
information about the District's overall financial position. The Statement of Net Position includes all of the
District's assets and liabilities and deferred outflows and inflows of resources. All current year revenues and
expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Activities regardless of when cash is received or paid. The
District's activities are divided into two categories:

e Governmental activities — Most of the District's basic services are included here, such as regular and
special education, transportation and administration. State support from the Local Control Funding
Formula (LCFF) and categorical apportionments finance most of these activities.

e Business-type activities — The District does not currently have any business-type activities.
These two financial statements start on page 16.

The remaining statements are fund financial statements that report on the District's operations in more detail
than the district-wide statements. These statements begin on page 18.

The statements are followed by a section of required supplementary information and supplementary information
that further explains and supports the financial statements with a comparison of the District's budget for the year.

District-wide Financial Condition

The Statement of Net Position is a district-wide financial statement that reports all that the District owns (assets)
and owes (liabilities). The District displays the book value of all district assets including buildings, land and
equipment, and related depreciation, in this financial statement. Land is accounted for at purchase cost, not
market value, and is not depreciated. Many school sites have low values because the District acquired the land
many decades ago. School buildings are valued at their historical construction cost less depreciation.



District-wide Financial Condition (Continued)

Comparative financial information as of June 30 from the Statement of Net Position is summarized in the

following table:

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019 Variance % Difference
Capital Assets $634,742,766 $600,730,370 $34,012,396 6%
Other Assets $318,570,580 $310,512,830 $8,057,750 3%
Total Assets $953,313,346 $911,243,200 $42,070,146 5%
Deferred Outflows of Resources $210,452,896 $207,918,514 $2,534,382 1%
Current and Other Liabilities $73,558,105 $71,284,242 $2,273,863 3%
Long-Term Liabilities $1,663,304,598 $1,608,818,718 $54,485,880 3%
Total Liabilities $1,736,862,703 $1,680,102,960 $56,759,743 3%
Deferred Inflows of Resources $254,121,097 $297,434,156 ($43,313,059) -15%
Net Investment in Capital Assets 0
(net of related debt) $147,137,588 $101,653,692 $45,483,896 45%
Restricted Net Position $60,141,603 $110,686,852 ($50,545,249) -46%
Unrestricted Net Position ($1,034,496,749) | ($1,070,715,946) $36,219,197 3%
Total Net Position ($827,217,558) ($858,375,402) $31,157,844 4%

At the end of fiscal year 2019-20, the District had a total value of $1,261,041,707 in capital assets. Capital assets
include land, buildings, site improvements, equipment and work in progress. Total accumulated depreciation
amounted to $626,298,941. Net capital assets totaled $634,742,766, an increase of $34,012,396 from prior year.

Current and other liabilities include accounts payable, unpaid self-insurance claims and unearned revenue. The
District ended the year with a total of $1,736,862,703 in outstanding obligations, which was an increase of
$56,759,743 over the prior year. The primary reason for the increase in liabilities was an increase of $41.7M in
net OPEB liability and $13M increase in net pension liability.




District-wide Financial Condition (Continued)

The Statement of Activities is a district-wide financial statement that reports the District’s cost of instruction and
other district activities, and the resources that fund individual and general activities of the District. Comparative

financial information for the year ended June 30 is presented in the following table:

30-Jun-20 30-Jun-19 Variance % Diff

Expenses

Governmental Activities:

Instruction $404,009,047 $419,527,389 ($15,518,342) -4%
Instruction-Related Services $74,907,523 $81,354,730 ($6,447,207) -8%
Pupil Services $76,687,871 $79,300,531 ($2,612,660) -3%
General Administration $27,513,618 $28,744,402 ($1,230,784) -4%
Plant Services $57,996,921 $55,258,398 $2,738,523 5%
Interest on Long-Term Debt $23,461,485 $23,707,226 ($245,741) -1%
All Other Expenses and Outgo $5,383,065 $4,878,550 $504,515 10%
Total Governmental Activity Expenses $669,959,530 $692,771,226 ($22,811,696) -3%
Revenues

Charges For Services $7,711,938 $2,112,660 $5,599,278 265%
Operating Grants and Contributions $171,956,963 $192,849,110 ($20,892,147) -11%
Capital Grants and Contributions $0 $0 $0 0%
Taxes Levied for General Purposes $113,311,579 $104,041,329 $9,270,250 9%
e echasSeeeD $63,160,559 |  $50,109,796 |  $13,050,763 |  26%
Unrestricted Federal and State Aid $332,180,511 $328,765,116 $3,415,395 1%
Interest and Investment Earnings $3,775,001 $4,986,848 ($1,211,847) -24%
Interagency Revenues $2,314,622 $2,424,979 {$110,357) -5%
Special and Extraordinary Items $0 $1,360,162 ($1,360,162) -100%
Miscellaneous $6,706,201 $9,862,501 ($3,156,300) -32%
Total Revenues $701,117,374 $696,512,501 $4,604,873 1%
Change in Net Position $31,157,844 $3,741,275 $27,416,569 733%




District-wide Financial Condition (Continued)

The District overall experienced a $31,157,844 increase in net position. Total revenues increased by 1% or
$4,604,873 from the 2018-19 fiscal year and total expenditures decreased by 3% or $22,811,696 from the 2018-
19 fiscal year. The decrease in expenditures is primarily due to a decrease in Instructional expenditures as a
result of school closures during the COVID-19 pandemic.
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Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the District's most significant funds. A
fund consists of a self-balancing set of accounts that the District uses to track specific sources of funding and
spending on particular programs:

Some funds are required by State law and by bond covenants.

The District establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular purposes (such as
cafeteria funds) or to show that it is properly using certain revenues (such as community facility funds).

The District has three kinds of funds:

Governmental Funds - Most of the District's basic services are included in governmental funds, which
focus on (1) how cash, and other financial assets that can be readily converted to cash, flow in and out;
and (2) the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. Consequently, the governmental
funds statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps you determine whether there are more or
fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the District's programs. Because
this information does not encompass the additional long-term focus of the district-wide statements, we
provide additional information at the bottom of the governmental funds statements that explain the
relationship (or differences) between them.

Proprietary Funds - Services for which the District charges a fee are generally reported in proprietary
funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way as the district-wide statements. Enterprise funds
(one type of proprietary fund) are the same as business-type activities, but provide more detail and
additional information, such as cash flows. The District does not currently have any business-type
activities. Internal service funds (another type of proprietary fund) are used to report activities that provide
supplies and services for the District's other programs and activities. The District currently has one
internal service fund, the Self-Insurance Fund, which includes Workers’ Compensation and Dental/Vision.

Fiduciary Funds - The District is the trustee, or fiduciary, for assets that belong to others, such as the
scholarship fund and student activities funds. The District is responsible for ensuring that the assets
reported in these funds are used only for their intended purposes and by those to whom the assets
belong. All of the District's fiduciary activities are reported in a separate statement of fiduciary net position
and a statement of changes in fiduciary net position. We exclude these activities from the district-wide
financial statements because the District cannot use these assets to finance its operations.

1.



General Fund Financial and Budgetary Highlights

The General Fund accounts for the primary operations of the District. The District’s initial budget is adopted by
July 1. Over the course of the year, the District's budget is revised several times to account for revised and new
categorical funding appropriations and related expenditures, and to update budgets for prior year carryover
amounts. The budget may also be revised to reflect mid-year changes to the State Budget which affect district
funding. Additionally, the District is required to prepare expenditure reports and must include multi-year
projections at least twice a year. The following table summarizes the General Fund budget to actual information
for the year ended June 30, 2020:

Actual

Adopted Budget

Year End Budget

Total Revenues

$559,791,321

$563,717,515

$553,948,590

Total Expenditures

$580,686,953

$532,129,368

$570,720,251
$1,055,508

Total Other Financing Sources/(Uses) $2,188,754 $900,042

The net revenue increase of $3,926,194 between Adopted Budget and Year End Budget is due to an increase
in Federal Revenue due to the third interim report reflecting the revised budget based on award allocations and
not estimated actuals.

The net decrease to the total expenditure budget between Adopted and Year End Budget was $11,425,482, due
to one time savings including a $3.7M decrease in books and supplies and $2.2M decrease in operations and
service agreements.

Actual revenues were $9,768,925, or 1.7%, below Year End Budget, due primarily to unspent and unearned
categorical revenue and one-time revenues that carryover to 2020-21. Actual expenditures were $38,246,304,
or 6.75%, below Year End Budget due to one time savings in multiple categories as a result of the COVID-19
pandemic and school closures.

The following table summarizes the General Fund financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2020:

Total Revenues $553,948,590
Total Expenditures $532,129,368
Total Other Financing Sources/ (Uses) $900,042
Net Change $22,719,266
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District Reserves and Net Ending Balance

Revenues that have not been expended during a budget year are carried over for expenditure in the subsequent
year and are identified as the District’s “Net Ending Balance.” Included within the projected net ending balance
is a “reserve for economic uncertainties.” The State requires districts of our size to retain an amount equal to 2%
of our budgeted expenditures to cover unforeseen shortfalls in revenues or expenditures greater than budgeted.
Also included in the net ending balance are carryover balances that originated from sources that can only be
used for specific purposes. These “restricted” resources can only be spent on the purposes determined by the
grantor, and the balances in these accounts carry the same restrictions as the originating revenue.

The District also has the option of committing or assigning the ending balance. Committing funds requires the
Board of Education to designate the funds for any purpose by a majority vote at a Board meeting. Once the funds
are committed, the amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the Board takes action to remove or
change the constraints for the committed funds. The Board has not taken any action in 2019-20 to commit funds.
Assigned ending balances are constrained by the District's intent but are neither restricted nor committed. An
example of assignment is designating the ending balance to be used for a future textbook adoption.

The chart below represents the District’s financial analysis of its Governmental and Proprietary Funds:

Ending Fund Balances June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019 Difference
Fund 01 General $93,048,611 $70,329,345 $22,719,266
Fund 09 Charter Schools $3,975,366 $3,854,437 $120,929
Fund 11 Adult Education $353,245 $77,992 $275,253
Fund 12 Child Development $15,285 $15,636 ($351)
Fund 13 Cafeteria $12,807,058 $12,582,507 $224,551
Fund 14 Deferred Maintenance $0 $0 $0
Fund 21 Building $62,467,593 $95,280,449 ($32,812,856)
Fund 25 Developer Fees $20,196,507 $16,104,357 $4,092,150
Fund 49 Community Facilities $2,020,746 $1,991,387 $29,359
Fund 51 Bond Interest and Redemption 42,936,840 $31,953,446 $10,983,394
Fund 67 Seilf Insurance $12,935,257 $12,448,490 $486,767




Capital Projects

Modernization and construction projects are scheduled to continue as we update our existing facilities and
continue to close out construction projects. With the passage of Bond Measures Q and R in 2012, the District
continues facility improvements, modernization and construction projects that enhance the learning environment.

Total Expenditures for Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Measure Q Total $ 44787799
e Program Management Expenditures $ 2,362,796
e Completed Project Expenditures:
» Core Academic Renovation $ 13,410,753
District Wide Fire & Irrigation Improvements $ 37,872
= Modernization, Repair & Upgrades $ 8,400,684
» Resource and Energy Conservation Improvement Projects $ 24,372
» Technology Upgrades $ 4,724,401
e |In Progress Project Expenditures:
= Core Academic Renovation $ 13,155,555
« District Wide Fire & Irrigation Improvements $ 175,692
= Modernization, Repair & Upgrades $ 1,347,592
Resource and Energy Conservation Improvement Projects $ 808,765
Technology Upgrades $ 339,317
Measure R Total $ 20,781.793
e Program Management Expenditures $ 390,658
e In Progress Project Expenditures:
= Nutrition Services Center $ 20,391,135

Summary of Future Projects as of June 30, 2020

Project Year(s) Projects Estimated Budget
Measure Q Total $ 77.100.000
2020-2022 Core Academic Renovation $ 10,988,613
2020-2022 Modernization, Repair and Upgrade Projects $ 64,111,387
2020-2022 Resource & energy Conservation Improvement Projects  $ 2,000,000




District Indebtedness

As of June 30, 2020, the District has incurred $1,663,304,598 in long-term liabilities. Of this amount,
$465,127,966 are General Obligation Bonds and Accreted Interest backed by property tax increases voted on
by District residents in 1999, 2002 and 2012, and $60,550,000 is Lease Revenue Bonds, backed by Developer
Fees and Mello-Roos Community Facilities funds.

The District continues to provide lifetime health benefits to eligible retirees. The recognized net OPEB liability
increased by $41,731,317 or from $526,175,712 to $567,907,029 due to a change in the discount rate assumed
for the actuarial report.

Financial OQutlook

A continued projected decline in ADA, increased operating expenditures, such as rising special education costs
and pension and health premium increases, and uncertain future state resources are key issues facing
Sacramento City Unified School District. The development of future budgets will be influenced by external
variables such as the State Budget and enroliment changes.

The District's 2020-21 Second Interim multi-year projections indicate that the District may be able to meet its
financial obligations for the current and two subsequent years. The District has taken measures to reduce
expenditures and increase reserves over the last fiscal year, primarily due to one-time savings however the
District’s projected deficit persists in the multi-year projections as of the 2020-2021 Second Interim Financial
Report. The District was granted cash deferral exemptions for the months of April and May 2021 and due to
school closures during the 2020-21 fiscal year, the District is projecting to avoid $40 million in one-time
operational costs. These two factors improved the District's cash balances and the District is projected to have
positive cash balances at June 30 for all three fiscal years 2020-2021, 2021-2022 and 2022-2023.

The District is working with its labor partners, community stakeholders, the Sacramento County Office of
Education and assigned fiscal advisor to achieve fiscal stability and continues to evaluate all opportunities to
mitigate deficit spending, which includes reducing salaries and benefits expenditures, for an improved future
financial outlook.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2020

ASSETS

Cash and investments (Note 2)

Receivables

Stores inventory

Non-depreciable capital assets (Note 4)

Depreciable capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation (Note 4)

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred outflows of resources - pensions (Notes 8 and 9)
Deferred outflows of resources - OPEB (Note 10)
Deferred loss on refunding of debt

Total deferred outflows of resources

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses (Note 5)
Uneamed revenue
Long-term liabilities (Note 6):
Due within one year
Due after one year

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred infiows of resources - OPEB (Note 10)
Deferred inflows of resources - pensions (Notes 8 and 9)

Total deferred inflows of resources

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assels
Restricted:
Legally restricted programs
Capital projects
Debt senice
Unrestricted

Total net position

Govemmental
Activities

212,382,118
104,212,526
1,975,937
99,557,448

535,185,318

953,313,346

153,388,172
55,314,305
1,750,419

210,452,896

67,035,620
348,069
6,174,416

38,901,343
1,624,403,255

1,736,862,703

210,372,097
43,749,000

254,121,097

147,137,588

1,873,400
15,331,363
42,936,840

(1,034,496,749)

(827,217,558)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Net (Expense)
Revenue and
Changes in
Program Revenues Net Position
Charges Operating Capital
for Grants and Grants and Governmental
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities
Governmental activities:
Instruction $ 404,009,047 $ 5,502,657 104,105,610 (294,400,780)
Instruction-related services:
Supervision and administration 30,504,461 75,051 15,850,262 (14,579,148)
Library, media and technology 2,985,450 - 548,218 (2,437,232)
School site administration 41,417,612 12,016 4,951,127 (36,454,469)
Pupil services:
Home-to-school transportation 12,578,726 38,086 100,963 (12,439,677)
Food services 24,690,708 762,524 24,642,858 714,674
All other pupil services 39,418,437 69,786 15,097,188 (24,251,463)
General administration:
Centralized data processing 4,424 597 2,174 75,985 (4,346,438)
All other general administration 23,089,021 37,526 4,490,639 (18,560,856)
Plant services 57,996,921 723,462 1,392,833 (55,880,626)
Ancillary services 3,305,273 208 147,778 (3,157,287)
Community services 411,266 + - {411,266)
Enterprise activities 126,322 - - (126,322)
Other outgo 1,540,204 488,448 553,502 (498,254)
Interest on long-term liabilities 23,461,485 - - (23.461,485)
Total governmental activities § 669,958,530 $ 7,711,938 171,956,963 § (490,280,629)
General revenues:
Taxes and subventions:
Taxes levied for general purposes 113,311,579
Taxes levied for debt service 58,536,217
Taxes levied for other specific purposes 4,624,342
Federal and state aid not restricted to specific purposes 332,180,511
Interest and investment earnings 3,775,001
Interagency revenues 2,314,622
Miscellaneous 6,706,201
Total general revenues 521,448,473
Change in net position 31,157,844
Net position, July 1, 2019 (858,375,402)

Net position, June 30, 2020

S (827.217.558)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2020

ASSETS

Cash and investments:
Cash in County Treasury
Cash in banks
Cash in revolving fund
Cash with fiscal agent
Receivables
Due from grantor governments
Due from other funds

Stores inventory

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Unearned revenue
Due to other funds

Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Nonspendable
Restricted
Assigned
Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and
fund balances

Bond

Interest and Al Total
General Building Redemption Non-Major Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
$ 48227154 $ 36,230,733 $ 48893758 $ 31,431,333 $ 164,782,978
85,883 685 - 2,567,152 2,653,720
225,000 - - 2,000 227,000
- 33,122,750 800,635 - 33,923,385
64,707,798 1,458,660 315,633 10,698,033 77,180,124
24,179,665 - - 346,473 24,526,138
2,814,637 413,090 - 1,221,204 4,448,931
104,537 - - 1,871,400 1,975,937
$ 140344674 $ 71225918 $ 50010026 $ 48137595 § 309,718,213
$ 40063484 $ 8,758,325 $ 7,073,186 $ 5378874 § 61,273,869
5,697,401 - - 577,015 6,174,416
1,635,178 - - 2,813,499 4,448,677
47,296,063 8,758,325 7,073,186 8,769,388 71,896,962
329,537 - - 1,873,400 2,202,937
8,586,429 62,467,593 42,936,840 37,494,807 151,485,669
944,497 - - - 944,497
83,188,148 - - - 83,188,148
93,048,611 62,467,593 42,936,840 39,368,207 237,821,251
$ 140344674 $ 71225918 $ 50,010,026 $ 48,137,595 § 309,718,213

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET -
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2020

Total fund balances - Governmental Funds $ 237,821,251

Amounts reported for gowermmental activities in the statement of net
position are different because:

Capital assets used for governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported as assets in
gowernmental funds. The cost of the assets is $1,261,041,707 and

the accumulated depreciation is $626,298,941 (Note 4). 634,742,766

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the cument period and,
therefore, are not reported as liabilities in the govemmental funds.
Long-term liabilities at June 30, 2020 consisted of (Note 6):

General Obligation Bonds $ (465,127,966)
Accreted interest (20,661,0186)
Lease Revenue Bonds (60,550,000)
Premium on issuance (33,031,114)
Net pension liability (Notes 8 and 9) (511,057,000)
Net OPEB liability (Note 10) (567,907,029)
Compensated absences (4,970,473)

(1,663,304,598)

Intemal senice funds are used to conduct certain activities for which
costs are charged to other funds on a full cost-recowery basis. Net
position of the Self-lnsurance Fund is: 12,935,257

In the govemmental funds, interest on long-term liabilities is not
recognized until the period in which it matures and is paid. in the
government-wide statement of activities, it is recognized in the
period that it is incurred: (5,744,033)

Losses on the refunding of debt are recognized as expenditures in the
period they are incurred. In the government-wide statements, they
are categorized as deferred outfows and are amortized over the life
of the related debt. 1,750,419

In government funds, deferred outflows and inflows of resources
relating to other postemployment benefits (OPEB) are not reported
because they are applicable to future periods. In the statement of net
position, deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to OPEB
are reported (Note 10).

Deferred outflows of resources relating to OPEB $ 55,314,305
Deferred inflows of resources relating to OPEB (210,372,097)

(155,057,792)

In govemment funds, deferred outfows and inflows of resources
relating to pensions are not reported because they are applicable to
future periods. In the statement of net position, deferred outfiows
and inflows of resources relating to pensions are reported (Notes 8

and 9).
Deferred outflows of resources relating to pensions $ 153,388,172
Deferred inflows of resources relating to pensions (43,749,000) 109,639,172
Total net position - governmental activities $ (827,217,558)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Bond
Interest and All Total
General Building Redemption Non-Major Gowvemmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
Rewvenues:
Local control funding formula (LCFF):
State apportionment $ 313,649,770 % -8 - 8 18,126,140 $ 331,775,910
Local sources 100,059,346 - - - 100,059,346
Total LCFF 413,709,116 - - 18,126,140 431,835,256
Federal sources 51,917,179 - - 30,961,517 82,878,696
Other state sources 78,372,218 - 376,868 10,750,137 89,499,223
Other local sources 9,950,079 4,618,773 59,740,576 16,964,779 91,274,207
Total revenues 553,948,592 4,618,773 60,117,444 76,802,573 695,487,382
Expenditures:
Current:
Certificated salaries 209,808,827 - - 15,674,907 225,483,734
Classified salaries 60,163,620 565,539 - 13,043,411 73,772,570
Employee benefits 175,948,151 286,876 - 18,764,855 194,999,882
Books and supplies 11,145,790 5,350,705 - 10,864,896 27,361,391
Contract senices and operating
expenditures 65,548,240 2,058,054 - 4,042,078 71,648,372
Other outgo 1,150,697 - 389,507 - 1,540,204
Capital outlay 8,361,223 59,993,124 - 3,380,810 71,735,157
Debt senice:
Principal retirement 2,820 - 29,950,000 2,570,000 32,522,820
Interest - - 20,126,531 2,897,014 23,023,545
Total expenditures 532,129,368 68,254,298 50,466,038 71,237,971 722,087,675
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over (under)
expenditures 21,819,224 (63,635,525) 9,651,406 5,564,602 {26,600,293)
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 3,598,304 - - 2,698,262 6,296,566
Transfers out (2,698,262) (77,331) - (3,520,973) (8,296,566)
Proceeds from the sale of bonds - 30,900,000 - - 30,900,000
Premiums from the sale of bonds - . 1,331,988 - 1,331,988
Total other financing sources
(uses) 900,042 30,822,669 1,331,988 (822,711) 32,231,988
Change in fund balances 22,719,266 (32,812,856) 10,983,394 4,741,891 5,631,695
Fund balances, July 1, 2019 70,329,345 95,280,449 31,953,446 34,626,316 232,189,556
Fund balances, June 30, 2020 5 93,048,611 $ 62,467,593 § 42,936,840 § 39,368,207 $ 237,821,251

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS -

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Net change in fund balances - Total Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activites in the statement of

activities are different because:

Acquision of capital assets is an expenditure in the
governmental funds, but increases capital assets in the
statement of net position (Note 4).

Depreciation of capital assets is an expense that is not
recorded in the governmental funds (Note 4)

In the governmental funds, the entre proceeds from the
disposal of capital assets is reported as revenue. In the
statement of activities, only the resulting gain or loss s
reported (Note 4).

Proceeds from debt are recognized as other financing sources
in the governmental funds, but increases the long-term
liabilities in the statement of net position (Note 6).

Repayment of principal on long-term liabilities is an
expenditure in the governmental funds, but decreases the
long-term liabilities in the statement of net position (Note 6).

Accreted interest is an expense that is not recorded in the
governmental funds (Note 6).

Premiums related to the issuance of long-term liabilites is
recognized as an other financing source in the governmentat
funds, but decreases the liability in the statement of net
position. (Note 6).

In governmental funds, deferred inflows and deferred
outflows of resources are not recognized. In the
government-wide  statements, deferred inflows and deferred
outflows of resources are amortized over the life of the debt.
The net activity in the deferred oufflow for the current year
is:

In governmental funds, interest on long-term liabilities s
recognized in the period that it becomes due. In the
government-wide statement of activites, it is recognized in
the period that it is incurred.

Internal service funds are used to conduct certain activities for
which costs are charged to other funds on a full cost recovery
basis. The change in net positon for the Self-insurance Fund
was:

5,631,695

72,114,893

(38,057,188)

(45,309)

(30,900,000)

32,522,820

(2,114,310)

1,198,882

(334,816)

(334,576)

486,767

(Continued)
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS -

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

In government funds, pension costs are recognized when
employer contributions are made. In the statement of
activities, pension costs are recognized on the accrual basis.
This  year, the difference between accrual-basis pension
costs and actual employer contributions was (Notes 8 and 9): $

In the statement of activities, expenses related to compensated
absences are measured by the amounts earned during the
year. In the governmental funds, expenditures are measured
by the amount of financial resources used (Notes 6).

In the statement of activities, expenses related to net OPEB
liability are measured by the amounts earned during the year.
In the governmental funds, expenditures are measured by the
amount of financial resources used (Notes 6 and 10).

(35,231,240)

(401,955)

26,622,181

Change in net position of governmental activities $

31,157,844

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

22,



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF FUND NET POSITION — PROPRIETARY FUND
SELF-INSURANCE FUND

June 30, 2020

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and investments:
Cash in County Treasury
Cash in banks
Cash with fiscal agent

Receivables

Total current assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses
Total current liabilities

NET POSITION

Unrestricted

$

10,544,087
948
250,000
2,506,263

13,301,298

17,718
254
348,069

366.041

$

12,935,257

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN
NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUND
SELF-INSURANCE FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Operating revenues:
Self insurance premiums

Operating expenses:
Classified salaries
Employee benefits
Books and supplies
Contract services
Provision for claims and claim adjustment expenses

Total operating expenses

Net operating income

Non-operating income:
Interest income

Change in net position

Total net position, July 1, 2019

Total net position, June 30, 2020

P

14,527,614

336,894
207,753
10,084

229
13,651,736

14,206,696

320,918

165,849

486,767

12,448,490

12,935,257

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS — PROPRIETARY FUND
SELF-INSURANCE FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Cash flows used in operating activities:

Cash received from self-insurance premiums and other revenue $ 13,562,239

Cash paid for employee benefits (13,749,855)

Cash paid for other expenses (531,895)

Net cash used in operating activities (719,511)
Cash flows provided by investing activities:

Interest income received 165,849
Change in cash and investments (553,662)
Cash and investments, July 1, 2019 11,348,697
Cash and investments, June 30, 2020 $ 10,795,035

Reconciliation of net operating income to net cash used in
operating activities:
Net operating income $ 320918
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
used in operating activities:
Decrease (increase) in:

Receivables (965,375)
Prepaid expenses 13,273
(Decrease) increase in:
Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses (98,119)
Accounts payable 9,658
Due to other funds 134
Total adjustments (1,040,429)
Net cash used in operating activities $ (719,511)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS
June 30, 2020

Trust Agency
Fund Funds
Scholar- Student Warrant
ship Body Pass-Through
Trust Funds Eund
ASSETS
Cash and investments (Note 2)
Cash in County Treasury $ - § - § 41,462,525
Cash on hand and in banks 453,820 1,420,886 -
Receivables - 1,072 -
Stores inventory - 5,934
Total assets 453,820 § 1,427,892 § 41,462,525
LIABILITIES
Due to student groups - $ 1427892 $ -
Accounts payable 41,462,525
Total liabilities - % 1427892 $ 41,462,525
NET POSITION
Restricted for scholarships $ 453,829

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
TRUST FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Scholarship
Trust
Additions:
Other local sources $ 22916
Deduction:
Contfract services and operating
expenditures 31.325
Change in net position (8,409)
Net position, July 1, 2019 462,238
Net position, June 30, 2020 $ 453,829

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2020

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Sacramento City Unified School District (the "District") accounts for its financial transactions in accordance
with the policies and procedures of the California Department of Education's California School Accounting
Manual. The accounting policies of the District conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The following
is a summary of the more significant policies:

Reporting Entity: The Board of Education is the level of government which has governance responsibilities
over all activities related to public school education in the District. The Board is not included in any other
governmental "reporting entity" as defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board since Board
members have decision-making authority, the power to designate management, the responsibility to
significantly influence operations and primary accountability for fiscal matters.

The District, Sacramento County Schools Education Facilities Financing Corporation (the "Corporation”)
and Sacramento City Schools Joint Powers Financing Authority (the "Authority") have a financial and
operational relationship which meet the reporting entity definition criteria of the Codification of
Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, Section 2100, for inclusion of the
Corporation and Authority as a component unit of the District. Therefore, the financial activities of the
Corporation and the Authority have been included in the basic financial statements of the District as a
blended component unit.

The following are those aspects of the relationship between the District, the Corporation and the Authority
which satisfy Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, Section 2100,
criteria:

A - Manifestations of Oversight

1. The Corporation's and the Authority's Boards of Directors were appointed by the District's Board of
Education.

2. The Corporation and the Authority have no employees. The District's Superintendent and Chief Business
Officer function as agents of the Corporation and the Authority. Neither individual received additional
compensation for work performed in this capacity.

3. The District exercises significant influence over operations of the Corporation and the Authority as it is
anticipated that the District will be the sole lessee of all facilities owned by the Corporation and the
Authority.

B - Accounting for Fiscal Matters

1. All major financing arrangements, contracts, and other transactions of the Corporation and the Authority
must have the consent of the District.

2. Any deficits incurred by the Corporation and the Authority will be reflected in the lease payments of the
District. Any surpluses of the Corporation and the Authority revert to the District at the end of the lease
period.

3. It is anticipated that the District's lease payments will be the sole revenue source of the Corporation and
the Authority.

4. The District has assumed a "moral obligation," and potentially a legal obligation, for any debt incurred
by the Corporation and the Authority.

(Continued)
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2020

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C - Scope of Public Service and Financial Presentation

1. The Corporation and the Authority were created for the sole purpose of financially assisting the District.

2. The Corporation is a nonprofit, public benefit corporation incorporated under the laws of the State of
California and recorded by the Secretary of State. The Authority was created pursuant to a joint powers
agreement between the District and the California Statewide Communities Development Authority,
pursuant to the California Government Code, commencing with Section 6500. The Corporation and the
Authority were formed to provide financing assistance to the District for construction and acquisition of
major capital facilities. Upon completion the District intends to occupy all Corporation and Authority
facilities. When the Authority's Lease Revenue Bonds have been paid with state reimbursements and
the District's developer fees, title of all Corporation and Authority property will pass to the District for no
additional consideration.

3. The Corporation's and the Authority's financial activity is presented in the financial statements in the
Building Fund. Lease Revenue Bonds issued by the Authority are included in the government-wide
financial statements. There are currently no outstanding Certificates of Participation under the
Corporation as of June 30, 2020.

Basis of Presentation - Government-Wide Financial Statements: The Statement of Net Position and the
Statement of Activities displays information about the reporting government as a whole. Fiduciary funds are
not included in the government-wide financial statements. Fiduciary funds are reported only in the
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position and the Statement of Change in Fiduciary Net Position at the fund
financial statement level.

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities are prepared using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and
liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes
place. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from nonexchange transactions
are recognized in accordance with the requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Codification Section (GASB Cod. Sec.) N50.118-.121.

Program revenues: Program revenues included in the Statement of Activities derive directly from the
program itself or from parties outside the District's taxpayers or citizenry, as a whole; program revenues
reduce the cost of the function to be financed from the District's general revenues.

Allocation of indirect expenses: The District reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement of
Activities. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a function. Depreciation expense is
specifically identified by function and is included in the direct expense of the respective function. Interest
on general long-term liabilities is considered an indirect expense and is reported separately on the
Statement of Activities.

Basis of Presentation - Fund Accounting: The accounts of the District are organized on the basis of funds,
each of which is considered to be a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted
for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues,
and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. District resources are allocated to and accounted for in
individual funds based upon the purpose for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending
activities are controlled.

(Continued)

29.



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2020

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

A - Major Funds:
1. General Fund:

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the District and accounts for all revenues and
expenditures of the District not encompassed within other funds. All general tax revenues and other receipts
that are not allocated by law or contractual agreement to some other fund are accounted for in this fund.
General operating expenditures and the capital improvement costs that are not paid through other funds
are paid from the General Fund.

2. Building Fund:

The Building Fund is a capital projects fund used to account for resources used for the acquisition or
construction of capital facilities by the District.

3. Bond Interest and Redemption Fund:

The Bond Interest and Redemption Fund is a debt service fund used to account for the accumulation of
resources for, and the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs. All records
relating to the Bond Interest and Redemption Fund are maintained by the Sacramento County Auditor-
Controller. The revenue for this fund is raised by school district taxes which are levied, collected, and
administered by County officials. The Education Code stipulates that the tax rate levied shall be sufficient
to provide monies for the payment of principal and interest as they become due on outstanding school
district bonds.

B - Other Funds:

The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are
legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. This classification includes the Charter Schools,
Adult Education, Child Development and Cafeteria Funds.

The Capital Projects Funds are used to account for resources used for the acquisition or construction of
capital facilities by the District. This classification includes the Developer Fees and Community Facilities
Funds.

The Self-Insurance Fund is an internal service fund used to account for services rendered on a cost-
reimbursement basis within the District. The Self-Insurance Fund is used to provide workers' compensation,
dental and vision benefits to employees of the District.

The Scholarship Fund is a trust fund used to account for amounts held by the District as Trustee, to be
used to provide scholarships to students of the District.

Student Body Funds are used to account for revenues and expenditures of the various student body
organizations. All cash activity, assets and liabilities of the various student bodies of the District are
accounted for in Student Body Funds. The District also has a Warrant Pass-Through Fund reported in the
agency funds.

(Continued)
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2020

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of Accounting: Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are
recognized in the accounts and reported in the basic financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to
the timing of the measurement made, regardless of the measurement focus applied.

Accrual: The governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements and the proprietary and
fiduciary fund financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are
recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred.

Modified Accrual: The governmental funds financial statements are presented on the modified accrual basis
of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to
accrual; i.e., both measurable and available. "Available" means collectible within the current period or within
60 days after year end. Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of
accounting when the related liability is incurred. The exception to this general rule is that principal and
interest on general obligation long-term liabilities, if any, is recognized when due.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting: By state law, the Board of Education must adopt a final budget by July
1. A public hearing is conducted to receive comments prior to adoption. The Board of Education complied
with these requirements.

Receivables: Receivables are made up principally of amounts due from the State of California and
Categorical programs. The District has determined that no allowance for doubtful accounts was required
as of June 30, 2020.

Stores Inventory: Inventories in the General and Cafeteria Funds are valued at average cost. Inventory
recorded in the General and Cafeteria Funds consists mainly of school supplies and consumable supplies.
Inventories are recorded as an expenditure at the time the individual inventory items are transferred from
the warehouse to schools and offices.

Capital Assets: Capital assets purchased or acquired, with an original cost of $5,000 or more, are recorded
at historical cost or estimated historical cost. Contributed assets are reported at acquisition value for the
contributed asset. Additions, improvements and other capital outlay that significantly extend the useful life
of an asset are capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.
Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over 3 - 30 years depending on asset types.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources: In addition to assets, the statement of net position includes a
separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred
outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s), and as
such will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditures) until then. The District has
recognized a deferred loss on refunding reported in the Statement of Net Position. A deferred loss on
refunding results from the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This
amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter life of the refunded or refunding debt. Additionally, the
District has recognized a deferred outflow of resources related to the recognition of the net pension liability
and net OPEB liability reported in the Statement of Net Position.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents
an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and as such, will not be recognized as an
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The District has recognized a deferred inflow of resources
related to the recognition of the net pension liability and net OPEB liability reported in the Statement of Net
Paosition.

(Continued)
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2020

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Pensions: For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position
of the State Teachers’ Retirement Plan (STRP) and Public Employers Retirement Fund B (PERF B) and
additions to/deductions from STRP’s and PERF B's fiduciary net position have been determined on the
same basis as they are reported by STRP and PERF B. For this purpose, benefit payments (including
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit
terms. Certain investments are reported at fair value.

STRP PERF B Total
Deferred outflows of resources $ 119,256,635 $ 34,131,537 $ 153,388,172
Deferred inflows of resources $ 40,099,000 $ 3,650,000 $ 43,749,000
Net pension liability $ 357,334,000 $ 153,723,000 $ 511,057,000
Pension expense $ 84,495,834 § 33,494,324 $ 117,980,158

Compensated Absences: Compensated absences totaling $4,970,473 are recorded as a long-term liability
of the District. The liability is for the earned but unused benefits.

Accumulated Sick Leave: Sick leave benefits are not recognized as liabilities of the District. The District's
policy is to record sick leave as an operating expenditure or expense in the period taken since such benefits
do not vest nor is payment probable; however, unused sick leave is added to the creditable service period
for calculation of retirement benefits for certain STRP and PERF B employees, when the employee retires.

Unearned Revenue: Revenue from federal, state, and local special projects and programs is recognized
when qualified expenditures have been incurred. Funds received but not earned are recorded as unearned
revenue until earned.

Nel Position: Net position is displayed in three components:

1. Net Investment in Capital Assets — Consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances (excluding unspent bond proceeds)
of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction,
or improvement of those assets.

2. Restricted Net Position - Restrictions of the ending net position indicate the portions of net position not
appropriable for expenditure or amounts legally segregated for a specific future use. The restriction for
legally restricted programs represents the portion of net position restricted to specific program
expenditures. The restriction for debt service repayments represents the portion of net position which
the District plans to expend on debt repayment in the ensuing year. The restriction for capital projects
represents the portion of net position restricted for capital projects. The restriction for scholarships
represents the portion of net position to be used to provide financial assistance to students of the District.
It is the District's policy to first use restricted net position when allowable expenditures are incurred.

3. Unrestricted Net Position — All other net position that does not meet the definitions of "restricted” or "net
investment in capital assets".

Fund Balance Classifications: Governmental Accounting Standards Board Codification Sections 1300 and
1800, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions (GASB Cod. Sec. 1300 and 1800)
implements a five-tier fund balance classification hierarchy that depicts the extent to which a government
is bound by spending constraints imposed on the use of its resources. The five classifications, discussed
in more detail below, are nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned.

(Continued)
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2020

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
A - Nonspendable Fund Balance:

The nonspendable fund balance classification reflects amounts that are not in spendable form, such as
revolving fund cash, store’s inventory and prepaid expenditures.

B - Restricted Fund Balance:

The restricted fund balance classification reflects amounts subject to externally imposed and legally
enforceable constraints. Such constraints may be imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments, or may be imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation. These are the same restrictions used to determine restricted net position as reported in the
government-wide and fiduciary trust fund statements.

C - Committed Fund Balance:

The committed fund balance classification reflects amounts subject to internal constraints self-imposed by
formal action of the Board of Education. The constraints giving rise to committed fund bafance must be
imposed no later than the end of the reporting period. The actual amounts may be determined subsequent
to that date but prior to the issuance of the financial statements. Formal action by the Board of Education
is required to remove any: commitment from any fund balance. At June 30, 2020, the District had no
committed fund balances.

D - Assigned Fund Balance:

The assigned fund balance classification reflects amounts that the District's Board of Education has
approved to be used for specific purposes, based on the District's intent related to those specific purposes.
The Board of Education can designate personnel with the authority to assign fund balances, however, as
of June 30, 2020, no such designation has occurred.

E - Unassigned Fund Balance:

In the General Fund only, the unassigned fund balance classification reflects the residual balance that has
not been assigned to other funds and that is not restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes.

In any fund other than the General Fund, a positive unassigned fund balance is never reported because
amounts in any other fund are assumed to have been assigned, at least, to the purpose of that fund.
However, deficits in any fund, including the General Fund, that cannot be eliminated by reducing or
eliminating amounts assigned to other purposes are reported as negative unassigned fund balance.

Fund Balance Policy: The District has an expenditure policy relating to fund balances. For purposes of fund
balance classifications, expenditures are to be spent from restricted fund balances first, followed in order
by committed fund balances (if any), assigned fund balances and lastly unassigned fund balances.

While GASB Cod. Sec. 1300 and 1800 do not require Districts to establish a minimum fund balance policy
or a stabilization arrangement, GASB Cod. Sec. 1300 and 1800 do require the disclosure of a minimum
fund balance policy and stabilization arrangements, if they have been adopted by the Board of Education.
At June 30, 2020, the District has not established a minimum fund balance poalicy nor has it established a
stabilization arrangement.

(Continued)
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NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property Taxes: Secured property taxes are attached as an enforceable lien on property as of March 1.
Taxes are due in two installments on or before December 10 and April 10. Unsecured property taxes are
due in one installment on or before August 31. The County of Sacramento bills and collects taxes for the
District. Tax revenues are recognized by the District when received.

Encumbrances: Encumbrance accounting is used in all budgeted funds to reserve portions of applicable
appropriations for which commitments have been made. Encumbrances are recorded for purchase orders,
contracts, and other commitments when they are written. All encumbrances are liquidated as of June 30.

Eliminations and Reclassifications: In the process of aggregating data for the Statement of Net Position and
the Statement of Activities, some amounts reported as interfund activity and balances in the funds were
eliminated or reclassified. Interfund receivables and payables were eliminated to minimize the "grossing
up" effect on assets and liabilities within the governmental activities column.

Estimates: The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions. These
estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenditures during the reporting period. Accordingly, actual results may differ from those estimates.

NOTE 2 — CASH AND INVESTMENTS
Cash and investments at June 30, 2020 are reported at fair value and consisted of the following:

Governmental Activities

Governmental Proprietary Fiduciary
Funds Fund Total Activities
Pooled Funds:
Cash in County Treasury $ 164,782,978 § 10,544,087 $ 175,327,065 $ 41,462,525
Deposits:
Cash on hand and in banks 2,653,720 948 2,654,668 1,874,706
Cash in revolving fund 227,000 - 227,000 -
Total deposits 2,880,720 948 2,881,668 1,874,706
Investments:
Cash with fiscal agent 33,923,385 250,000 34,173,385 -
Total cash and
investments $ 201,587,083 $ 10,795,035 $ 212,382,118 $ 43,337,231
(Continued)
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NOTE 2 — CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Pooled Funds: In accordance with Education Code Section 41001, the District maintains substantially all of
its cash in the interest-bearing Sacramento County Treasurer's Pooled Investment Fund. The District is
considered to be an involuntary participant in the financial statements at the amounts based upon the
District's pro-rate share of the fair value provided by the County Treasurer for the entire portfolio (in relation
to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting
records maintained by the County Treasurer, which is recorded on the amortized cost basis.

Deposits - Custodial Credit Risk: The District limits custodial credit risk by ensuring uninsured balances are
collateralized by the respective financial institution. Cash balances held in banks are insured up to $250,000
by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) and are collateralized by the respective financial
institution. At June 30, 2020, the carrying amount of the District's accounts was $4,756,374 and the bank
balance was $4,137,751. $1,016,298 of the bank balance was FDIC insured and $3,121,453 remained
uninsured.

Cash with Fiscal Agent: Cash with Fiscal Agent in the Governmental Funds represents funds held by Fiscal
Agents restricted for capital projects and repayment of General Obligation Bonds. The District holds their
funds with the Sacramento County Treasurer. The balance available for withdrawal is based on the
accounting records maintained by the County Treasurer, which is recorded on the amortized cost basis.
Cash with Fiscal Agent held in the Proprietary Fund represents funds held as required by the District's third-
party administrator, Self insurance Authority, for the District's self-insurance activities.

Interest Rate Risk: The District does not have a formal investment policy that limits cash and investment
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.
At June 30, 2020, the District had no significant interest rate risk related to cash and investments held.

Credit Risk: The District does not have a formal investment policy that limits its investment choices other
than the limitations of state law.

Concentration of Credit Risk: The District does not place limits on the amount it may invest in any one
issuer. At June 30, 2020, the District had no concentration of credit risk.

(Continued)
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NOTE 3 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Interfund Activity: Transactions between funds of the District are recorded as transfers, except for the Self-
Insurance Fund activity which is recorded as income and expenditures of the Self-Insurance Fund and the
funds which incur payroll costs, respectively. The unpaid balances at year end, as a result of such
transactions, are shown as due to and due from other funds.

Interfund Receivables/Payables: Individual interfund receivable and payable balances at June 30, 2020
were as follows:

Interfund Interfund
Fund Receivables Payables
Major Funds:
General $ 2814637 $ 1,635,178
Building Fund 413,080 -
Non-Major Funds:
Charter Schools 922,442 1,518,724
Adult Education - 90,982
Child Development 298,262 358,486
Cafeteria 500 659,045
Developer Fees Fund - 186,262
Self-Insurance - 254
Totals $ 4448931 $ 4,448,931

Transfers: Transfers consist of transfers from funds receiving revenue to funds through which the resources
are to be expended.

Transfers for the 2019-2020 fiscal year were as follows:

Transfer from the General Fund to the Adult Education Fund to

sustain certificate programs. $ 1,600,000
Transfer from the General Fund to the Child Development Fund to
sustain child development programs. 1,098,262
Transfer from the Charter Schools Fund to the General Fund for
charter fees. 2,226,774
Transfer from the Charter Schools Fund to the General Fund for
indirect costs. 395
Transfer from the Adult Education Fund to General Fund for indirect
costs. 79,028
Transfer from the Child Development Fund to the General Fund for
indirect costs. 572,219
Transfer from the Cafeteria Fund to the General Fund for indirect
costs. 642,557
Transfer from the Buildng Fund to the General Fund for
loss claim less unfunded items for gym floor repairs. 77,331
$ 6,296,566
(Continued)
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NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS

A schedule of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2020 is shown below:

Governmental Activities

Non-depreciable;
Land
Work-in-process

Depreciable:
Buildings
Site improvements
Equipment

Totals, at cost

Less accumulated depreciation:

Buildings
Site improvements
Equipment

Total accumulated
depreciation

Capital assets, net

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental activities as follows:

Instruction

Food services

All other pupil services
Community services

All other general administration

Plant services

Total depreciation expense

Balance Transfers Transfers Balance
July 1, and and June 30,
2019 Additions Deductions 2020
21,223,495 $ - $ - $ 21,223,495
77,041,421 46,232,612 44,940,080 78,333,953
854,110,876 52,862,610 685,879 . 906,287,607
176,163,425 15,809,367 91,370 191,881,422
61,320,933 2,150,384 156,087 63,315,230
1,189,860,150 117,054,973 45,873,416 1,261,041,707
(443,603,058) (23,703,182) (680,892) (466,625,348)
(101,997,786) (8,601,422) (91,370) (110,507,838)
(43,528,936) (5,752,584) (115,765) (49,165,755)
(589,129,780) (38,057,188) (888,027) (626,298,941)
$ 600,730,370 $ 78,997,785 $ 44,985,389 $ 634,742,766

$ 34,359,214
357,982
1,515,511
236,339
1,204,085
384,057

$ 38,057,188
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NOTE 5 - SELF-INSURANCE CLAIMS

The District has established a Self-Insurance Fund to account for employee vision benefits, employee
dental benefits and workers' compensation plans. The employee vision and dental plans are self insured
and contract with a third party administrator for benefits processing. Until July 31, 1998 and from July 1,
2001 through June 30, 2005, the workers' compensation plan provided coverage up to $250,000 and
purchased excess insurance for claims over the retained coverage limit. Between August 1, 1998 and
June 30, 2001, and after July 1, 2005, the District purchased insurance for the workers' compensation
coverage.

The liability for unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses represents the ultimate cost of claims that
have been reported but not settled and of claims that have been incurred but not reported. These claims
will be paid in future years. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial
insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. There have been no significant reductions in
insurance coverage from coverage in the prior year.

District management recomputes the liability annually using available updated claims data. Annually, the
District obtains an actuarial study using a variety of statistical techniques to produce current estimates that
consider claim frequency and other economic factors. The liability for workers compensation is based on
an actuarial study dated September 3, 2020 and April 5, 2019 for the years ended June 30, 2020 and June
30, 2019, respectively.

The liabilities for unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses are as follows:

June 30, June 30,
2019 2020

Unpaid claim and claim adjustment expenses,

beginning of year $ 543,004 $ 446,188
Total incurred claims and claim adjustment

expenses 14,334,946 13,651,736
Total payments (14,431,762) (13,749,855)
Total unpaid claims and claim adjustment

expenses at end of year $ 446,188 $ 348,069

(Continued)
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NOTE 6 — LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

General Obligation Bonds

A summary of General Obligation Bonds payable as of June 30, 2020 follows:

The Series 2007, 2011, 2012, 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018 and 2019 Serial Bonds are authorized
pursuant to the Election of 2002 and Election of 2012, and are payable from property taxes levied by the
County of Sacramento.

Current
Balance Current Year Balance
Interest Original July 1, Year Refunded & June 30,
Series Rate Maturity 2019 Issuance Matured 2020

2007 - CA 4.6-4.8% 2032 $ 26,077,966 $ . b - $ 26,077,966
2011 0.5-5.5% 2029 46,850,000 - 4,915,000 41,935,000
2012 2.0-5.3% 2031 81,650,000 - 6,675,000 74,975,000
2013-A 2.0-5.0% 2038 12,015,000 - 380,000 11,635,000
2013-B 5.7% 2038 40,000,000 - 40,000,000
2014 2.0-5.0% 2027 35,005,000 - 3,040,000 31,965,000
2015 2.0-5.0% 2030 27,825,000 - 2,735,000 25,090,000
2015 C1 2.0-5.0% 2041 64,515,000 - 1,780,000 62,735,000
2016 2.0-4.0% 2041 12,840,000 - 375,000 12,465,000
2017-E 3.0-5.0% 2047 97,500,000 - 4,200,000 93,300,000
2017-C 3.0-5.0% 2047 9,900,000 - 100,000 9,800,000
2018-F 2.46% 2025 10,000,000 - 5,750,000 4,250,000
2019-D 2,375-5.0% 2049 - 30,900,000 - 30,800,000

$ 464177966 $ 30900000 § 29,950,000 $§ 465127,966

The annual requirements to amortize the General Obligation Bonds payable and outstanding as of June 30,
2020 are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2021 $ 28,705,000 $ 19,851,801 § 48,556,901
2022 29,975,000 18,563,591 48,538,591
2023 19,145,000 17,265,336 36,410,336
2024 23,352,074 18,888,567 42,240,641
2025 24,445,453 18,067,231 42,512,684
2026-2030 129,383,868 78,441,461 207,825,329
2031-2035 59,901,571 55,679,748 115,581,319
2036-2040 91,490,000 23,998,550 115,488,550
2041-2045 35,670,000 7,391,225 43,061,225
2046-2049 23,060,000 1,438,450 24,498,450

$ 465,127,966 $ 259,586,060 $ 724,714,026
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NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)

On October 25, 2007, the District issued 2007 General Obligation Bonds totaling $64,997,966. Bond
proceeds are to be used for construction related projects.

On June 30, 2011, the District issued 2011 General Obligation Refunding Bonds totaling $79,585,000. Bond
proceeds were used to refund a portion of the District's 1999 Series B, 1999 Series C, and General
Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2001. The refunded bonds have been fully repaid.

On June 14, 2012, the District issued 2012 General Obligation Refunding Bonds totaling $113,245,000.
Bond proceeds were used to advance refund all of the District's 1999 Series B, 1999 Series C, General
Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2001, and the 2002 Series A. Proceeds were also used to advance
refund a portion of the District's 1999 Series D Bonds. The refunded bonds have been fully repaid.

On June 27, 2013, the District issued 2013 Series A and Series B General Obligation Bonds totaling
$70,000,000. Bond proceeds are to be used for construction related projects.

On January 15, 2014, the District issued 2014 General Obligation Refunding Bonds totaling $44,535,000.
Bond proceeds were used to refund a portion of the District's 2002 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2005.
The refunded bonds have been fully repaid.

On January 8, 2015, the District issued 2015 General Obligation Refunding Bonds totaling $32,740,000.
Bond proceeds were used to refund the District's 2002, General Obligation Bonds, Series 2005 and 2007.
The refunded bonds have been fully repaid.

On May 24, 2016, the District issued 2016 Series D General Obligation Bonds totaling $14,000,000. Bond
proceeds are to be used for construction related projects.

On May 25, 2017, the District issued 2017 Series C and Series E General Obligation Bonds totaling
$122,000,000. Bond proceeds are to be used for construction related projects.

On July 1, 2018, the District issued 2018 Series F General Obligation Bonds totaling' $10,000,000. Bond
proceeds are to be used for construction related projects.

On November 21, 2019, the District issued 2019 Series D General Obligation Bonds totaling $30,900,000.
Bond proceeds are to be used for construction related projects.

(Continued)
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NOTE 6 — LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)

Lease Revenue Bonds: On February 4, 2014, the District issued Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds, 2014
Series A and Series B, totaling $44,825,000 and $29,460,000, respectively. Bond proceeds were used to
make lease payments to the District pursuant to the Facility Lease and additionally, advance refund all of
the District's 2002 Variable Rate Certificates of Participation (2002 COP). The Series A and Series B Bonds
are secured by certain revenues, which consist of rental payments to be made by the District out of its
general fund under a facility sublease as well as interest earning on funds held under a trust agreement.

The Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds, 2014 Series A bonds bear interest at rates ranging from 2.0% to
5.0% and are scheduled to mature through 2040 as follows:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2021 $ 2,495,000 $ 1,614,500 $ 4,109,500
2022 2,625,000 1,489,750 4,114,750
2023 2,770,000 1,358,500 4,128,500
2024 2,915,000 1,220,000 4,135,000
2025 3,025,000 1,074,250 4,099,250
2026-2030 235,000 4,568,000 4,803,000
2031-2035 4,590,000 4,444,250 9,034,250
2036-2040 13,635,000 2,111,500 15,746,500

$ 32290000 $ 17,880,750 $ 50,170,750

The Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds, 2014 Series B bonds bear an interest rate of 4.09% and are
scheduled to mature through 2033 as follows:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2021 $ 200,000 $ 1,155,834 $ 1,355,834
2022 200,000 1,147,654 1,347,654
2023 200,000 1,139,474 1,339,474
2024 200,000 1,131,294 1,331,294
2025 240,000 1,123,114 1,363,114
2026-2030 18,670,000 4,123,947 22,793,947
2030-2033 8,550,000 614,338 9,164,338

$ 28,260,000 $ 10,435,655 $ 38,695,655
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Schedule of Changes in Long-Term Liabilities: A schedule of changes in long-term liabilities for the year
ended June 30, 2020 is shown below:

Amounts
Balance Balance Due Within
July 1, 2019 Additions Deletions June 30, 2020 One Year
Debt:
General Obligation Bonds $ 464,177,966 § 30,900,000 $ 29,850,000 §$ 465,127,966 $ 28,705,000
Accreted interest 18,546,706 2,114,310 - 20,661,016 -
Lease Revenue Bonds 63,120,000 - 2,570,000 60,550,000 2,695,000
Premium on issuance 34,229,996 1,331,988 2,530,870 33,031,114 2,530,870
Capitalized lease obligations 2,820 - 2,820 - -
Other Long-Term Liabilities:
Net Pension Liability
(Notes 8 & 9) 497,997,000 13,060,000 - 511,057,000
Net OPEB liability (Nate 10) 526,175,712 41,731,317 - 567,907,029 -
Compensated absences 4,568,518 401,955 - 4.970,473 4,970,473

$ 1608818718 § 89,539,570 §$ 35053690 § 1663304598 § 38,901,343

Payments on the General Obligation Bonds are made from the Bond Interest and Redemption Fund.
Principal and interest payments on the Lease Revenue Bonds are made from the Community Facilities
Fund and Developer Fees Fund. Payments on the capitalized lease obligations are made from the General
Fund. Payments on the Net Pension Liability, Net OPEB liability and compensated absences are made
from the fund for which the related employee worked.

(Continued)
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NOTE 7 — FUND BALANCES

Fund balances, by category, at June 30, 2020 consisted of the following:

Nonspendable:
Revolving cash fund
Stores inventory

Subtotal nonspendable

Restricted:

Legally restricted programs:

Grants
Charter Schools
Adult Education
Child Development
Cafeteria operations
Capital projects
Debt service

Subtotal restricted
Assigned:
Home / Hospital Program
Donations
Subtotal assigned
Unassigned:
Designated for economic
uncertainty
Unassigned

Subtotal unassigned

Total fund balances

Bond
Interest and All
General Building Redemption Non-Major

Fund Fund Fund Funds Total
$ 225,000 $ - $ - $ 2,000 §$ 227,000
104,537 - 1,871,400 1,975,937
329,537 - 1,873,400 2,202,937
8,586,429 - - - 8,686,429
- - - 3,975,366 3,975,366
- - - 353,245 353,245
- 15,285 15,285
- - - 10,933,658 10,933,658
- 62,467,593 - 22,217,253 84,684,846
- - 42,936,840 - 42,936,840
8,586,429 62,467,593 42,936,840 37,494,807 151,485,669
40,000 - - - 40,000
904,497 - - 904,497
944 497 - - - 944,497
10,624,585 - - - 10,624,585
72,563,563 - 72,563,563
83,188,148 - - - 83,188,148
$§ 93048611 $ 62,467,593 § 42,936,840 I 39,368,207 $ 237,821,251
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NOTE 8 — NET PENSION LIABILITY — STATE TEACHERS' RETIREMENT PLAN
General Information about the State Teachers’ Retirement Plan

Plan Description: Teaching-certified employees of the District are provided with pensions through the State
Teachers’ Retirement Plan (STRP) — a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan
administered by the California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS). The Teachers' Retirement
Law (California Education Code Section 22000 et seq.), as enacted and amended by the California
Legislature, established this plan and CalSTRS as the administrator. The benefit terms of the plan may be
amended through legislation. CalSTRS issues a publicly available financial report that can be obtained at
http://www.calstrs.com/comprehensive-annual-financial-report.

Benefits Provided: The STRP Defined Benefit Program has two benefit formulas:

+ CalSTRS 2% at 60: Members first hired on or before December 31, 2012, to perform service that could
be creditable to CalSTRS.

« CalSTRS 2% at 62: Members first hired on or after January 1, 2013, to perform service that could be
creditable to CalSTRS.

The Defined Benefit (DB) Program provides retirement benefits based on members’ final compensation,
age and years of service credit. In addition, the retirement program provides benefits to members upon
disability and to survivors/beneficiaries upon the death of eligible members. There are several differences
between the two benefit formulas which are noted below.

CalSTRS 2% at 60

CalSTRS 2% at 60 members are eligible for normal retirement at age 60, with a minimum of five years of
credited service. The normal retirement benefit is equal to 2.0 percent of final compensation for each year
of credited service. Early retirement options are available at age 55 with five years of credited service or as
early as age 50 with 30 years of credited service. The age factor for retirements after age 60 increases with
each quarter year of age to 2.4 percent at age 63 or older. Members who have 30 years or more of credited
service receive an additional increase of up to 0.2 percent to the age factor, known as the career factor.
The maximum benefit with the career factor is 2.4 percent of final compensation.

CalSTRS calculates retirement benefits based on a one-year final compensation for members who retired
on or after January 1, 2001, with 25 or more years of credited service, or for classroom teachers with less
than 25 years of credited service if the employer elected to pay the additional benefit cost prior to January 1,
2014. One-year final compensation means a member’s highest average annual compensation earnable for
12 consecutive months calculated by taking the creditable compensation that a member could earn in a
school year while employed on a full-time basis, for a position in which the person worked. For members
with less than 25 years of credited service, final compensation is the highest average annual compensation
earnable for any 36 consecutive months of credited service.

CalSTRS 2% at 62

CalSTRS 2% at 62 members are eligible for normal retirement at age 62, with a minimum of five years of
credited service. The normal retirement benefit is equal to 2.0 percent of final compensation for each year
of credited service. An early retirement option is available at age 55. The age factor for retirement after age
62 increases with each quarter year of age to 2.4 percent at age 65 or older.

All CalSTRS 2% at 62 members have their final compensation based on their highest average annual
compensation earnable for 36 consecutive months of credited service.

(Continued)
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NOTE 8 — NET PENSION LIABILITY — STATE TEACHERS' RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued)

Contributions: Required member, employer and state contribution rates are set by the California Legislature
and Governor and detailed in Teachers' Retirement Law. Contribution rates are expressed as a level
percentage of payroll using the entry age normal actuarial cost method.

In June 2019, California Senate Bill 90 (SB 90) was signed into law and appropriated approximately $2.2
billion in fiscal year 2018—19 from the state's General Fund as contributions to CalSTRS on behalf of
employers. The bill requires portions of the contribution to supplant the amounts remitted by employers
such that the amounts remitted will be 1.03 and 0.70 percentage points less than the statutorily required
amounts due for fiscal years 2019-20 and 2020-21, respectively. The remaining portion of the contribution,
approximately $1.6 billion, was allocated to reduce the employers' share of the unfunded actuarial obligation
of the DB Program.

California Assembly Bill 84, Chapter 16, Statutes of 2020, (AB 84) was signed into law in June 2020 and
revised certain provisions of Teachers' Retirement Law enacted by SB 90. Specifically, AB 84 repurposed
the aforementioned $1.6 billion contribution originally intended to reduce employers’ long-term liabilities, to
further supplant employer contributions through fiscal year 2021-22. Pursuant to AB 84, employers will
remit contributions to CalSTRS based on a rate that is 2.95% less than the statutory rate for fiscal year
2020-21 and 2.18% less than the rate set by the board for fiscal year 2021-22. Any remaining amounts
must be allocated to reduce the employers’ share of the unfunded actuarial obligation of the DB Program.
The rate reduction for fiscal year 2019-20 under SB 90 was not changed by AB 84. The employer
contribution rates set in statute and the CalSTRS board’s authority to adjust those rates starting in fiscal
year 2021-22 under the CalSTRS Funding Plan were not changed by the passage of SB 90 or AB 84.

A summary of statutory contribution rates and other sources of contributions to the Defined Benefit Program
are as follows:

Members - Under CalSTRS 2% at 60, the member contribution rate was 10.25 percent of applicable
member earnings for fiscal year 2019-20. Under CalSTRS 2% at 62, members contribute 50 percent of the
normal cost of their retirement plan, which resulted in a contribution rate of 10.205 percent of applicable
member earnings for fiscal year 2019-20 .

in general, member contributions cannot increase unless members are provided with some type of
“comparable advantage” in exchange for such increases. Under previous law, the Legislature could reduce
or eliminate the 2 percent annual increase to retirement benefits. As a result of AB 1469, effective July 1,
2014, the Legislature cannot reduce the 2 percent annual benefit adjustment for members who retire on or
after January 1, 2014, and in exchange for this "comparable advantage,” the member contribution rates
have been increased by an amount that covers a portion of the cost of the 2 percent annual benefit
adjustment.

Employers — 17.10 percent of applicable member earnings. This rate reflects the original employer
contribution rate of 18.13 percent under AB1469, reduced for the 1.03 percentage points to be paid on
behalf of employers pursuant to SB 90.

Pursuant to AB 1469, employer contributions will increase from a prior rate of 8.25 percentto a total of 19.1
percent of applicable member earnings phased in over seven years starting in 2014. The new legislation
also gives the CalSTRS board limited authority to adjust employer contribution rates from July 1, 2021
through June 2046 in order to eliminate the remaining unfunded actuarial obligation related to service
credited to members prior to July 1, 2014. The CalSTRS board cannot adjust the rate by more than 1
percent in a fiscal year, and the total contribution rate in addition to the 8.25 percent cannot exceed 12
percent.
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NOTE 8 — NET PENSION LIABILITY — STATE TEACHERS' RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued)

The CalSTRS employer contribution rate increases effective for fiscal year 2019-20 through fiscal year
2045-46 are summarized in the table below:

Effective Date Prior Rate Increase Total

July 01, 2019 8.25% 9.88% 17.10%M

July 01, 2020 8.25% 10.85% 16.15%"

July 01, 2021 8.25% @ @

July 01, 2022 to
June 30, 2046 8.25% @ @
July 01, 2046 8.25% Increase from prior rate ceases in 2046-47
1) Pursuant to SB 90 and AB 84, the fiscal year 2018-19 state contribution of approximately $2.2 billion made in

advance on behalf of employers will be used to pay the contributions required by employers for the 2019-20,
2020-21 and 2021-22 fiscal years, such that employers will remit 1.030%, 2.950% and 2.180% less,
respectively, than is required by the CalSTRS Funding Plan. The rate above reflects this reduction.

2) The CalSTRS Funding Plan authorizes the board to adjust the employer contribution rate up or down 1% each
year, but no higher than 20.25% total and no lower than 8.25%.

The District contributed $36,383,635 to the plan for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.

State — 10.328 percent of the members' creditable earnings from the fiscal year ending in the prior calendar
year.

Also as a result of AB 1469, the additional state appropriation required to fully fund the benefits in effect as
of 1990 by 2046 is specific in subdivision (b) of Education Code Section 22955.1. The increased
contributions end as of fiscal year 2045-2046.

The state’'s base contribution to the Defined Benefit Program is calculated based on creditable
compensation from two fiscal years prior. The state rate increased to 5.811 percent on July 1, 2018 to
continue paying down the unfunded liabilities associated with the benefits structure that was in place in
1990 prior to certain enhancements in benefits and reductions in contributions. Additionally, the enactment
of SB 90 will result in future supplemental contributions to be made by the state to pay down its portion of
the unfunded actuarial obligation of the Defined Benefit Program in fiscal years 2019-29 through 2022-23.

(Continued)
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The CalSTRS state contribution rates effective for fiscal year 2019-20 and beyond are summarized in the
table below.

AB 1469 Increase For Total State
Base 1990 Benefit SBMA Appropriation
Effective Date Rate Structure Funding'?  to DB Program
July 01, 2019 2.017% 5.811% 2.50% 10.328%@
July 01, 2020 2.017% 5.811%® 2.50% 10.328%
July 01, 2021 to
June 30, 2046 2.017% ) 2.50% @
July 1, 2046 and
thereafter 2.017% ®) 2.50% ®

1) This rate does not include the $72 million reduction in accordance with Education Code Section 22954.

2) This rate does not include the $2.2 billion supplemental state contribution on behalf of employers pursuant to SB 90.

3)  In May 2020, the CalSTRS board exercised its limited authority to increase the state contribution rate by 0.5% of the
creditable compensation effective July 1, 2020. However, pursuant to AB 84, the state suspended the board's rate-
setting authority for state conlributions for fiscal year 2020—21, thereby negating the board's rate increase of 0.5%.

4) The CalSTRS board has limited authority to adjust state contribution rates annually through June 30, 2046 in order to
eliminate the remaining unfunded actuariai obligation associated with the 1990 benefit structure. The board cannot
increase the rate by more than 0.50 percent in a fiscal year, and if there is no unfunded actuarial obligation, the
contribution rate imposed to pay for the 1990 benefit structure would be reduced to 0 percent.

5) From July 1, 2046, and thereafter, the rates in effect prior to July 1, 2014, are reinstated, if necessary, to address any
remaining 1980 unfunded actuarial obligation.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2020, the District reported a liability for its proportionate share of the net pension liability that
reflected a reduction for State pension support provided to the District. The amount recognized by the
District as its proportionate share of the net pension liability, the related State support, and the total portion
of the net pension liability that was associated with the District were as follows:

District's proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 357,334,000
State’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
associated with the District 194,951,000

$ 552,285,000

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total pension liability used to calculate
the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018. The District's
proportion of the net pension liability was based on the District's share of contributions to the pension plan
relative to the contributions of all participating schoot Districts and the State. At June 30, 2019 the District's
proportion was 0.396 percent, which was an increase of 0.011 percent from its proportion measured as of
June 30, 2018.
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47.



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2020

NOTE 8 — NET PENSION LIABILITY — STATE TEACHERS' RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued)

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the District recognized pension expense of $84,495,834 and revenue
of $32,845,747 for support provided by the State. At June 30, 2020, the District reported deferred outflows
of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred QOufflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Difference between expected and actual experience $ 902,000 $ 10,069,000
Changes of assumptions 45,195,000 -
Net differences between projected and
actual earnings on investments - 13,765,000
Changes in proportion and differences between
District contributions and proportionate share
of contributions 36,776,000 16,265,000
Contributions made subsequent to measurement date 36,383,635 -
Total $ 119,256,635 $ 40,099,000

$36,383,635 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from contributions
made subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in
the year ended June 30, 2021. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ending
June 30,
2021 $ 13,579,200
2022 $ 4,036,200
2023 $ 7,088,700
2024 $ 16,284,700
2025 $ 1,577,200
2026 $ 208,000

Differences between expected and actual experience and changes in assumptions and changes in
proportion and differences between District contributions and proportionate share of contributions are
amortized over a closed period equal to the average remaining service life of plan members, which is 7
years as of the June 30, 2019 measurement date. Deferred outflows and inflows related to differences
between projected and actual earnings on plan investments are netted and amortized over a closed 5-year
period.

(Continued)
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: The total pension liability for the STRP was determined by applying
update procedures to a financial reporting actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018, and rolling forward the
total pension liability to June 30, 2019. The financial reporting actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018, used
the following actuarial methods and assumptions, applied to all prior periods included in the measurement:

Valuation Date June 30, 2018

Experience Study July 1, 2010 through June 30, 2015
Actuarial Cost Method Entry age normal

Investment Rate of Return 7.10%

Consumer Price Inflation 2.75%

Wage Growth 3.50%

Post-retirement Benefit Increases 2.00% simple for DB

Not applicable for DBS/CBB

CalSTRS uses a generational mortality assumption, which involves the use of a base mortality table and
projection scales to reflect expected annual reductions in mortality rates at each age, resulting in increases
in life expectancies each year into the future. The base mortality tables are CalSTRS custom tables derived
to best fit the patterns of mortality among its members. The projection scale was set equal to 110 percent
of the ultimate improvement factor from the Mortality Improvement Scale (MP-2016) table, issued by the
Society of Actuaries.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building- block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. The best
estimate ranges were developed using capital market assumptions from CalSTRS general investment
consultant as an input to the process. The actuarial investment rate of return assumption was adopted by
the CalSTRS board in February 2017 in conjunction with the most recent experience study. For each future
valuation, CalSTRS consulting actuary reviews the return assumption for reasonableness based on the
most current capital market assumptions. Best estimates of 20-year geometric real rates of return and the
assumed asset allocation for each major asset class used as input to develop the actuarial investment rate
of return are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term*
Assumed Asset Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
Global Equity 47% 4.8%
Fixed Income 12 1.3
Real Estate 13 3.6
Private Equity 13 6.3
Absolute Return / Risk
Mitigating Strategies 9 1.8
Inflation Sensitive 4 3.3
Cash / Liquidity 2 (0.4)

* 20-year geometric average

(Continued)
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Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.10 percent. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members
and employers will be made at statutory contribution rates in accordance with the rate increase per AB
1469. Projected inflows from investment earnings were calculated using the long-term assumed investment
rate of return (7.10 percent) and assuming that contributions, benefit payments, and administrative expense
occur midyear. Based on those assumptions, the STRP's fiduciary net position was projected to be
available to make all projected future benefit payments to current plan members. Therefore, the long-term
assumed investment rate of return was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine
the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate:
The following presents the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the
discount rate of 7.10 percent, as well as what the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.10 percent) or 1-
percentage-point higher (8.10 percent) than the current rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Increase
(6.10%) Rate (7.10%) (8.10%)
District's proportionate share of
the net pension liability $ 532,100,000 $ 357,334,000 $ 212,420,000

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position: Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is
available in the separately issued CalSTRS financial report.

NOTE 9 — NET PENSION LIABILITY — PUBLIC EMPLOYER’S RETIREMENT FUND B
General Information about the Public Employer’'s Retirement Fund B

Plan_Description: The schools cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan Public
Employer's Retirement Fund B (PERF B) is administered by the California Public Employees’ Retirement
System (CalPERS). Plan membership consists of non-teaching and non-certified employees of public
schools (K-12), community college districts, offices of education, charter and private schools (elective) in
the State of California.

The Plan was established to provide retirement, death and disability benefits to non-teaching and
noncertified employees in schools. The benefit provisions for Plan employees are established by statute.
CalPERS issues a publicly available financial report that can be obtained at obtained at:

https://www.calpers.ca.gov/docs/forms-publications/cafr-2019.pdf

Benefits Provided: The benefits for the defined benefit plans are based on members’ years of service, age,
final compensation, and benefit formula. Benefits are provided for disability, death, and survivors of eligible
members or beneficiaries. Members become fully vested in their retirement benefits earned to date after
five years (10 years for State Second Tier members) of credited service.

(Continued)
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Contributions: The benefits for the defined benefit pension plans are funded by contributions from members
and employers, and earnings from investments. Member and employer contributions are a percentage of
applicable member compensation. Member contribution rates are defined by law and depend on the
respective employer’s benefit formulas. Employer contribution rates are determined by periodic actuarial
valuations or by state statute. Actuarial valuations are based on the benefit formulas and employee groups
of each employer. Employer contributions, including lump sum contributions made when districts first join
PERF B, are credited with a market value adjustment in determining contribution rates.

The required contribution rates of most active plan members are based on a percentage of salary in excess
of a base compensation amount ranging from zero dollars to $863 monthly.

Required contribution rates for active plan members and employers as a percentage of payroll for the year
ended June 30, 2020 were as follows:

Members - The member contribution rate was 7.00 percent of applicable member earnings for fiscal year
2019-20.

Employers - The employer contribution rate was 19.72 percent of applicable member earnings.
The District contributed $13,529,537 to the plan for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2020, the District reported a liability of $153,723,000 for its proportionate share of the net
pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total pension liability
used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018.
The District's proportion of the net pension liability was based on the District's share of contributions to the
pension plan relative to the contributions of all participating school Districts. At June 30, 2018, the District's
proportion was 0.527 percent, which was a decrease of 0.014 percent from its proportion measured as of
June 30, 2018.

(Continued)
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For the year ended June 30, 2020, the District recognized pension expense of $33,494,324. At June 30,
2020, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Difference between expected and actual experience $ 11,166,000 $ -

Changes of assumptions 7,318,000 -
Net differences between projected and actual earnings

on investments - 1,426,000
Changes in proportion and differences between District

contributions and proportionate share of contributions 2,118,000 2,224,000

Contributions made subsequent to measurement date 13,529,537 .

Total $ 34,131,537 $ 3,650,000

$13,529,537 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the
year ended June 30, 2020. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ending
June 30,
2021 $ 13,439,667
2022 $ 2,414,667
2023 $ 693,666
2024 $ 404,000

Differences between expected and actual experience, change in proportion and changes in assumptions
are amortized over a closed period equal to the average remaining service life of plan members, which is
4 years as of the June 30, 2019 measurement date. Deferred outflows and inflows related to differences
between projected and actual earnings on plan investments are netted and amortized over a closed 5- year
period.

(Cantinued)
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: The total pension liability for the Plan was determined by applying
update procedures to a financial reporting actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018, and rolling forward the
total pension liability to June 30, 2019. The financial reporting actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018, used
the following actuarial methods and assumptions, applied to all prior periods included in the measurement:

Valuation Date June 30, 2018

Experience Study June 30, 1997 through June 30, 2015
Actuarial Cost Method Entry age normal

Investment Rate of Return 7.15%

Consumer Price Inflation 2.75%

Wage Growth Varies by entry age and service
Post-retirement Benefit Increases Contract COLA up to 2.00% until Purchasing

Power Protection Allowance Floor on
Purchasing Power applies 2.75%
thereafter

The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS specific data. The table includes 15 years of
mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries 90 percent of scale MP 2016. For more details on this
table, please refer to the 2017 experience study report.

All other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period from 1997 to 2015, including updates to salary increase, mortality and
retirement rates. Further details of the Experience Study can be found at CalPERS' website.

The table below reflects long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation.

Long-Term*  Expected Real Expected Real
Assumed Asset Rate of Return  Rate of Return

Asset Class Allocation Years 1-10(1) Years 11+ (2)
Global Equity 50% 4.80% 5.98%
Fixed Income 28 1.00 2.62
inflation Assets - 0.77 1.81
Private Equity 8 6.30 7.23
Real Estate Assets 13 3.75 4,93
Liquidity 1 - (0.92)

* 10-year geometric average
(1)  An expected inflation rate of 2.00% used for this period
(2)  An expected inflation rate of 2.92% used for this period

Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15 percent. A projection
of the expected benefit payments and contributions was performed to determine if assets would run out.
The test revealed the assets would not run out. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension
plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension
liability for the Plan. The results of the crossover testing for the Plan are presented in a detailed report that
can be obtained at CalPERS’ website.
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The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building- block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and long-
term market return expectations as well as the expected cash flows of the Plan. Such cash flows were
developed assuming that both members and employers will make their required contributions on time and
as scheduled in all future years. Using historical returns of all the Plan's asset classes, expected compound
(geometric) returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11+ years) using
a building-block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the
present value of benefits was calculated. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the rounded
single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the
one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set
equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated above and adjusted to account for assumed
administrative expenses.

Sensitivity of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate:
The following presents the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the
discount rate of 7.15 percent, as well as what the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.15 percent) or 1-
percentage-point higher (8.15 percent) than the current rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Increase
(6.15%) Rate (7.15%) (8.15%)
District's proportionate share of the
net pension liability $ 221,582,000 $ 153,723,000 $ 97,430,000

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position: Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is
available in the separately issued CalPERS financial report.

NOTE 10 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)

General Information - Other Postemployment Benefits Plan (OPEB)

Plan Description: In addition to the pension benefits described in Notes 8 and 9, the District provides
postemployment health care benefits to eligible employees and their dependents under a single employer
defined benefit OPEB plan. The plan does not issue separate financial statements.

The District established an irrevocable trust under the California Employer's Retiree Benefit Trust Program
(CERBT) to prefund the costs of other postemployment benefits. The funds in the CERBT are held in trust
and will be administered by the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) as an agent
multiple-employer plan. Benefit provisions are established and may be amended by District labor
agreements which are approved by the Board of Education. The District's contributions to the irrevocable
trust is included in the CERBT, which is included in the CalPERS CAFR. Copies of the CalPERS’ CAFR
may be obtained from the CalPERS Executive Office — 400 P Street — Sacramento, CA 95814.

(Continued)
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The CERBT fund, which is an Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 115 Trust, is set up for the purpose of
(i) receiving employer contributions to prefund health and other post-employment benefits for retirees and
their beneficiaries, (i) invest contributed amounts and income therein, and (iii) disburse contributed
amounts and income therein, if any, to pay for costs of administration of the fund and to pay for health care
costs or other post-employment benefits in accordance with the terms of the District's OPEB plan.

Benefits Provided: Sacramento City Unified School District's Retired Employees Healthcare Plan (REHP),
is a single employer defined benefit healthcare plan administered by the Sacramento City Unified School
District. The plan does not issue separate financial statements. REHP provides medical insurance benefits
to eligible retirees. Benefits are a negotiated component of each bargaining unit agreement. Currently,
eligible retirees receive health care benefits that are paid 100% by the District. District teachers qualify for
these benefits after attaining age 55 with at least five years of consecutive service to the District, age 50
with 30 years of service (if a member prior to January 1, 2013), or approved disability retirement with 5
years of service. CalPERS employees qualify for benefits after attaining age 50 (age 52, if a new CalPERS
member on or after January 1, 2013) with 5 years of State or public agency service or approved disability
and meeting the requirements outlined in their respective bargaining agreements.

The District's Governing Board has the authority to establish or amend the benefit terms offered by the
Plan. The District's Governing Board also retains the authority to establish the requirements for paying the
Plan benefits as they come due.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms: The following is a table of plan participants as of the June 30, 2018
valuation:

Number of
Participants
Inactive Plan members, covered spouses, or
beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 3,118
Active employees 4,278
7,396

Contributions: California Government Code specifies that the District's contribution requirements for
covered employees are established and may be amended by the Governing Board. Contributions to the
Plan are voluntary. Contributions to the Plan from the District were $26,713,074 for the year ended June 30,
2020.

OPEB Plan Investments: The plan discount rate of 3.90% was determined using the following asset
allocation and assumed rate of return blended with the 20-year high grade municipal bond rate as of
June 30, 2019:

Long-Term* Expected Real Expected Real
Assumed Asset Rate of Return Rate of Return
Asset Class Allocation Year 1-10 Years 11+
Global Equity 59% 4.80% 5.98%
Fixed Income 25 1.10 2.62
Treasury Inflation-Protected
Securities 5 0.25 1.46
Real Estate Investment Trusts 8 3.20 5.00
Commoaodities 3 1.50 2.87
*Geometric average
(Continued)
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Rolling periods of time for all asset classes in combination we used to appropriately reflect correlation
between asset classes. This means that the average returns for any asset class do not necessarily reflect
the averages over time individually, but reflect the return for the asset class for the portfolio average.
Additionally, the historic 30-year real rates of return for each asset class along with the assumed long-term
inflation assumption was used to set the discount rate. The investment return was offset by assumed
investment expenses of 25 basis points. It was further assumed that contributions to the plan would be
sufficient to fully fund the obligation over a period not to exceed 30 years.

Money-weighted rate of return on OPEB plan investments 7.00%

The money-weighted rate of return expresses investment performance, net of OPEB plan investment
expenses, adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested.

Actuarial Assumptions: The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuation was determined
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless
otherwise specified:

Valuation date June 30, 2018

Measurement date June 30, 2019

Funding Method Entry age normal, level percent of pay
General Inflation Rate 2.75%

Long Term Return on Assets 7.00% as of June 30, 2019 and June 30,

2018, net of plan investment expenses
and including inflation

Discount rate 3.90% as of June 30, 2019, determined
by the blending of the asset returns and the
20-year high grade municipal bond rate as
of June 30, 2019.

Salary increase 3.25% per year, used only to allocate the
cost of benefits between service years

Assumed Wage inflation 3.0% per year; used as a component of
assumed salary increases

Health care cost trend rate 7.00% for 2020 and 2019, decreasing 0.5
percent per year thereafter to an ultimate
rate of 5.00% for year 2024 and later years.

Mortality For certificated employees the 2016
CalSTRS mortality tables were used

For classified employees the 2017 CalPERS
active mortality for miscellaneous
employees were used

(Continued)
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Participants Valued Only current active employees and retired
participants and covered dependents are
valued. No future entrants are considered
in this valuation

Participation Rate Active Employees: 100% of active benefits-
eligible employees who qualify for District
paid retiree premiums are assumed to
elect to continue their current plan
coverage in retirement. Those not
currently covered are assumed to elect as
follows: 1) Waiving SCTA Actives - SCTA
Opt-Out Subsidy; 2) Waiving Non-SCTA
Actives - Kaiser HMO (Mgmt/Class)

15% of active employees who qualify
access to coverage in retirement, but not
for District paid premiums are assumed to
continue medical coverage in retirement.

Retired Participants: Existing medical plan
elections are assumed to be continued
until age 65 (Medicare eligibility)

Changes in the Net OPEB Liability:

Total OPEB Total Fiduciary Net OPEB

Liability Net Position Liability
(a) (b) (a)-(b)
Balance, June 30, 2019 $ 598953650 $ 72,777,938 $ 526,175,712
Changes for the year:
Service cost 20,002,277 - 20,002,277
Interest 25,888,179 - 25,888,179
Assumption changes 29,041,398 - 29,041,398
Employer contributions - 28,640,257 (28,640,257)
Interest income - 4,575,947 (4,575,947)
Administrative expense - (15,667) 15,667
Benefit payments (19,644,632) (19,644,632) -
Net change 55,287,222 13,555,905 41,731,317
Balance, June 30, 2020 $ 654,240,872 $ 86,333,843 $ 567,907,029
(Continued)
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The changes in assumptions include a change in the discount rate from 4.25% in the prior valuation, to
3.90% in the current valuation.

There were no changes between the measurement date and the year ended June 30, 2020, which had a
significant effect on the District's total OPEB liability.

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Assumptions: The following presents the net OPEB liability
calculated using the discount rate of 3.90 percent. The schedule also shows what the net OPEB liability
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percent lower (2.90 percent) and 1 percent
higher (4.90):

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Increase
(2.90%) Rate (3.90%) (4.90%)
Net OPEB liability $ 680,417,075 $ 567,907,029 $ 477,758,060

The following table presents the net OPEB liability calculated using the heath care cost trend rate of 7.0
percent. The schedule also shows what the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a health
care cost trend rate that is 1 percent lower (6.0 percent) and 1 percent higher (8.0 percent).

1% Healthcare Cost 1%
Decrease Trend Rates Increase
(6.0%) Rate (7.0%) (8.0%)
Net OPEB liability $ 464440466 $ 567,907,029 $ 715,961,655

OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to
OPEB

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the District recognized OPEB expense of $90,893. At June 30, 2020,
the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions
from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Difference between expected and actual experience $ 3,644,417 $ 101,056,331
Changes of assumptions 24,956,814 109,273,035
Net differences between projected and actual earnings
on investments - 42,731
Benefits paid subsequent to measurement date 26,713,074 -
Total $ 55314305 $ 210,372,097
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$26,713,074 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to benefits paid subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the total OPEB liability in the year ended June 30,
2020. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Year Ending
June 30,
2021 $ (40,406,477)
2022 $ (40,406,477)
2023 $ (40,153,357)
2024 $ (35,218,006)
2025 $ (26,730,764)
Thereafter $ 1,144,215

Differences between projected and actual earnings on investment are amortized over a closed period of 5
years as of the June 30, 2019 measurement date. Changes in assumptions and differences between
expected and actual experience are amortized over a closed period of 7.11 years as of the June 30, 2019
measurement date.

NOTE 11 - JOINT POWERS AGREEMENTS

Schools Insurance Authority: The District is a member with other school districts of a Joint Powers Authority,
Schools Insurance Authority (SIA), for the operation of a common risk management and insurance program
for property and liability coverage. The joint powers agency is to be self-sustaining through member
premiums. SIA enters into insurance agreements for coverage above self-insured retention layers, whereby
it cedes various amounts of risk to other insurance companies or joint power authorities. SIA's Property,
Liability and Workers' Compensation Programs provide self-insured retention of $100,000, $750,000 and
$1,000,000 per incident, respectively. The District continues to carry commercial insurance for all other
risks of loss, including employee health and accident insurance. Settled claims resulting from these risks
have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. There have been
no significant reductions in insurance coverage from coverage in the prior year. The following is a summary
of financial information for SIA at June 30, 2020:

Total assets $ 196,612,352
Deferred outflows $ 1,899,536
Total liabilities $ 82,789,071
Deferred inflows $ 782,679
Total net position $ 114,940,138
Total revenues $ 78,904,293
Total expenses $ 58,333,119
Change in net position $ 20,571,174

The relationship between the District and the Joint Powers Authority is such that the Joint Powers Authority
is not a component unit of the District for financial reporting purposes.

{Continued)
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2020

NOTE 12 - COVID -19 IMPACT

In December 2019, a novel strain of coronavirus surfaced (COVID-19) and spread around the world, with
resulting business and social disruption. In response to the pandemic and in compliance with various state
and local ordinances, the District closed physical campuses and transitioned to a distance learning model.
On March 13, 2020, the Governor of California issued Executive Order N-26 — 20, guaranteeing state
funding to support the continued payment of salaries and benefits to all employees through June 30, 2020.

The operations and business results of the District could be adversely affected in the future including a
reduction in the level of funding and impact to the timing of cash flows. In addition, significant estimates
may be adversely impacted by national, state and local events designed to contain the coronavirus. Debt
ratings for outstanding issuances may further be impacted. For the 2021 school year, the District is offering
instruction in formats consistent with local health guidelines. Throughout the pandemic the District has put
into practice a number of safety measures to protect students and employees and will continue to revise
them as needed.

NOTE 13 — CONTINGENCIES

The District is subject to legal proceedings and claims which arise in the ordinary course of business. In the
opinion of management, the amount of ultimate liability with respect to these actions will not materially affect
the financial position or results of operations of the District.

The District has received federal and state funds for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit
by the grantor agencies. Although such audits could result in expenditure disallowances under terms of the
grants, it is management's opinion that any required reimbursements of future revenue offsets subsequently
determined will not have a material effect on the District's financial position or results of operations.

At June 30, 2020, the District had approximately $13,300,000 in outstanding construction contract
commitments.

NOTE 14 - MANAGMENT'S PLANS

Since September 2018 when the Sacramento County Office of Education (SCOE) disapproved the District's
adopted General Fund budget for the 2018-19 fiscal year, the Board of Education, Superintendent,
management, staff, and labor partners have been collaborating to identify solutions that would address the
structural deficit for current and future fiscal years’ financial projections.

Due to Education Code provision, the District's financial position resulted in a series of actions including a
Fiscal Health Risk Analysis by the Fiscal Crisis and Management Assistance Team (FCMAT) and an audit
by the California State Auditor. Additionally, SCOE appointed a fiscal advisor to work with the District to
review the budget for accuracy and provide assistance to District staff.

In December 2018, FCMAT issued the results of its analysis that concluded, unless changes are made, the
District is at risk of insolvency, which leads to a state loan and an appointed administrator. The analysis
focused on identifying district systems and processes where improvements can be made. Immediately, the
District began taking steps to implement business process changes and adopt FCMAT's recommendations.
Additionally, in December of 2019, the State Auditor issued its independent performance audit report on
the fiscal condition of the District. The report includes several recommendations to assist the District in
moving towards fiscal solvency.

(Continued)
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2020

NOTE 14 - MANAGMENT'S PLANS (Continued)

The District's proposed 2019-20 Budget continued a structural deficit into 2019-20 to allow for the time
necessary to negotiate a solution that achieves long-term cost savings. SCOE recognized that the District
made considerable progress towards stabilizing the budget, but disapproved the budget since the District
expected to be $27 million short of the minimum required reserve in 2021-22 without an agreed upon
solution. Insolvency was delayed but not eliminated.

The financial status as of the 2020-21 First Interim Financial Report projects that ongoing reductions of $30
million are still required in order to balance the budget, satisfy the state-mandated 2% reserve and avoid
the fiscal crisis. A Student-Centered Fiscal Recovery Plan presented to the Board of Education on January
26, 2021, provided a list of options subject to negotiations that could achieve a $30 million solution. At the
February 4, 2021 Board Meeting, the Board of Trustees approved a Student-Centered Fiscal Recovery
Plan in the amount of $4.5 million. As of the 2020-21 Second Interim Financial Report the District projects
an improvement in its fund balances due to projected one-time savings as a result of the COVID-19
pandemic. However, the District still needs an on-going Fiscal Recovery Plan of $28 million in order to
balance the budget and avoid a fiscal crisis.

Similar to many other districts within the State, the District continues to face challenges with declining
student enroliment, average daily attendance percentages, and unduplicated student group percentages.
These are all variables that impact the District's basis for revenues. Furthermore, additional cost pressures
compound the above challenges due to escalating employer pension costs, escalating healthcare cosis
and increased contributions from the Unrestricted General Fund to meet student needs in the Special
Education program.

The General Fund's historical trend of deficit spending has adversely affected the District's financial
condition and its ability to meet future financial obligations. Although the District has taken measures to
reduce expenditures and increase reserves over the last fiscal year, the District's projected deficit persists
in the multi-year projections as of the 2020-2021 Second Interim Financial Report. The District was granted
cash deferral exemptions for the months of April and May 2021 and due to schoo! closures during the 2020-
21 fiscal year, the District is projecting to avoid $40 million in one-time operational costs. These two factors
improved the District's cash balances and is projected to remain positive at June 30 for all three fiscal years
2020-2021, 2021-2022 and 2022-2023.

As of the date of these financial statements, the District has not achieved sufficient reductions to resolve
the ongoing structural budget deficit which is projected to increase in future years. The District will continue
to evaluate its programs and staffing levels, and other supply and services expenditures in order to
determine whether additional non-negotiable savings may be achieved.
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GENERAL FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Budget Variance
Favorable
Qriginal Final Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
LCFF:

State apportionment $ 320,520,973 $ 316,071,027 § 313,649,770 (2,421,257)

Local sources 91,276,258 95,050,581 100,059,346 5,008,765
Total LCFF 411,797,231 411,121,608 413,709,116 2,587,508

Federal sources 66,583,550 66,717,951 51,917,179 (14,800,772)
Other state sources 72,319,786 75,072,262 78,372,218 3,299,956
Other local sources 9,090,755 10,805,695 9,950,079 (855,616)
Total revenues 559,791,322 563,717,516 553,948,592 (9,768,924)
Expenditures:
Current:

Certificated salaries 222,800,621 219,486,692 209,808,827 9,677,865

Classified salaries 62,778,941 63,141,028 60,163,620 2,977,408

Employee benefits 177,606,806 174,957,169 175,948,151 (990,982)

Books and supplies 41,196,691 22,511,195 11,145,790 11,365,405

Contract services and operating
expenditures 75,194,802 80,211,336 65,548,240 14,663,096

Other outgo 471,000 907,438 1,150,697 (243,259)

Capital outlay 627,792 9,495,093 8,361,223 1,133,870
Debt service:

Principal retirement 10,300 10,300 2,820 7,480
Total expenditures 580,686,953 570,720,251 532,129,368 38,590,883
(Deficiency) excess of revenues

(under) over expenditures (20,895,631) (7,002,735) 21,819,224 28,821,959
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 4,022,539 3,650,043 3,598,304 (51,739)
Transfers out (1,833,785) (2,594,535) (2,698,262) (103,727)
Total other financing sources
(uses) 2,188,754 1,055,508 900,042 (155,466)
Change in fund balance (18,706,877) (5,947,227) 22,719,266 28,666,493
Fund balance, July 1, 2019 70,329,345 70,329,345 70,329,345 -

Fund balance, June 30, 2020 $ 51,622,468 $ 64,382,118 $ 93,048,611 $ 28,666,493

See accompanying note to required supplementary information.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Last 10 Fiscal Years

2018 2019 2020
TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY
Service cost $ 33273763 $ 28,429909 $ 20,002,277
Interest on total OPEB liability 24,982,078 28,454,100 25,888,179
Differences between expected and actual experience - (135,537,910) -
Changes of assumptions (89,783,252) (83,559,205) 29,041,398
Benefit payments (20,462,037) (19.351,654) (19,644,632)
Net change in total OPEB liability (51,989,448) (181,564,760) 55,287,222
Total OPEB liability - beginning of year (a) 832,507,858 780,518,410 598,953,650
Total OPEB liability - end of year (b) $ 780,518410 $ 598,953,650 654,240,872
PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
Contributions - employer $ 48,000844 $ 33,078,830 28,640,257
Net investment income 3,951,473 4,395,048 4,575,947
Administrative expenses (19,446) (29,756) (15,667)
Other expenses - (72,482) -
Benefit payments (20,462,037) (19,351,654) (19,644,632)
Change in plan fiduciary net position 31,470,834 18,019,986 13,555,905
Fiduciary trust net position - beginning of year (c) 23,287,118 54,757,952 72,777,938
Fiduciary trust net position - end of year (d) $ 54,757,952 72,777,938 86,333,843
Net OPERB liability - beginning (a) - (c) $ 809,220,740 725,760,458 526,175,712
Net OPEB liability - ending (b} - (d) $§ 725,760,458 526,175,712 567,907,029
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability 7% 12% 13%
Covered employee payroll $ 263,777,849 284,495904 $ 271,833,894
Net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered employee payroll 275% 185% 209%

This is a 10 year schedule, however the information in this schedule is not required to be presented retrospectively.

See accompanying note to required supplementary information.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT'S CONTRIBUTIONS - OPEB
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Other Postemployment Benefits
Last 10 Fiscal Years

2018 2019 2020*
Actuarially determined contribution $ 41766451 $ 29,997,546 $ 30,861,105
Contributions in relation to the actuariaily
determined contribution (33,078,830) (28,640,257) (26,713,074)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ 8687621 $ 1,357,289 § 4,148,031
Covered employee payroll $ 284,4915,904 $ 271,833,894 §$§ 279,376,002
Contributions as a percentage of covered employee payroll 11.63% 10.54% 9.56%

*The ADC for the District's fiscal year end June 30, 2020 was determined as part of the June 30, 2019 valuation using a 3.90%
discount rate.

This is a 10 year schedule, however the information in this schedule is not required to be presented retrospectively.

See accompanying note to required supplementary information.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTE TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
June 30, 2020

NOTE 1 - PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES

A - Budgetary Comparison Schedule

The District employs budget control by object codes and by individual appropriation accounts. Budgets are
prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.
The budgets are revised during the year by the Board of Education to provide for revised priorities.
Expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriations by major object code. The originally adopted and final
revised budgets for the General Fund are presented as Required Supplementary Information. The basis of
budgeting is the same as GAAP.

B - Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios

The Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability presents multi-year information which illustrates the
changes in the net OPEB liability for each year presented

C - Schedule of the District's Contributions - OPEB

The Schedule of District Contributions is presented to illustrate the District's required contributions relating
to the OPEB. There is a requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10- year trend
is compiled, governments should present information for those years for which information is available.

D - Schedule of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

The Schedule of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability is presented to illustrate the
elements of the District’s Net Pension Liability. There is a requirement to show information for 10 years.
However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, governments should present information for those years for
which information is available.

E — Schedule of the District's Contributions

The Schedule of District Contributions is presented to illustrate the District's required contributions relating
to the pensions. There is a requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10- year
trend is compiled, governments should present information for those years for which information is
available.

F — Changes of Benefit Terms

There are no changes in benefit terms reported in the Required Supplementary Information.

(Continued)
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTE TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
June 30, 2020

NOTE 1 - PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES (Continued)

G - Changes of Assumptions

The discount rate for the Net OPEB liability was 2.92, 3.56, 4.25 and 3.90 percent in the June 30, 2016,
2017, 2018 and 2019 actuarial reports, respectively.

The discount rate for Public Employer's Retirement Fund B was 7.50, 7.65, 7.65, 7.15, 7.15, 7.15 and 7.15
percent in the June 30, 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018 and 2019 actuarial reports, respectively.

The following are the assumptions for State Teachers' Retirement Plan:

Measurement period

As of As of As of As of As of
June 30, June 30, June30, June30, June 30,

Assumption 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Consumer price inflation 2.75% 2.75% 2.75% 3.00% 3.00%
Investment rate of return 7.10% 7.10% 7.10% 7.60% 7.60%
Wage growth 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.75% 3.75%
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ORGANIZATION
June 30, 2020

Sacramento City Unified School District, a political subdivision of the State of California, was established
on July 7, 1936. The territory covered by the District does not include certain areas of the City of
Sacramento, but does include some contiguous territory located outside city boundaries, but within
Sacramento County boundaries. The District operated forty-two elementary schools (grades K-6), seven
elementary/middle schools (grades K-8), six middle schools (grades 7-8), two middie/high schools (grades
7-12), seven high schools (grades 9-12), three alternative schools, two adult education centers, two special
education centers and forty-two children's centers and preschools, serving infants through age 12. Sixteen
charter schools also operated in the District serving kindergarten through grade twelve, five of which were
governed by the District Board of Education.

GOVERNING BOARD

Name Office Term Expires
Jessie Ryan President December 2020
Christina Pritchett Vice President December 2020
Michael Minnick Second Vice President December 2020
Leticia Garcia Member December 2022
Lisa Murawski Member December 2022
Darrel Woo Member December 2022
Mai Vang Member December 2020
Olivia Ang-Olson* Student Member June 2020
ADMINISTRATION
Jorge A. Aguilar
Superintendent
Lisa Allen

Deputy Superintendent

Christine Baeta
Chief Academic Officer

Tara Gallegos
Chief Communications Officer

Robert Lyons, Ed.D.**
Chief Information Officer

Vincent Harris
Chief Continuous Improvement and Accountability Officer

Cancy McArn
Chief Human Resources Officer

Rose F. Ramos
Chief Financial Officer

*|sa Sheikh voted into office as the student member in June 2020 for the 2020-21 fiscal year.

**This position was vacant at June 30, 2020. Robert Lyons, Ed.D. was hired effective March 19, 2021
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Certificate Number:
Elementary:
Transitional Kindergarten through Third
Fourth through Sixth
Seventh and Eighth
Special Education
Community Day School

Secondary:
Ninth through Twelfth
Special Education

Total Secondary

District ADA Totals
Charter Schools
Certificate Number:

Bowling Green Elementary - Classroom-Based:

Transitional Kindergarten through Third
Fourth through Sixth

Total Bowling Green Elementary Charter

Certificate Number:

George Washington Carver School of Arts and
Science - Classroom-Based:
Ninth through Twelfth

Certificate Number:

New Joseph Bonnheim - Classroom-Based:
Transitional Kindergarten through Third
Fourth through Sixth

Total New Joseph Bonnheim Charter

Certificate Number:
New Technology High - Classroom-Based:
Ninth through Twelfth

Certificate Number:

The Met Sacramento High School -
Non-Classroom-Based:
Ninth through Twelfth

Total Charter Schools

Second
Period Annual
Report Report
7EBCET720 F41B5E4C
11,971 11,971
8,988 8,988
6,455 6,455
181 181
12 12
27,607 27,607
10,476 10,476
137 137
10,613 10,613
38,220 38,220
F2E06EDS 88F04CAF
438 438
326 326
764 764
1F2E8B17 143A5236
250 250
1FC6DBE 4F473E2E
174 174
116 116
290 290
2E9C7ECF F596DCC4
160 160
5A631E8D 43895EA9
259 259
1,723 1,723

See accompanying notes to supplementary information.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL TIME
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Statutory Number
Minutes 2019-2020 of Days
Require- Actual Traditional
Grade Level ment Minutes Calendar Status

District
Kindergarten 36,000 36,000 180 In Compliance
Grade 1 50,400 50,492 180 In Compliance
Grade 2 50,400 50,492 180 In Compliance
Grade 3 50,400 50,492 180 In Compliance
Grade 4 54,000 54,008 180 In Compliance
Grade 5 54,000 54,008 180 In Compliance
Grade 6 54,000 54,008 180 In Compliance
Grade 7 54,000 54,130 180 In Compliance
Grade 8 54,000 54,130 180 In Compliance
Grade 9 64,800 64,800 180 In Compliance
Grade 10 64,800 64,800 180 In Compliance
Grade 11 64,800 64,800 180 In Compliance
Grade 12 64,800 64,800 180 In Compliance

Bowling Green Charter School - Classroom Based

Kindergarten 36,000 43,205 180 In Compliance
Grade 1 50,400 50,492 180 in Compliance
Grade 2 50,400 50,492 180 In Compliance
Grade 3 50,400 50,492 180 In Compliance
Grade 4 54,000 54,008 180 In Compliance
Grade 5 54,000 54,008 180 In Compliance
Grade 6 54,000 54,008 180 In Compliance

George Washington Carver School of Arts and Science - Classroom Based

Grade 9 64,800 64,800 180 In Compliance
Grade 10 64,800 64,800 180 In Compliance
Grade 11 64,800 64,800 180 In Compliance
Grade 12 64,800 64,800 180 In Compliance

New Joseph Bonnheim Charter School - Classroom Based

Kindergarten 36,000 36,000 180 In Compliance
Grade 1 50,400 50,552 180 In Compliance
Grade 2 50,400 50,552 180 In Compliance
Grade 3 50,400 50,552 180 In Compliance
Grade 4 54,000 54,068 180 In Compliance
Grade 5 54,000 54,068 180 In Compliance
Grade 6 54,000 54,068 180 In Compliance

New Technology High School - Classroom Based

Grade 9 64,800 68,835 175 In Compliance
Grade 10 64,800 68,835 175 In Compliance
Grade 11 64,800 68,835 175 In Compliance
Grade 12 64,800 68,835 175 In Compliance

See accompanying notes to supplementary information.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURE OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Federal
Catalog Federal Grantor/Pass-Through
Number Grantor/Program or Cluster Title

U.S. Department of Education - Passed through California Department
of Education

Special Education Cluster:

84.027 IDEA: Basic and Local Assistance
Entitlement, Part B, Sec 611

84.027 IDEA: Private School ISP

84.173 IDEA Preschool Grants, Part B,
Section 619 (Age 3-5)

84.027A IDEA: Mental Health Services,
Part B, Sec 611

84.173A IDEA: Preschool Staff Development
Part B, Sec 619

84.173A Alternative Dispute Resolution,

Part B, Sec 611

Subtotal Special Education Cluster

Adult Education Program:

84.002A Adult Education: Adult Basic Education & ESL
Section 231

84.002 Adult Education: Adult Basic Secondary Education
Section 231

84.002A Adult Education: English Literacy and Civics

Education Local Grant
Subtotal Adult Education Program

84.048 Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education:
Secondary, Sec 131 (Vocational Education)

Title  Program:
84.010 ESEA: Title |, Part A, Basic Grants Low-Income
and Neglected

84.010 ESEA: ESSA School Improvement (CSl) Funding for LEA:
Subtotal Title | Program

Title lll Program:

84.365 ESEA (ESSA): Title lIll, English Learner Student
Program
84.365 ESEA (ESSA): Title Ill, Immigrant Student Program

Subtotal Title Il Program

Pass-
Through
Entity
Identifying
Number

13379
13379

13430
14468
13431

13007

14508

13978

14109

14894

14329
15438

14346
15146

Federal
Expend-
itures

9,104,627
34,245

273,548
477,659
2,376

6.881

9,899,336

138,730
9,949

1,885

150,564

664,887

20,475,302
934,379

21,409,681

573,568
251,426

824,994

(Continued)
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURE OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Pass-
Through
Federal Entity
Catalog Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Identifying
Number Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number
U.S. Depariment of Education - Passed through California Department
of Educalion (Continued)
84.126 Department of Rehabilitation: Workability ll, Transitions
Partnership Program 10006
84.181 Special Education: Early Intervention Grants, Part C 23761
84.060 Indian Education (From Federal Government) 10011
84.063 Pell Grants - Student Financial Aid Cluster *
84.287 ESEA: Title IV, Part B, 21st Century Community
Learning Centers Program 14349
84.367 ESEA: Title ll, Part A, Improving Teacher Quality
Local Grants 14341
84.377 ESEA: Title |, Schoal Improvement Grant (SIG)
for QEIA Schools 14971
84.424 ESEA: Title IV, Part A, Student Support and
Academic Enrichment 15396
Total U.S. Department of Education
U.S. Depariment of Health and Human Services - Passed through
California Department of Health Care Services
Medicaid Cluster:
93.778 Medi-Cal Billing Option 10013
93.778 Medi-Cal Administrative Activities 10060
Subtotal Medicaid Cluster
93.674 Chafee Foster Care Independent Living N
93.600 Head Start 10016
93.566 Refugee Cash and Medical Assistance Program *
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services - Passed through
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration
93.243 Meadowview Project Aware Grant *

Total U.S. Department Health and Human Services

Federal
Expend-
itures

202,066
139,420
19,336
501,165
1,725,156
1,626,442
13,240,153

541,029

50,844,229

1,024,225
573,457

1,697,682

82,577
5,598,585
78,427

33,114

7,390,385

(Continued)
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURE OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Pass-
Through
Federal Entity
Catalog Federal Grantor/Pass-Through ldentifying
Number Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number
U.S. Department of Agriculture - Passed through
California Department of Education
Child Nutrition Cluster:
10.555 National School Lunch Program 13396
10.559 Child Nutrition: Summer Food Service Program
Operations 13004
Subtotal Child Nutrition Cluster
10.558 Child Nutrition: Child Care Food Program 13666
10.682 Child Nutrition: Fresh Fruit and Vegetable Program 14968
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture
U.S. Depariment of Justice
16.543 Missing Children's Assistance *
U.S. Department of Defense
12.357 ROTC *
U.S. Department of Labor
Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act Cluster:
17.259 Workforce Investment Act, Youth Activities *

Total Federal Programs

* District is unable to provide PCA numbers.

Federal
Expend-
itures

16,645,717

965,292

17,611,009

1,039,112
41,782

18,691,903

10,466

268,653

185,200

77,490,836

See accompanying notes to supplementary information.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF UNAUDITED ACTUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
WITH AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Bond Interest

and
Redemption
Fund

June 30, 2020 Unaudited Actual Financial Reporting

Ending Fund Balance $ 31,948,534
To correct debt issuance premiums recorded by

the Sacramento County Treasurer 10,988,306
June 30, 2020 Audited Financial Statements Ending

Fund Balance $ 42,936,840

There were no adjustments proposed to any other funds of the District.

See accompanying notes to supplementary information.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL TRENDS AND ANALYSIS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

(UNAUDITED)
(Budget)
2021 2020 2019 2018

General Fund
Revenues and other

financing sources $ 594,726,073 $ 557,546,896 $ 555,039,158 § 508,290,529
Expenditures 632,521,176 532,129,368 553,491,115 518,008,558
Other uses and transfers out 1,726,379 2,698,262 1,719,449 1,248,027
Total outgo 634,247,555 534,827,630 555,210,564 519,256,585
Change in fund balance $ (39,521,482) $ 22,719,266 S (171,406) $ (10,966,056)
Ending fund balance $ 53527129 $ 93048611 $ 70,329,345 § 70,500,751
Available reserves $ 44675700 $ 84052645 $ 52,751,482 $ 20,013,133
Designated for economic

uncertainties $ 12614060 $ 10624585 $ 52,751,482 $ 20,013,133
Undesignated fund balance $ 32,061,640 $ 73,428,060 $ - 3 -
Available reserves as

percentages of total

outgo 7.0% 15.7% 9.5% 3.99
All Funds

Total long-term liabilities

Average daily attendance
at P-2, excluding Adult
and Charter School

$ 1,624,403,255

$ 1,663,304,598

$ 1,608,818,718

$ 1,804,562,828

38,220

38,220

38,425

38,588

The General Fund fund balance has increased by $11,581,804 over the past three years. The District has
incurred operating deficits in two of the past three years, and anticipates incurring an operating deficit during
the 2020-2021 fiscal year. The fiscal year 2020-2021 budget projects a decrease of $39,521,482. For a district
this size, the state recommends available reserves of at least 2% of total General Fund expenditures, transfers

out, and other uses. For the year ended June 30, 2020, the District has met this requirement.

Total long-term liabilities have decreased by $141,258,230 over the past two years.

Average daily attendance has decreased by 368 over the past two years. The District anticipates no change
in ADA for the 2020-2021 fiscal year.

See accompanying notes to supplementary information.
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